E#MEEERAF
MOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED

P 118

ANNUAL REPORT
F

BEEM
BB RRENRREFOER

Paper from responsible sources .-_ = = - —
ESS FSC™ C134852 e —

/0+

Ccaringcompany
Awarded by The Hong Kong Counci of Social Service:
T ESMEMSRE




'R

Pages

2

6

23

28

48

69

99

106

107

108

111

113

116

285

286

Corporate Information

Main Operational Structure

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis

Directors and Senior Management's Biographies

Report of the Directors

Corporate Governance Report

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Income Statement

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Five Year Financial Summary

Glossary

CONTENTS
H &

ARER
FERBER
e
ERERILED
EERFMETALME
EFERLE
CEERRE

B R REARE

BB E

HAEREDE
BARSRER
CON R EO
BEMBHE

AR

—ZT—AEEHR e+ Annual Report 2019



CORPORATE INFORMATION
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MAIN OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE
TEXHRE

As at 30 March 2020 R —ZE-—FF=H=1H

Machinery Manufacturing

Business
/ B SLE T

Plastic Products Processing
and Manufacturing Businesses

% FEHBMIREEER

Cosmos Machinery
Enterprises Limited

REEMEEFRAR

Printed Circuit Board Processing
and Trading Businesses

EN R AR BRAR 2 BN T K B 5 3R 7%

\ Industrial Consumables
Trading Business

IXEEmZEZRE
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Manufacturing of Injection
Moulding Machines
B BLEET

9\

WELLTEL
Donghua Machlnery Ltd.*

REMWARD
(Dongguan, PRC EF'I HE)

/
;/

WELLTEL
Cosmos Machinery Technology
(Jiangsu) Co., Ltd.

Kﬂ&%ﬁzﬂ&(lﬁ BRR
(Jiangsu, PRC # & - /Iﬁ

Manufacturing of Extrusion Machines
and Rubber Injection Machines

=

M TR AR T By R /

DEKUMAO
Dekuma Rubber and Plastic
Technology (Dongguan) Ltd

EHNEREHMRERR)ERA
(Dongguan, PRC # i%

%

Processing of Plastic Food Packaging

RmERBEZ MTER

%

Karmay Plastic Products (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd.*
SEBREKEEBRAT
(Zhuhai, PRC #E + %85)

L

K

Processing of Plastic Components
for Home Appliances

ARETEEERHEEF 2 T XS

Cosmos Grand Plastics Co., Ltd.
~ e
AIEARREBEBR AR KHEHH

(Hefei, PRC 8 - A1) /

g

Manufacturing of Plastic
Mannequins and Display Items

AR MR 2 RIER

REXRZHHYURERL
(Dongguan, PRC H & ??E

[ l Posh

A

Processing of Multi-colour Plastic Injection
Molding for Plastic Components

ERENNSZEITE 2 MTER

/

Dongguan Hua Qi Plastic Works Co Ltd.
REESRBHAMBRA
(Dongguan, PRC # & ?%)

A

Processing of Printed Circuit Boards

ENRIARBEIR 2 IN T 375

%

Shenzhen Gainbase Printed
Circuit Board Co., Ltd.*

RYIBELFERFR AT E
(Shenzhen, PRC B - &) /

Trading of Printed Circuit Boards

nEATH

KFE Hong Kong Co., Limited
R —ERBREBBRAR

ENfIR R 2 B 5% 7% / : '

(Hong Kong &%) /
Melco Industrial Supplies Co lelted

EaIXBMERA @'

(Hong Kong E\iﬁ) sj
Guangzhou Melco Industrial

/ g pplies Co., Ltd. ",

BRI EEHERAT
Guangzhou PRC #H ' &) \|) s‘"“"‘“‘/

saTeannaRaT @)
(Shanghai, PRC [ - i/i) "Q

i For identification proposes only. & E R o

Note:

The details of the shareholding of each subsidiary held by the 7%
Company or its subsidiaries, please refer to the note 45 of the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

HARAHEMBRABRKEENBRAN
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TREHRE

In retrospect, we've been through a tough year of 2019. The
global macro economy was filled with challenges, the extension
effect of the ongoing US-China trade war gradually surfaced,
coupled with the relatively weak overall market demand in the
Mainland China and the difficulty in financing for small and
medium-sized enterprises, enterprises were subjected to variables
such as order price reductions and risks of non-compliance of
contracts. Most industries were facing unprecedented challenges.
Members of the Group were also affected to varying degrees.
However, we are convinced that, in spite of the even severer
difficulties than before, market opportunities still exist.

ADDING IMPETUS TO INTERNAL IMPROVEMENTS
As a multi-business company, we are always optimizing our
business structure in response to market demands and changes,
conducting internal improvements at different levels and investing
resources in certain areas such as talent cultivation, technology
research and development, production equipment and product
manufacturing, with a view to adding new impetus to the
Company and providing the market and customers with the
suitable products and services.

Although various sectors are currently facing severe challenges,
we believe that providing customers with innovative solutions
and applications is going to be a future development trend in the
injection molding machine manufacturing industry. Automotive
sector is one of our key markets among various industries. In
response to the increasing demand for lightweight products in
the automotive market, the Company co-operated with domestic
institutions with cutting-edge technologies, developed chemical
micro-foaming special injection molding machine ({t 2% 3%
HAEP#) . Meanwhile, we also launched special injection
molding machines catering to different industries.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED e« AE#HMEEERAA
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In respect of extrusion machines and rubber injection machines
manufacturing business, we've invested proper resources into the
niche markets, aiming at improving the stability and quality of our
products. Encouragingly, we achieved growth in this business and
also recorded significant increase in export sales during the year.

As for plastic food packaging business, we are committed to
maintaining strict control over the hygiene standards at our
production plant and providing our food and healthcare product
customers with products of high hygiene standard and quality.
Long-term support was received from many well-known brands.
In addition, we will continue to invest resources in various
areas such as smart automation and production, so as to get
fully prepared for future market demands with development of
technology foresight.

Facing the turbulent market environment, the Group will continue
to focus on internal improvements, so as to keep itself evergreen.
The Group implemented streamlined structures and production
processes, and implemented lean management across various
businesses during the year. While striving to improve production
efficiency, we also actively improved cost structure and cash flow
to maintain a prudence financial management. Furthermore,
we will focus on strengthening our internal audit works and
optimizing various risk management for the coming year.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
IFEHE (F)

B0 I h AN AR B BLE X 7 RAPIEH A
EMBRERBER BORAERNIRE
HMEE AFERMEREHIE TER
HAHEHLBRSHB LT EASE

EREHRMBEEHTE  BFI—WBEER
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
IFEHE (F)

RISING TO CHALLENGES FOR A BETTER FUTURE
Looking back to 2019, the Sino-US trade war has made impacts
on the manufacturing industry in the Mainland China and there
were still uncertainties in the negotiation of the phase 2 trade
deal, which discouraged investments in the industry. Increasingly
complex operating environments around the globe and the weak
demand across the Mainland China have indeed brought threats
to enterprises’ business operations. Besides, due to the outbreak
of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) epidemic in 2020, more
challenges and pressures were on supply chains and the overall
economy. Many enterprises in the Mainland China extended on
the resumption date of work since the mid-February 2020, which
affects the normal operation of supply chains. The epidemic
and economic slowdown in the Mainland China will put more
pressures on the revenues and working capitals of enterprises.
The Group expects that the overall economic situation in the
coming year is not optimistic.

In spite of this, the PRC government has introduced a series of
measures to reduce fees and taxes to support enterprises, and
the Sino-US trade war also give an opportunity for the Mainland
China to promote transformation and upgrading. Facing a
tough external economic environment, the Board members, the
management and all staff of the Group, with persistent spirits,
continue to formulate appropriate business strategies in a
practical, flexible and vigilant way, optimize business structures
and introduce innovative products and services for achieving a
better performance.

Last but not least, | would like to express my greatest
appreciation to all staff for their hard work. | believe that our
products with strategies and all-around internal improvements
will definitely bring a better business performance to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS SUMMARY
e Revenue decreased by 12.6% to approximately
HK$2,344,923,000 (2018: approximately HK$2,682,452,000)

e Gross profit margin decreased to 16.1% (2018: 16.3%)

e Operating profit decreased to approximately HK$53,894,000
(2018: approximately HK$76,987,000)

e Profit for the year was approximately HK$24,884,000 (2018:
approximately HK$88,752,000)

e Net debt to equity ratio increased to 8.9% as at 31
December 2019 (31 December 2019: 3.8%)

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Sales revenue of the Group decreased by 12.6% to approximately
HK$2,344,923,000 (31 December 2018: approximately
HK$2,682,452,000). It was mainly attributable to drop of sales
turnover in manufacturing of injection moulding machines
business, plastic products manufacturing and processing
businesses, trading of industrial consumables business and
printed circuit board (“PCB") processing and trading businesses
during the year of 2019 amidst global economic uncertainties
and deteriorating market sentiments caused by the ongoing trade
friction between the United States and the PRC.

Gross profit for the year amounted to approximately
HK$377,540,000, with gross profit margin decreased from
16.3% for the corresponding year of 2018 to 16.1% for the year.
The slight drop in gross profit margin was resulted from intensive
market competition.

BEE WAL DA

XERE
o  WATE12.6%Z4J2,344,923,000% 7T
(ZZ— \4:492,682,452,0007 7T )

o EFXRTHEEIGI% (ZZTE—N\F:
16.3% )

o ARESHTIT KK ZE 453,894,000 7T (=
T — )\ 4F : #976,987,0007% 7T )

o  REEHNA A24,884,0008 L (==
— )\ £ : #988,752,000/% 7T )

e RITE—NFF+ZA=+—HZEEZF
BEREANL EAESI% (ZFE—N
FT-A=1+—H:38%)

MK EE
AREENHERATHKI2Z 6048
2,344,923,0008 7 (ZE— \F+-_A=+—
H : #92,682,452,000/& 70) It Jh EE MR TE
EHCETHARS R EB HEREFESTR
EBET RIS —NFFBHBEER T8
BIRRERNTER ITXERMBEIER
RERGEEIRIN T RE S EBHEEBAT
7

ANEEERH)A377,540,00058 70 - EFEH -
E—NFW163% ML ERFEMN6.1% ° &
TSR FERENERARNFEEM TR -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEBWAR DN (&)

As stated in the 2018 annual report of the Company, the Group
had made a provision for indemnity pursuant to the terms of
sale and purchase agreement in relation to the disposal of entire
issued share capital of an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, MS
Plasticorp, on 20 March 2018. As the indemnity period had
expired during 2019 without any claims, a gain on reversal of
unused provision for indemnity amounted to approximately
HK$25,780,000 was recorded in current year.

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 23
December 2016, the Group restructured its plastic products
processing business and machinery manufacturing business,
including the cessation of operation of certain manufacturing
businesses and optimization of the production capacities in
plants located at Dongguan and Wuxi. The restructuring projects
including assets relocation, organizational restructuring and
production efficiency enhancement had been completed by the
end of the 2019. The remaining amount of unused provision for
restructuring amounted to approximately HK$20,290,000 had
been reversed in current year.

The Group reported a net profit of approximately HK$24,884,000
for the year, including two non-recurring gain items of
approximately HK$46,070,000 from the reversals of unused

provisions for indemnity and restructuring aforementioned.
The net debt to equity ratio increased to 8.9% as at 31 December

2019. The overall cash flow position and debt maturity profile of
the Group maintained at a healthy level.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS REVIEW

Machinery Manufacturing Business

During the year under review, the machinery manufacturing
business recorded mixed results across various product lines.
Macro-economic forces were challenging and unfavourable, as
the trade war between the US and China negatively impacted
capital expenditure sentiments broadly across manufacturing
industries in the Mainland China for the year. Injection molding
machine manufacturing business was vastly affected under this
challenging backdrop. The automotive industry in the Mainland
China was a key growth driver for this business in recent years.
However, this industry in experienced prolonged weak overall
demands, thus machinery orders from this business were low
compared to same period last year. As such, deliveries for our
J-series two-platen injection molding machines experienced a
noticeable drop this year. We also experienced weak demands in
other industries such as household appliances, infrastructures and
electronics industries. However, our focus and commitment to
the automotive industry remain strong. New innovative solutions
and applications, namely J series chemical micro-foaming special
injection molding machines ({t 2B HAFBH) , continue
to attract customer interests in future development projects. In
addition, new industry specific machine models were successfully
launched in the market, such as large sized electric/hydraulic
hybrid machines. For our self-developed “iSee” smart industry
4.0 platform, active users adoption rate continues to grow
significantly. User satisfaction was desirable, and we will continue
to deploy resources on smart digital platforms in this business
to enhance human machine interface experience and production
transparency and efficiency.

EEEmLE D (&)

e o)

REEFER XEPXBEFHREZHEPE
NBREENEAXHTREATE 8
BRI E TFERERBERE L
ERFEERAZZ -HEEARMABNT S
RET FTEHREXBGRIEAREENY
B FR REAMTETREABEEEMR
HEXEBBERNTIEZH N BUTEERS
KERKSE EPTETENRMRTEER
EFRPELRD Bt 5 FIRINBROE
PHH X EEHMEAE T A IE RS A
THEN:XE ERREMNETHBREE R
o HAERTET RN AGEDARE - 8I#
R RMER IR BB BER
PREBTEARRMAZIADRIIEP K-
BESN - R ET R E AR i KEVE
B RERAITERTRINEL TS - 20
PIE1TRE . [iSee | BIBE S TX4.0¥ 5
ARAFPEREFEANBEL BPWEE
BER HMeEBERBEEFeRNER
MIEMABZXENENERREENERE
AR o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEBWAR DN (&)

During the year, the production bases situated in Dongguan
and Wuxi implemented various streamlining of organization
structure and production processes in order to achieve lower
unit production costs and overhead costs. Looking ahead to the
upcoming fiscal year, while we believe our product quality and
innovative applications are competitive, however the market
conditions are certain to be extremely challenging. Stakeholders
in certain industries such as automotive, consumer electronics,
household appliances, were hopeful to see a rebound in market
demands for the upcoming year. We will continue to perform
stringent cash flow and cost controls as prudent measures.

For the extrusion machines and rubber injection machines
business, growth rate in sales turnover and profitability were
encouraging during the year. Amid challenging overall market
conditions, this business recorded strong growth in niche
market applications especially five-layer co-extrusion machines
for automotive fuel pipes and rubber injection machines for
automotive door seals connection. After years of significant
efforts to refine management structure, diverting resources into
niche market applications, and overall effort to raise quality and
reliability of our machines, customer support in key markets
were encouraging. Export sales also recorded strong growth
compared to same time last year, such as the Middle East, South
Korea, Europe, and India markets. Equipped with our competitive
offerings in unique machine features and reliability, we are
cautiously optimistic for this business to sustain organic growth in
the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Plastic Products Manufacturing and Processing Business
During this past year, the plastic food packaging production
plant in Zhuhai province recorded a slight drop in sales revenue
mainly attributed by customers’ product launch cycles in first half
of the year. Sales growth and profit drivers continued to be in-
mold labelled folding cap seals and scoops for dairy products. On
the production front, we continued dedicated improvements in
hygiene, quality control, customized automation and production
processes. Deployment of smart digital platform with real-time
data exchange connected with our machineries, helped reduce
scrap rates and production downtime. Our focus to invest in
smart and customized automation equipment will continue in
coming years, to further enhance quality, production efficiency
and cost savings. Furthermore, we directed efforts to develop
new customers and new innovative products, such as multi-colour
seal caps and newer sleek designs for existing products. Demands
from customers in dairy and consumer packaged foods industries
are forecast to be stable despite challenging macro-economic
conditions. For the upcoming year, efforts and resources will
continue to deploy in digital systems and smart automation, as
well as new customer and product development. Our existing
high standards of practice of hygienic production will serve our
customers well and fit into new market trends of high quality,
sanitary, innovative health supplements and foods packaging
products.

The production plant in Hefei that specializes in plastic
component manufacturing for home appliances recorded
comparable sales as compared to same period last year, as we
executed the plan to focus on quality of sales orders rather than
continuous ramp up on sales volume. At the same time, we
continued to streamline management structure and production
processes to achieve lower direct labour unit cost. While striving
for improved production efficiencies, we also focused on cash
flow management and balance sheet items to strengthen overall
financial health of the business.

EEEmLE D (&)

EBRmHUERMITER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEBWAR DN (&)

Investments in specialized innovative plastic injection technologies
and applications, namely blow molded plastic mannequins
and multi-colour injection molding provided mixed results
for the year. The blow molded plastic mannequins business
achieved preliminary success on adoption from key customers
to replace traditional glass fibre retail display items. After years
of development, we are optimistic sales volume should ramp
up in the coming year. For the multi-colour injection molding
business that specializes in high volume gift and premium plastic
components, sales volume increased compared to same period
last year. We expect this business to deliver sales growth while
investments in production automation should deliver improved
results in the upcoming year.

PCB Processing and Trading Business

During the year sales turnover for the PCB processing business
decreased slightly compared to same period last year due to
a number of factors. Overall adverse effects of the US-China
trade disputes caused a number of project delays for our
customers. Market sentiments and demands from Electronics
Manufacturing Services “"EMS” factories in the PRC were weak.
In addition, reduced overall demands caused fierce competition
within the PCB processing industry. PCB deliveries to European
automotive customers were also lower than expected. Orders
from the gaming industry rebounded in the second half of year
after a relatively weak sales volume in the first half. Production
equipment customized for higher end high density interconnect
(HDI) PCBs were online in the third quarter. Orders for HDI PCBs
were obtained as forecasted. Meanwhile, we focused on raising
productivity rate for HDI production and achieved satisfactory
fixed cost controls. For the upcoming year, while competition
within the PCB processing industry is expected to remain fierce,
we expect its major customers’ orders to at least remain stable.
We will strive to provide additional PCB design services, increase
in-depth marketing development, and to apply for certification
for medical device standards, and will also take financial
prudence and strict cost control measures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Regarding the PCB trading business, sales turnover and gross
profit dropped slightly compared to last year. Due to adverse
market sentiments in the electronics industries, we observed
delayed order placement and a portion of orders shifted outside
of the PRC. We were proactive to broaden customer and product
portfolio, as well as refining management structure and costs
control. Efforts in new business development broadened our
product portfolio such as trading of PCB raw materials and
electronics components. Our PCB testing centre was successfully
launched in second half of the year, and began providing PCB
testing services to several major customers. We shall focus on
global business development, serving customers in high end
telecommunications markets, and grow the scale of PCB raw
materials trading business for the coming year.

Industrial Consumables Trading Business

Operating results for the industrial consumables trading business
experienced a significant drop mainly attributed to the adverse
impacts of the US-China trade disputes. A number of industry
sectors where we serve our key customers displayed weakness
in demands, such as automotive, machinery, electronics, semi-
conductors, elevators, etc. Although overall performance was
improved in the second half, it was not adequate to cover the
lagging results earlier in the year. We are deepening key customer
relationships, reshuffling product portfolio, costs control, and
inventory management. Amid a bleak operating environment,
the business saw encouraging opportunities in providing special
metals for the medical industry, servo solutions for lithium
batteries, and automation solutions for various manufacturing
sectors. For the upcoming year, while we are confident business
performance should improve after certain restructuring and
management reorganization, this business is sensitive to overall
market sentiments in the broad manufacturing sectors in the
PRC which are likely to inflict negative financial impact to this
business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEBWAR DN (&)

Subsequent Events

In early 2020, due to the outbreak of the novel coronavirus
(COVID-19) epidemic across the PRC, implications created
unprecedented stress in manufacturing sectors and will continue
to disrupt supply chains, logistics, and consumer demands that
are likely to inflict negative financial impact to each business of
the Group. We will take appropriate measures as necessary on
each business and continue to assess the impact of the epidemic
on the Group’s business operations and financial performance.
Given the serious and rapidly changing nature of the COVID-19
outbreak, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of its impacts on the Group’s financial position, cash flows
and operating results as at the date of this report. Other than
disclosed above, there is no subsequent event after the reporting
period which has material impact to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s total outstanding bank
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$353,219,000
(31 December 2018: approximately HK$377,163,000) which
comprised mainly bank loans and trade finance facilities. The
bank borrowings repayable within one year and in the second to
the fifth year amounted to approximately HK$299,843,000 and
HK$53,376,000 respectively (31 December 2018: approximately
HK$357,052,000 and HK$20,111,000 respectively).

After including lease liabilities and obligations under finance
leases of approximately HK$63,302,000 (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$7,075,000) and deducting cash and bank
balances of approximately HK$312,633,000 (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$339,702,000), the Group’s net borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$103,888,000 (31 December
2018: approximately HK$44,536,000). Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders as at 31 December 2019 was approximately
HK$1,171,669,000 (31
HK$1,183,569,000).

December 2018: approximately
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The net debt to equity ratio (calculated as net borrowings divided
by total equity attributable to equity shareholders) increased to
8.9% as at 31 December 2019, attributable by an increase of
lease liabilities to approximately HK$63,302,000 when the Group
had first adopted Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 16
Leases during the year. The overall cash flow position and debt
maturity profile of the Group maintained at a healthy level.

The Group's financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group carried out its business transactions mainly in
Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, United States dollars and Japanese
Yen. As the Hong Kong dollar remained pegged to the United
States dollar, there was no material exchange risk in this respect.
The Group continues to monitor its foreign exchange exposure
in Japanese Yen and Renminbi and enter into forward contracts
when necessary. The Group’s long-term bank loans were
denominated mainly in Hong Kong dollars and carried interest
at floating rates. Credit risk was hedged mainly through credit
insurance.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There was no change in the total number of issued shares
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
total number of issued shares of the Company remained at
861,930,692 shares at 31 December 2019.

Subscription of New Shares

On 30 April 2018, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with Cosmos Holdings and Saniwell, pursuant to
which the Company has allotted and issued, and Cosmos
Holdings and Saniwell subscribed for 108,750,000 Shares and
36,250,000 Shares respectively at a subscription price of HK$0.55
per subscription share (the “Subscription”). All conditions
precedent in respect of the subscription agreement have been
fulfilled and the Subscription took place on 27 June 2018. Upon
completion, an aggregate of 145,000,000 new Shares have
been duly allotted and issued to Cosmos Holdings and Saniwell.
Accordingly, immediately after completion, the Company had
861,930,692 Shares in issue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEBWAR DN (&)

Use of Net Proceeds from Subscription of New Shares

The total gross proceeds from the Subscription amounted to
HK$79,750,000. Pursuant to Company's announcement dated
30 April 2018 and Company's circular dated 19 May 2018, the
net proceeds raised from the Subscription was approximately
HK$76,800,000 after deducting related professional fees and
expenses and the net subscription price was approximately
HK$0.52 per subscription share. However, the amount of related
professional fees and expenses increased by approximately
HK$676,000 thereafter. As such, the actual net proceeds raised
from the Subscription was approximately HK$76,124,000 (the
“Actual Net Proceeds”) and the net subscription price was
approximately HK$0.52 per subscription share.

The Company used the Actual Net Proceeds as set out in the
heading “Reasons for the Subscription and Use of Proceeds”
of the Company’s circular dated 19 May 2018. There was no
material delay or change in the use of Actual Net Proceeds during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

Details of the Subscription, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 30 April 2018, 27 June 2018 and 29 October
2019, circular of the Company dated 19 May 2018, supplemental
circular of the Company dated 2 June 2018, and annual report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 published by
the Company on 16 April 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEWL KD (&)

An analysis of the utilization of the Actual Net Proceeds from HREEBEZKBHA T — /\FE XA

the date of completion of the Subscription, 27 June 2018 to 31 —++HZEZ-_Z—AFE+-_A=+—HBHEK
December 2019 is set out below: FRIERIBFR 2 BEsTmT:

Utilized Actual Utilized Actual Unutilized Actual

Net Proceeds for Net Proceeds for Net Proceeds

Planned use the year ended the year ended as at

of Actual 31 December 31 December 31 December

Intended use Net Proceeds 2018 2019 2019

BE-Z2-N\&§ BE-_Z-N%F R-ZE—RE
+ZA=+—-HBt +=ZBA=+-HL +=ZA=+-H

BRFERE CEHABKRHRE CHAEEFRS RBAER
RERR BEEAAR REFH REFE FREFERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET FET
Funding and working capital in machinery manufacturing
business, plastic products processing business and
industrial supplies trading business
FREBMERERER TR MMTEBIAR
TRERREIEBZEARRDER 22,800 5,500 17,300 -
Research and development in machinery manufacturing
business
BWMBLERE B TIE 15,200 1,950 13,2502 -
Investment in plants and machineries in machinery
manufacturing business, plastic products processing
business and industrial supplies trading business
RENBMEERE TRHAMIEBIAR
IXHEREMBIEB BB KR 19,000 2,250 16,750® -
Restructuring in machinery manufacturing business
BRAEXKNESR 7,600 1,300 6,300 -
Repayment of bank loans
BERITER 11,400 4,200 7,200® -
Total
At 76,000 15,200 60,800 -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEBWAR DN (&)

Notes:

(1) Approximately HK$17,300,000 was utilized for funding and working
capital in machinery manufacturing business, plastic products
processing business and industrial supplies trading business,
including settlement of general overheads and other operating
expenses.

(2) Approximately HK$13,250,000 was utilised for development of
injection molding machines and rubber injection machines, including
upgrading existing products with new features, employment of
engineering and technical staff and purchases of raw materials.

(3) Approximately HK$16,750,000 was utilised for purchase of
machineries, furniture, fixtures and equipment and tools.

(4) Approximately HK$6,300,000 was utilised for employees lay-off
expenses.

(5) Approximately HK$7,200,000 was utilised for further repayment of
bank loans of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, all the Actual Net
Proceeds have been fully utilized and applied for these intended
uses as stipulated in the Company's circular dated 19 May 2019.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
There were no material acquisitions and disposals by the Group
during this year.

EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION POLICY AND
TRAINING SCHEME

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 2,993 employees
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China (31 December 2018:
approximately 3,320). The remuneration policy regarding the
employees of the Group is based on qualifications, competence
and the performance of the employees as well as the prevailing
market condition of the industry. Employees’ benefits include
retirement benefits and medical insurance coverage.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The Group had also provided training programmes or courses
for the mainland staff at all levels from different departments,
and also for Directors and employees of the Company so as to
further enhance their technical skills in production operation and
management, professional skills and knowledge, respectively.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the remuneration
committee of the Company, having regard to individual
performance, the Group's performance and profitability,
remuneration benchmark in the industry and prevailing market
condition.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to upcoming fiscal year, the macro economic
outlook is certain to be extremely challenging. Although the US-
China trade disputes temporarily paused tensions and concerns
after the two countries reached a phase one trade deal in January
2020, we forecast more economic risks and uncertainties ahead,
as the leading global powers clash on a number of fronts other
than trade tensions. Trade tariffs are still in place, while new ones
and counter tariffs can be swiftly implemented with short notice.
Market sentiments especially in the manufacturing sectors in
Mainland China, where the Group mainly conducts its business,
are expected to remain weak and uncertain. Prospects for key
markets such as automotive, machinery, electric appliances,
consumer electronics, and infrastructures are not optimistic
for sizable rebounds. Performance in these markets segments,
and others, highly impact our Group's business in machinery
manufacturing, plastic processing, industrial consumables trading
and PCB businesses. As the PRC manufacturing capabilities and
supply chain is highly integrated to global economic activities,
low forecasted economic growth in the US, Europe, Japan, South
Korea, and dozens of emerging economies, will further impede
China’s manufacturing sectors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEBWAR DN (&)

Further to the aforementioned highlighting the impact of the
novel coronavirus (COVID-19) epidemic, we believe disruptions
to supply chains, loss or delay of customer orders and logistics,
can be short term and limited, if the epidemic subsides quickly.
However, at the time of writing, the spread of the Epidemic is
far from being limited to the PRC. The risk of a global near-
pandemic is real and concerning. Economic, social, and political
impact on such a grim scenario is devastating and far reaching.
In order to stimulate growth and assist companies’ path back to
normal activities, the Chinese government will implement a broad
spectrum of stimulus measures. We are hopeful such measures
can partially alleviate the sudden and severe impact on our
business, and to all Chinese people.

Amid the challenges we are certain to confront, we will rise to
the occasion. We are aware of and have been positioning our
business to expand our reach in high potential market segments
such as 5G telecommunications, new energy vehicles, semi-
conductors, food and health products packaging, medical devices
and smart automation solutions. Our machinery manufacturing
business will continue to invest and develop innovative
machinery solutions for specialized application and smart digital
platforms. The plastic processing business will further deploy
smart digital software and tools to drive production efficiencies
while expanding and deepening customer relationships. As
for industrial and consumables trading business will strive to
safeguard our existing market share while focusing on providing
new products and solutions to high potential markets. The
PCB processing and trading businesses will proceed to serve
sophisticated customers’ needs, invest in new technologies, and
expand our high-end customer portfolio.

The top priority of the Group for the coming year is to manage
financial resources and risks. Cash flow management and
deployment within the Group are crucial during these trying
times. Capital expenditures and operating expenditures will be
scrutinized for their value. In addition, the Group will devote
increased efforts on internal audit and overall corporate
governance.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
EEkSNEEAEBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Tang To, aged 71, was appointed as the chairman of the
Board (the “Chairman”) and executive Director on 18 September
1997. Mr. Tang also acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. He is the chairman of each of the nomination
committee and committee of executive Directors of the Company.
On 28 May 2010, he was appointed as the director of Suzhou
Sanguang Science and Technology Co., Ltd., a company listed
on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations and is an
associated company of the Company. Mr. Tang has over 40 years
of experience in manufacturing and trading businesses. Mr.
Tang is the father of Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman. As at the date of
this annual report, Mr. Tang is a director of certain substantial
shareholders of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.

Mr. Wong Yiu Ming, aged 66, joined the Group in 1978 and
was appointed as an executive Director on 23 June 1997. He was
subsequently appointed as the general manager of the Company
on 1 February 1999 and acted as a chief executive officer of
the Company from 12 September 2005 to 30 June 2013, and
was appointed as an executive vice chairman of the Company
on 15 January 2015. He is a member of committee of executive
Directors of the Company. Mr. Wong also acts as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. He is currently a general
manager of various subsidiaries of the Company which are
engaged in the manufacturing of machinery. He holds a Bachelor
of Science degree in Engineering and a Master degree in Business
Administration. Mr. Wong has over 40 years of experience in
sales, marketing and corporate management. On 16 November
2007, he was appointed as the director of Suzhou Sanguang
Science and Technology Co., Ltd., a company listed on the
National Equities Exchange and Quotations and is an associated
company of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

EERSREEABHE (&)

Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman, aged 42, joined the Group in 2006 and
was appointed as an executive Director and chief executive officer
of the Company (the "Chief Executive Officer”) on 18 March
2011 and 1 July 2013 respectively. Mr. Tang is a member of each
of nomination committee and committee of executive Directors
of the Company. He also acts as a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Prior to joining the Group, he had worked
in various commercial banks. Mr. Tang graduated from The
University of Western Ontario in Canada and holds a Bachelor of
Arts degree in Economics and a Diploma in Financial Planning.
He is the son of Mr. Tang To. As at the date of this annual report,
Mr. Tang is a director of certain substantial shareholders of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Mei Zheqi, aged 42, joined the Group in 2000 and was
appointed as an executive Director on 28 August 2018. He
is a member of the committee of executive Directors of the
Company. Mr. Mei graduated from the School of Accounting of
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law with a Master degree
in Management. He is a non-practising member of The Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is currently a
general manager of two subsidiaries of the Company, which are
engaged in the leasing and factoring businesses respectively, and
a supervisor of a subsidiary of the Company, which is engaged in
the plastic products processing business.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Kan Wai Wah, aged 62, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 22 May 1998. He holds a High Diploma in
Accountancy. He has over 30 years of experience in corporate
strategy and corporate management. Mr. Kan is the son of
Ms. Law Kit Fong, a substantial Shareholder. As at the date of
this annual report, Mr. Kan is a director of certain substantial
shareholders of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

Mr. Qu Jinping, aged 62, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 8 September 2006. He is currently the professor and
doctoral supervisor in the School of Mechanical and Automotive
Engineering of The South China University of Technology. Mr.
Qu acted as vice president of The South China University of
Technology and elected as an academician of The Chinese
Academy of Engineering in 2011. He holds a Bachelor degree and
a Master degree in Engineering from The South China University
of Technology in 1982 and 1987 respectively, and a Doctorate
degree in Engineering from The Sichuan University in 1999. He
has been engaged in scientific research and teaching in polymer
dynamic plasticizing processing technology and equipment for
over 30 years and achieved a number of world-first scientific and
technology achievements.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan,
independent non-executive Director on 18 June 2004. She is the

aged 54, was appointed as an

chairman of audit committee of the Company and a member
of each of nomination committee and remuneration committee
of the Company. Ms. Yeung holds a Master degree in Business
Administration. She is a member of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA), and an associate member of
each of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
(ICSA) and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
(HKICS).
companies. She has over 20 years of experience in the finance

Ms. Yeung held senior financial positions in several

sector.

Mr. Cheng Tak Yin, aged 81, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 January 2007. He is the chairman
of the remuneration committee of the Company and a member
of each of audit committee and nomination committee of the
Company. Currently, he is the life honorary chairman, deputy
secretary general and standing committee member of Hong Kong
and Kowloon Machinery and Instrument Merchants Association
Limited. Mr. Cheng has over 40 years of experience in business
management.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

EERSREEABHE (&)

Mr. Ho Wei Sem, aged 72, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 21 December 2010. He is a member
of each of nomination committee, remuneration committee and
audit committee of the Company. Mr. Ho had been working in
various government authorities in Dongguan for over 40 years.
He was the director general of Dongguan Municipal and Public
Utilities Management Bureau and Dongguan Urban Integrated
Management Bureau from 2000 to 2007. From 1996 to 2000,
he was the officer of Dongguan Management Committee. From
1990 to 1996, he was the deputy director general of The Urban
and Rural Planning Bureau of Dongguan Municipal, and he was
the deputy supervisor of the Preparation Committee of Dongguan
City Government from 1988 to 1990. Mr. Ho has extensive
experience in management.

Mr. Huang Zhi Wei, aged 81, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 2 November 2012. Mr. Huang
graduated from The Huazhong University of Science &
Technology, majoring in electrical engineering. Mr. Huang worked
in the PRC government authorities for over 10 years. He served as
the deputy director general of Guangdong Commission of Foreign
Trade & Economic Cooperation and the director of General of
Guangdong Board of Investment from 1993 to 2000. From 1984
to 1992, he served as the executive officer of Foshan Economic
Committee. Mr. Huang worked as the engineer at power plant
in Foshan for almost 10 years. From 1981 to 1984, he served as
the chief engineer and deputy general manager of a household
electrical appliances corporation in Foshan.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Man Chi Fai, Bruno, aged 58, joined the Group in 2013.
He holds a Bachelor of Science (Mechanical Engineering) in
The University of London and a Master Science in Engineering
(Industrial Management and Manufacturing) in The University of
Hong Kong. Mr. Man is a member of each of The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers (HKIE) and The Institution of Electrical
Engineers in the United Kingdom (IEE). He had worked in various
sizeable corporations. Mr. Man is currently the general manager
of various subsidiaries of the Company which are engaged in
the plastic food packaging processing business. He also holds
directorship in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Man has
over 20 years of experience in plastic injection molding, metals
manufacturing, molds design and manufacturing, manufacturing
assembly process management and project management.

Mr. Ye Yueran, aged 46, joined the Group in 2002. He has over
10 years of experience in manufacturing of machinery. Mr. Yip
is currently the general manager of various subsidiaries of the
Company which are engaged in the manufacturing of rubber
injection machines, extrusion lines and hydraulic presses. He also
holds directorship in certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Yip Kar Shun, aged 72, joined the Group in 1994. He
has over 30 years of experience in electronic production and
management. Mr. Yip is the managing director of various
subsidiaries of the Company which are engaged in the PCB
processing and trading businesses. He also holds directorship in
certain subsidiaries of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

The Board has pleasure in submitting their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Further details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group's principal activities during the year.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in
the audited consolidated financial statements on pages 106 to
284 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: HK$0.02
per share).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of operations

The Group recorded net profit of approximately HK$24,884,000
for the year as compared with net profit of approximately
HK$88,752,000 from the previous year. Further details in respect
of the fair review of the Group’s businesses, please refer to
the sections “CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT” and “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS"of this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial position and results and business operations
may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties relating
to the Group’s businesses. The Group believes that the internal
control and risk management systems are in place to mitigate
risks present in our business operations and secure the Group's
financial position as efficient and effective as possible, and hence
maintain a sustainable business growth.

Through the Group's internal control and risk management
processes, including identify, assess and monitor risks with
proactive oversight and robust business management system.
Certain risks may be beyond the Group's control, the Group will
take necessary measures to mitigate its impact. The risks and
uncertainties set out below are known to the Group during the
year under review:

Market risks

Macroeconomic changes and concentration risk

The Group's businesses are sensitive to the global economic
environment. In 2019, the global economy trade flows were
clouded by uncertainties prevailing in the external environment.
The US-Sino trade war has weighed on global economic
sentiment and activities. The prevailing political and economic
uncertainties should continue to affect manufacturing industries,
particularly in Mainland China, where the Group conducts its
business. The Group has implemented various diversification
and penetration strategies on customer and product portfolios
through product development and tuning the business model to
mitigate the adverse impact due from economic downturn and to
reduce the dependency on specific customer segments.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEGHEE (B)

Keen market competition market and pricing pressure

The Group must compete on both price and product know-
how as multinational, regional or niche competitors attempt
to increase its market share. There is intensive competitive
pressure to reduce selling price thus deteriorating the Group's
profitability. Additionally, sales volumes may fluctuate as the
Group’s customers are also subject to competitive pressure.
The Group has continuously sought productivity and efficiency
improvements through development of cost-effective solutions
and implementation of key performance indicators.

Operation risks

The risk of loss resulting from the Group’s operations due to
supply chain instability which may result in an unfavorable
impact on business. The Group may experience a periodic or
sudden shortage of materials while temporarily unable to procure
substitutes at reasonable prices, that could lead to unable to
fulfill customers’ expectations and missed sales opportunities.
The Group manages this risk by ensuring supply chain resilience
including strictly selecting suppliers with quality assurance, good
reputation, high credibility and suppliers who are honest in co-
operation, and continuously extending sourcing channels and
strengthening inventory control management. The Group has
been effectively monitoring material price by staying abreast of
the latest material price movements, frequently communicating
with the suppliers.

Outbreak of highly contagious diseases
Outbreak of highly contagious diseases, like severe acute
respiratory syndrome and Middle East respiratory syndrome
etc. may have significant effects on economies of the affected
countries. An outbreak of such kind of diseases in the territories
the Group operates could disrupt the Group’s business operations
and cause a material adverse effect on the financial results. In
the first quarter of 2020, the widespread epidemic of the novel
coronavirus disease (COVID-2019) around the world has caused a
far-reaching adverse impact on global economic activities, which
would negatively affect the Group’s operations.
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Legal and regulatory compliance risks

The Group has various production plants and offices across Hong
Kong and the PRC. Any failure to comply with the regulatory
changes in the territories in which it operates may result in non-
compliance of laws, rules and regulations. Non-compliance
may result in fines, litigation or other consequences that may
have potential risks affected the operations and profitability of
the Group. The Group would monitor new ordinance(s) or the
changes in legislation with legal consultation service providers
from time to time and have internal control procedures in
place under different departments to ensure the compliance of

regulatory requirements and internal policies performed.

Financial risks

The Group is exposed to financial risks, including foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk
arising in the normal course of its business and from financial
instruments. The details of such risks are set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements from pages 260 to 277.

Certain measures to manage the impact on these potential
risks and uncertainties are described in the heading “BUSINESS
REVIEW" of the section of the “"MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS” of this annual report.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHEE (B)

EE BRERERNAR
REEBEFRBMDBEANME Z @4 ZERKFE M
PNE - WRBEET RS R EEER
AR RE BB A ETIER ERIED - TE R
SIIHEF AR FRKNEMER - FLER

AREgUAKENEENRMNELEERR
AEBNRRIOEOSOEPIREEEBEE
R ARG AR AR REPT RS A &
EERE NERETEEREMATA
BUR

BB AR
ARBERFEHBEFERLRERT
EEOHHAR DI ERR I

EBERER FERBRMREBESRER %
ﬁﬂﬁaﬁlaﬁﬁuﬁé%maEﬂ%#&%ﬁﬁﬁm%%o
ZEE277E -

BEZEEENRBMTARERS RN Y
%Z%Fiﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁiﬁ& (B Bt f
] —&heh [R5 M EE ] IR RE P

—ZT—AEEHR e+ Annual Report 2019

31



32

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EFEEREE (A

FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
The financial key performance indicators of the Group for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are summarized as

follows:

OPERATING PERFORMANCE
Revenue

Operating Profit

Profit before tax

Profit for the year

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)

KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

Total liabilities

Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders

Financial Ratios
Current ratio

Gross Profit margin
EBITDA margin (note)

Net profit margin
Net debt to equity ratio

U
2019
—E—-hEF
HK$°000
FET
BERR
WA 2,344,923
182 s A 53,894
A= 39,075
AN F E 24,884
SRERAF (L) 1.83
BRMEER
e RIRTTEH 312,633
BEEMRE 2,603,889
BEBE 1,217,448
[EY R Eay EE
1,171,669
2019
—ZE-NF
Bt =&
MENLE X 1.6
FEH = 16.1%
REtF B BIE WER
BRI RFE (H) 4.4%
FE R E 1.1%
BEEALE 8.9%
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2018
—E-)N\F
HK$'000
FETT

2,682,452
76,987
108,219
88,752
9.36

339,702
2,731,693
1,331,408

1,183,569
2018
—EF-)N\F
1.5

16.3%
6.8%

3.3%
3.8%

Change

#h
=

-12.6%
-30.0%
-63.9%
-72.0%
-80.4%

-8.0%
-4.7%
-8.6%

-1.0%
Change
)

N/A 38 A
-0.2%
-2.4%

-2.2%
N/A i A



Note:

EBITDA margin is calculated as EBITDA divided by revenue. The following
table sets forth the calculation of EBITDA:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHEE (B)

Bt

REFFIE - BEIE 4B K 3 A RO B R R AR & A
SHE HERBHEANANGUKATE-T
RETIREME BHE TERBHENNRNZF

=

2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before tax W B A1 A 39,075 108,219
Add/(less): m/CR) -
Unused provision for restructuring reversed EEAB AN EERE (20,290) (19,612)
Reversal of provision of indemnity BB EE E RS (25,780) -
Finance costs s E M 24,958 21,856
Depreciation and amortisation on: e Ry
— Ownership interest in leasehold land —BREET W REFHMEEER
and buildings held for own use 14,292 14,559
— Other owned assets —HthEBEAE 55,225 53,861
— Assets held under finance lease —RMEHEEE - 976
— Leasehold land and land use rights —HE T R - 1,350
— Intangible assets —EREE 1,383 1,384
— Right-of-use assets —FREEE 14,967 -
EBITDA REFIE - BE MEREHAORF 103,830 182,593
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF THE GROUP’S AEERBRRER

BUSINESS

In the view that uncertainty is one of the main challenges facing
by the PRC economy, the performance of various businesses
of the Group might be affected unless cost saving and risk
mitigation measures are implemented properly. Details of
future development of the Group's businesses, please refer to
the sections “CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT” and”MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS"of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEGHEE (B)

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
The Group complies with the applicable environmental laws, rules
and regulations on the prevention and control of wastage, waste
gases emissions and sewage discharges in Hong Kong and the
PRC during the production process. Various measures have been
implemented within the Group, such as measures on effective
energy conservation to reduce the use of energy and water, and
measures on managing the reduction of waste and reduction
of greenhouse gas emissions. Detailed discussion on the
environmental policies and performance of the Group is set out in
the section “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year under review, there was no material breach of
or non-compliance with the laws and regulations applicable to
the Group. Apart from complying with Hong Kong laws such as
the Companies Ordinance, Listing Rules, SFO and Employment
Ordinance, we have also complied with laws of the PRC,
including the Company Law of the PRC ( (MBI R R%E) ),
Labour Law of the PRC ( {(FRE & &)%) ), Labour Contract
Law of the PRC ( (R EI&E)& FJA) ), Measures for Enterprise
Annuities ( (IEEF S PE) ), relevant laws, rules and
regulations in relation to child and forced labour including the
Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour ( (ZEIH{E A=
THREY ) and the laws of the PRC on the Protection of Minors
( ChBEIARKREAREZE)Y ), as well as other environmental laws,
relevant rules, ordinances and regulations on the prevention and
control of wastage, waste gases and sewage emission. These
laws, ordinances and regulations include but not limited to the
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC ( (P EIIRIFIREE) ),
the Environmental Protection Tax Law of the PRC ( {#F EIIRIE IR
#Fi%) ), the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution
of the PRC ( (FREI KR IFHEMIAAE) ), the Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the PRC ( {FBKSFEIEE) ),
the Waste Disposal Ordinance, Environmental Quality Standard
for Surface Water ( {(#hR/KIRFEMERE) ), Wastewater
Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal Sewers ( 57Kk
AR R KGE/KERZ¥#) ), and Solid Wastes of Prevention and
Control Law of the PRC ( {H B & 88 R W15 RIRIFFIAIE) ) etc.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group’s success also depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise employees, customers, suppliers,
Shareholders, government and regulators, as well as banks.

Employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable
assets of the Group. Most of the management have been serving
the Group for a long period of time. The Group offers competitive
salaries and benefits and also provides training programmes
or courses for the Mainland China employees at all levels from
different departments, as well as Directors and employees of the
Company in order to further enhance their management skills,
expertise and knowledge, and at the same time, make continual
contribution to the Group. Different activities such as annual
dinners, celebration of staff's birthday and ball games had been
organized by various business units of the Group for general
staffs together with the management to participate in order to
strengthening their partnership and communication.

Customers

The major customers of injection molding machines
manufacturing business are the automotive components and
plastic components for home appliances manufacturers. Most of
them have been customers for more than 3 years and in return
of their loyalty, we provide them with good quality products and
after-sale services.

Suppliers

The major suppliers of injection molding machines manufacturing
business are the injection molding machine castings suppliers.
Most of the have been suppliers for more than 5 years and have
maintained good relationship with them in order to achieve cost-
effectiveness and obtain long-term commercial benefits.

Shareholders

The major Shareholders are Cosmos Holdings and its controlled
corporations, China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and
minority Shareholders. It is grateful to have Shareholders who are
being supportive to the Group for a long period of time.
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Government and Regulators

It is important for us to maintain good relationships with local
officials to anticipate legal or regulatory changes or community
developments that may affect our business. In view of the need
to maintain good relationship, we have arranged occasional visits
and face-to-face meetings whenever necessary.

Banks

Banks serve as the lenders of our Group in providing finance in
our businesses operation and development, include trade finance
and fixed assets purchasing. We maintain stable relationship with
banks through regular meetings and visits.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 285 of
this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the “Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity” on page 111 of this annual
report and in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company's reserves available
for distribution, as calculated in accordance with the sections
291, 297 and 299 of the Companies Ordinance, amounted to
approximately HK$490,810,000.
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DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made around HK$30,000 of donation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
“Directors and Senior Management’s Biographies” on pages 23
to 27 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Mr. Qu Jingping, Mr. Huang Zhi Wei and Mr. Ho Wei Sem were
agreed to waive their Directors’ fees under their letters of
appointment. No payment shall be made by the Company to
such Directors during the year ended 31 December 2019. Further
details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 10A to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tang To (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Yiu Ming (Executive Vice Chairman)
Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Mei Zheqi

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kan Wai Wah
Mr. Qu Jinping

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan

Mr. Cheng Tak Yin

Mr. Ho Wei Sem

Mr. Huang Zhi Wei

The Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with article 102 of the Articles. Messrs. Wong Yiu Ming, Tang Yu,
Freeman, Yeung Shuk Fan and Ho Wei Sem will retire from office
by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year and up to the date of this report, the persons
who served as directors of the subsidiaries of the Company
include Messrs. Cao Xiaowei, Chen Leiming, Ching Shuk Kwan,
Diao Junde, Du Jiang, Fang Xirong, Ho Kwong Sang, Hu Ping, Hui
Oi Chun, Hui Wai Kee, Jiang Nan*, Jiang Shufeng, Kwok Chi Kin,
Law Moon Wah*, Lu Hank, Man Chi Fai, Bruno, Man Wai Hong,
Bernard*, Miao Hongliang, Tang To, Tang Yu, Freeman, Tsutsumi
Keiji, Wan Ming*, Wong Yiu Ming, Xie Jie, Yatsugi Atsushi, Yan
Yip Kar
Shun, Yip Kin Keung, Zhang Xiaochen, Zhao Weirong and Zhu

Dong*, Ye Qingzhong, Ye Yueran, Yeung Yuk Lun*,

Wenguang.

The persons marked with an asterisk* are no longer to be the directors of
the subsidiaries of the Company as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the headings
Positions in Shares, Debentures or Underlying Shares under the
SFO”
time during the year or at the end of the year has been/was the

“Directors’ Interests and Short

and “Related Party Transactions” of this report, at no
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) has entered into a letter of appointment
setting out the key terms and conditions of his/her appointment
as Director with the Company for a term of three years. They are
all subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least every
three years at annual general meeting in accordance with the
Articles.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Although three of the independent non-executive Directors,
Messrs. Yeung Shuk Fan, Cheng Tak Yin and Ho Wei Sem have
been serving the Board for more than nine years, they have
not engaged in any executive management of the Group. Their
familiarity and extensive experience with the Group's businesses
place them in a better position to contribute independent views
to the Company. Taking into consideration of their independent
scope of works when performing duties as independent non-
executive directors over the past years, there is no evidence
that length of tenure is having an adverse impact on their
independence. Therefore, the Company considers all independent
non-executive Directors are independent throughout the year
under review.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

Saved as the related party transactions as disclosed in note 44
to the consolidated financial statements and in the heading
“Related Party Transactions” below, no Director and his/her
entity connected had a material interest, directly or indirectly,
in a transaction, arrangement or contract or a proposed
transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant in relation
to the Group's businesses to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage in respect of legal actions brought
for committed or alleged wrongful acts against the Directors
and officers of the Group throughout the year, but exclude any
criminal, dishonest or fraudulent acts or omission.

The Articles provide that every Director or other officer or auditor
of the Company shall be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against any liability, loss or expenditure incurred by him
in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, which
relate to anything done or omitted to be done by him as Director,
officer or auditor of the Company and in which judgment is given
in his favour or in which he is acquitted, or incurred in connection
with any application in which relief is granted to him by the
court from liability in respect of any such act or omission or from
liability to pay any amount in respect of shares acquired by a
nominee of the Company.

The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit
of the Directors as required by section 470 of the Companies
Ordinance when the report of the directors prepared by the
Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the
Companies Ordinance.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN HRIE (ESRHBE&KH)) EERK
SHARES, DEBENTURES OR UNDERLYING SHARES 1 EEZZHEAROZEZRAXAE
UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2019, save for the interests of the Directors RZ-ZZ—AF+_A=+—"H BREZ=MF

in the Shares set out as below, none of the Directors had APz (ABFEBHN TN &&F
any interests and short positions in the Shares, debentures or FERARQ T KEEIEEEE (1 (FHAH
underlying Shares or any of its associated corporations (within the — &1§1) FEXVERZEE ) 2 - ElEH @ME
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had to be notified to the BN+ MEHEEE (BHFELHAEEN) F
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and XV*E%W}S“*HD AR A R B R P 2 AR A
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions # & &A R (BIERE (BHMBEEF) R
which he/she was taken or deemed to have under such provisions  EHEIEREETRA 2 HEZ LR R)  INEE
of the SFO) or which were required pursuant to section 352 of HBZAERE (BHEMBEKH) F35265 LR
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred therein or which R #% % 1§ 677 B St AE 15 12 4 <7 BI 8 A AN ST
were required to be disclosed herein pursuant to the Model Code. & Z Lz KA R o

Long position in Shares or underlying Shares:

REBROREEBRG 2T E:
Number of Shares Held Anproximate
GLULE pp% of the
Personal Family Corporate Other Total number of total number of
Name of Directors Interests Interests Interests Interests Shares held issued Shares
REERTRY
BgEZ
E=pg BAER REER PEER A BERGBAHE BREAN
Tang To 4,970,005 226,000 445,617,458 @ - 450,813,463 52.30
Wong Yiu Ming 9,468,000 - - - 9,468,000 1.10
EIEH
Tang Yu, Freeman - - 442,157,052 @ - 442,157,052 51.30
HE
Kan Wai Wah 136,400 - - - 136,400 0.02
EEE
Cheng Tak Yin 1,406,000 - - - 1,406,000 0.16
g8
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Notes:

(M

The 2,000 Shares held by the spouse of Mr. Tang To and 224,000
Shares held by Mr. Tang To and his spouse jointly.

The 445,617,458 Shares in which Mr. Tang To was deemed to
hold interests under the SFO, comprised (i) 3,460,406 Shares held
by Ginta Company Limited (incorporated in Hong Kong) which
is wholly-owned by Fullwin Limited (incorporated in Republic of
Liberia), which in turn is owned as to 50% by Mr. Tang To and 50%
by his spouse respectively; (ii) 405,907,052 Shares held by Codo
through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Tai Shing, Hung Cheong and
Cosmos Holdings; and (iii) 36,250,000 Shares held by Saniwell (as
the trustee of The Saniwell Trust, the beneficiaries of which include
Mr. Tang To and certain of his family members) which in turn is
owned as to 57.14% by Mr. Tang To.

The 442,157,052 Shares in which Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman was
deemed to hold interests under the SFO, comprised (i) 405,907,052
Shares held by Codo through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Tai
Shing, Hung Cheong and Cosmos Holdings; and (ii) 36,250,000
Shares held by Saniwell which in turn is owned as to 42.86% by Mr.
Tang Yu, Freeman.

Other than the holdings disclosed above, none of the Directors,
chief executives and their associates had any interests or short

positions in any Shares, debentures or underlying Shares or any of
the Company’s associated corporations at 31 December 2019.
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SHAREHOLDERS'

the following parties had an interest or long position or short
position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred

therein:

Long position in Shares or underlying Shares:

REOREERG 2H R

Capacity in which

INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES OR UNDERLYING SHARES
OF THE COMPANY UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2019, so far as was known to the Directors,
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Rig (ExRAERHN) BRRAA
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Number of Shares Held
BERGEE

THATRARR RO RBEKROPHEEE
RE(BHFLBE

SEBI) EXVERE2 N3N E

METUAREZ R IT R IR
ARE (EFEBEGRD) F£336HELNR
ERGHFEZEERERTORE

Total number of

(B A

Approximate
% of the
total number of

Name of Shareholder interests are held Direct Interests Deemed Interests shares held issued Shares
BEBRTRY
RR#E BERE 251 ERER BEEBE2ER BERGBAHE BYACHHEIL
Tai Shing Beneficial owner 170,104,452 - 170,104,452 19.73
EafEA
Cosmos Holdings Beneficial owner and interest of 235,802,600 170,104,452 405,907,052 47.09
controlled corporations
NGl ERRAARRHEE ER
Codo Interest of controlled corporations - 405,907,052 405,907,052 47.09
aE REEEzER
Law Kit Fong Interest of controlled corporations - 405,907,0527 405,907,052 47.09
E2n REEE R
Saniwell Beneficial owner and interest of 36,250,000 405,907,052 442,157,052 51.30
controlled corporations
EaBEARREEE 2%
China Resources (Holdings) Beneficial owner 169,649,046 - 169,649,046 19.68
Company Limited
£8(58)ARAA EaEA
CRC Bluesky Limited Interest of controlled corporations - 169,649,046% 169,649,046 19.68
REEE ER
China Resources Co., Limited Interest of controlled corporations - 169,649,046 169,649,046 19.68
ERRNERAT REEE ER
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Notes:

1. Tai Shing is wholly-owned by Hung Cheong, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Cosmos Holdings. By virtue of the SFO, Cosmos
Holdings is deemed to be interested in the 170,104,452 Shares held
by Tai Shing.

2. Cosmos Holdings is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Codo. By virtue
of the SFO, Codo is deemed to be interested in the 405,907,052
Shares held by Cosmos Holdings.

3. Codo is held as to (i) 8.37% by Elegant Power Enterprises Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong) (“Elegant Power”); and (i) 30.25%
by Friendchain Investments Limited (incorporated in Hong Kong)
("Friendchain”), which is in turn held as to 40% by Elegant Power.
Elegant Power is wholly-owned by Ms. Law Kit Fong. By virtue
of the SFO, Ms. Law Kit Fong is deemed to be interested in the
405,907,052 Shares held by Codo.

4.  Codo is held as to (i) 25.06% by Keepsound Investments Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong), which is in turn held as to 94% by
Saniwell; and (ii) 30.25% by Friendchain, which is in turn held as to
57.42% by Saniwell. By virtue of the SFO, Saniwell is deemed to be
interested in the 405,907,052 Shares held by Codo.

5. By virtue of the SFO, CRC Bluesky Limited (incorporated in British
Virgin Islands) is deemed to be interested in the 169,649,046 Shares
held by China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (incorporated
in Hong Kong), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRC Bluesky
Limited.

6. By virtue of the SFO, China Resources Co., Limited (incorporated
in the PRC) is deemed to be interested in the 169,649,046 Shares
held by CRC Bluesky Limited, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
China Resources Co., Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors
are not aware of any other persons who have interests or short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would be required to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded
as "“Related Parties” under applicable accounting standard.
These transactions mainly relate to contracts entered into by the
Group in the ordinary and usual course of business which were
negotiated on normal commercial terms and on an arm'’s length
basis. Further details are set out in note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of subsequent event occurring from the reporting period
to the date of this annual report., please refer in the heading of
"Subsequent Events” of the section “MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS” of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of any business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that requires the Company to enter
into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares was entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the Directors is considered to have
interests in the businesses which are considered to compete or
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with businesses of
the Group pursuant to rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEGHEE (B)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group's corporate governance practices and procedures are
set out in the section “Corporate Governance Report” on pages
48 to 68 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group is
based on their merit, qualifications and competence as well as
the prevailing market condition of the industry. Remuneration
packages, which include an element of discretionary bonuses, are
generally reviewed annually. The emoluments of the Directors are
decided by the remuneration committee of the Company, having
regard to individual performance, the Company’s performance
and profitability, remuneration benchmark in the industry and
prevailing market condition.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of the
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the respective
percentage of purchases attributable to the Group's five largest
suppliers and the sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers, on a combined basis, was less than 30% of the total
value of the Group’s purchases and sales.

None of the Directors, their associates or Shareholder (who to
the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company) had any beneficiary
interest in the Group's major suppliers or customers noted above.
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REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

This annual report has been reviewed by the audit committee of
the Company. Information on the main works of audit committee
of the Company and its composition are set out in the section
"Corporate Governance Report” on pages 58 to 59 of this annual
report.

AUDITOR

The Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019 have been audited by Ting Ho Kwan & Chan,
which will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board

TANG To
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREARE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board is committed to practicing and maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance for the enhancement of
Shareholders’ value and safeguarding interests of Shareholders
and other stakeholders, and reviews corporate governance
practices and procedures of the Group on a regular basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has made detailed disclosures in relation to the
accounting period covered in this report in compliance with the
requirements of the Corporate Governance Report as set out in
the CG Code. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Company has complied with all the principles and code provisions
of the CG Code, except for the following deviation from code
provisions A.2.7, A.6.7 and C.2.5 of the CG Code:

Code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code stipulates that the
chairman should at least annually hold meetings with the
independent non-executive directors without the presence of
other directors. During the year, Mr. Tang To, the Chairman of
the Board held a meeting with Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan, Mr. Cheng
Tak Yin and Mr. Huang Zhi Wei, the independent non-executive
Directors, without the presence of other Directors. However,
Mr. Ho Wei Sem, the independent non-executive Director,
was absent from the said meeting due to health reason. The
independent non-executive Directors may communicate and
discuss with the Chairman directly at any time to share their view
on the Company's affairs. The Company considers that there
are sufficient channels and communication for discussion of the
Company’s affair between the Chairman and independent non-
executive Directors in the absent of other Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code stipulates that independent
non-executive directors and non-executive directors should attend
general meetings to gain and develop a balanced understanding
of the views of shareholders. During the year under review,
Mr. Kan Wai Wah and Mr. Qu Jinping, both non-executive
Directors, and Mr. Ho Wei Sem and Mr. Huang Zhi Wei, both
independent non-executive Directors, were unable to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 13 June 2019
due to other business engagements. The Company considered
that the presence of the chairman of each of nomination
committee, remuneration committee and audit committee, and
other executive Directors at the said meeting was sufficient for
addressing the queries from Shareholders.

Code provision C.2.5 of the CG Code stipulates that the issuer
should have an internal audit function and issuers without an
internal audit function should review the need for one on an
annual basis and should disclose the reasons for the absence
of such a function in the corporate governance report. During
the year under review, the Board is aware of the importance of
internal auditor function and has reviewed the need to set up an
internal audit function. The head of internal audit department of
the Company was on board on 4 November 2019. As such, the
Company had complied with the code provision C.2.5 of the CG
Code from the same date.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Board has adopted a CMEL Code on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of the Model Code as the Company’s
code of conduct and rules governing dealing by all Directors and
relevant employees in the securities of the Company.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code and CMEL Code for the year ended 31
December 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EREBRE (F)

THE BOARD

Composition

The Board currently consists of ten members, including four
executive Directors (namely Messrs. Tang To, Wong Yiu Ming,
Tang Yu, Freeman and Mei Zheqi), two non-executive Directors
(namely Messrs. Qu Jinping and Kan Wai Wah) and four
independent non-executive Directors (namely Messrs. Yeung
Shuk Fan, Cheng Tak Yin, Ho Wei Sem and Huang Zhi Wei). The
Directors’ biographical details and the relationships among the
Board members, if any, are set out on pages 23 to 27 under the
section "Directors and Senior Management'’s Biographies” of this
annual report.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Although three of the independent non-executive Directors,
Messrs. Yeung Shuk Fan, Cheng Tak Yin and Ho Wei Sem have
been serving the Board for more than nine years, they have
not engaged in any executive management of the Group.
Their familiarity and extensive experience with the Group’s
businesses place them in a better position to contribute
independent views to the Company. Taking into consideration
of their independent scope of works when performing duties as
independent non-executive directors over the past years, there
is no evidence that length of tenure is having an adverse impact
on their independence. Therefore, the Company considered all
independent non-executive Directors (including Messes. Yeung,
Cheng and Ho) are independent throughout the year under
review.

Furthermore, all Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, should be re-elected at least once every three years at
the annual general meeting of the Company and the reasons the
nomination committee of the Company and the Board believes
that the individual to be independent are set out in the relevant
circulars. In addition to the disclosure in the section “Directors
and Senior Management'’s Biographies” of this report, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationship among members of the
Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy in compliance
with the rule 13.52 of the Listing Rules. The Company maintains
that Board appointment will take into account gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service, and any other
factors that the Board might consider relevant and applicable
from time to time towards achieving a diverse Board. The
Board will review and monitor from time to time to ensure its
effectiveness that diversity of the Board is maintained.

An analysis of the Board’s current composition is set out as
follows:

Designation Gender
B 451
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i Age
ED: Executive Directors 41-50 '.m Ii‘
HiTES
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EEER®RE (F)

Attendance Record of Directors at Meetings held during the

Year

The details of Directors’ attendance at the meetings (including

PPN

P
T

TRINRESTRAFERITH

ESRNFAFERTHNERHFELRE

BRES

the board meetings, audit committee meetings, remuneration €& BERZEe e FHEZEe e

committee meetings, nomination committee meeting and annual
general meeting) held during the year are set out in the following

table:

I

Number of meetings attended and held

HERETEBNY

REZBECERLABERBAFRG)ZHFER

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee Annual

Name of Director g Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting  General Meeting
ExgeE 2 ENZREE9E 2 FMEREEE 2 REZREEE RRAFAE

Tang To ¥ B 444 N/A T8 22 17 171
Wong Yiu Ming E29 444 N/A T8 N/A i N/A T8 B 171
Tang Yu, Freeman 8 & 4/4 N/A N iE N/A T8 mn 171
Mei Zheg jefaf 444 N/A T8 N/A i A N/A T8 B 171
Kan Wai Wah GEEES 3/4 N/A i A N/A T iE A N/A T ER 0/1
Qu Jinping 2o ¥ 4/4 N/A 758 N/A N8 N/A TER 0/1
Yeung Shuk Fan BB 444 4/ 2 17" 17
Cheng Tak Yin =Y 4/4 4/4 2/2 111 171
Ho Wei Sem 1R 3/4 474 12 on 0/1
Huang Zhi Wei HEE 3/4 N/A ~iE A N/A i N/A T iEF 0N
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director (if any) receives a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction package to ensure that he/
she is sufficiently aware of his/her duties, responsibilities and
obligations as a Director under the Companies Ordinance, Listing
Rules and other regulatory requirement and ensure he/she has a
proper understanding of the company’s operations and business.

The Company provide with all Directors relevant reading materials
from time to time on the latest changes and development in
the industry, legal, regulatory in which the Group operates its
business to ensure the contribution of all Directors to the Board
remains relevant. In addition, all Directors are encouraged to
attend external seminar or training on relevant topics for their
continuous professional development. Certain Directors have
attended external trainings and seminars during the year.

The individual training record of each Director who held office
during the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:
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Legal, Regulatory
and Corporate Group's Directors’ Roles,
Governance Policies/ Functions and
update Businesses Duties
EECERR AEBHEEK BEENAG.
Name of Director EEpE TEEREH ES) 3 BERBE
Executive Director BITESE
Tang To B = v v/ v
Wong Yiu Ming =EA 4 4 v
Tang Yu, Freeman B & v v v/
Mei Zheqi iSR! v v/ v
Non-executive Director FHITES
Kan Wai Wah [GEEES v v/ v/
Qu Jinping BeT v v v/
Independent Non-executive Director BIFHTESE
Yeung Shuk Fan &R v v v/
Cheng Tak Yin BiEE v v/ v/
Ho Wei Sem A& 2R v v v/
Huang Zhi Wei =EE v v/ v
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EREBRE (F)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate
and performed by different individuals to reinforce their
independence and accountability. During the year, Mr. Tang
To was the Chairman and Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman served as
the Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Tang To was responsible for
providing leadership to and overseeing the functioning of the
Board to ensure that it acts in the best interest of the Group;
while Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman, who is the chief operating decision
maker, was responsible for managing the business of the
Group, attending to the formulation and implementation of the
Group policies and strategic operating plans, and assuming full
accountability to the Board for the Group’s operations.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) are appointed for a term of three years. Their terms
of office are: (i) Mr. Kan Wai Wah (Non-executive Director) and
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan (Independent Non-executive Director), who
were appointed for a term commencing from 1 January 2020
(i) Mr. Qu Jinping (Non-
executive Director), who was appointed for a term commencing

and expiring on 31 December 2022;

from 7 September 2018 and expiring on 6 September 2021;
(iii) Mr. Cheng Tak Yin (Independent Non-executive Director),
who was appointed for a term commencing from 30 January
2019 and expiring on 29 January 2022; (iv) Mr. Huang Zhi Wei
(Independent Non-executive Director), who was appointed for
a term commencing from 2 November 2018 and expiring on 1
November 2021; and (v) Mr. Ho Wei Sem (Independent Non-
executive Director), who was appointed for a term commencing
from 22 December 2019 and expiring on 21 December 2022.
They are all subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
least every three years at annual general meeting in accordance
with the Articles.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various board committees, namely
committee of executive Directors, nomination committee,
remuneration committee and audit committee to manage
particular aspects of the Company's affairs and aid in sharing the
responsibilities of the Board. Except the committee of executive
Directors, all committees have their specific written terms of
reference in accordance with the requirements of the CG Code.
All resolutions passed by the committees will be reported to the

Board at the next Board meeting.

No corporate governance committee has been established but
respective board committees (as disclosed below) are responsible
for performing corporate governance functions set out in the
terms of reference in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

Committee of Executive Directors

A committee of executive Directors of the Company was
established on 15 August 1997 which comprises all executive
Directors. They meet frequently and are responsible for the
management of day-to-day business operation of the Group.

Nomination Committee

A nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) has been established on 29 March 2012 and
consists of five members with a majority of independent non-
executive Directors. They are:

Mr. Tang To (Chairman)

Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman

Mr. Cheng Tak Yin (independent non-executive Director)
Mr. Ho Wei Sem (independent non-executive Director)
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan (independent non-executive Director)

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is posted
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively.

During the year, the Nomination Committee performed the duties
and responsibilities under the terms of reference and other duties
as required under the CG Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EREBRE (F)

During the year under review, one Nomination Committee
meeting was held and the main works performed by the
Nomination Committee during the year included (i) review of
current structure, size and diversity of the Board; (i) assessment
and review of the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; (iii) review of the Board diversity policy; (iv) review of
the 2019 training and continuous professional development of
Directors; and (v) review of terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee.

A nomination policy of the Company (the “Nomination Policy”)
has been recommenced by the Nomination Committee members
and approved by the Board, and adopted on 29 November 2018.

The Nomination Policy is summarized as follows:

e state the objectives of the Nomination Policy, including
ensuring the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of
the Group's businesses;

e  set out the procedure for the selection, appointment and re-
appointment of Directors;

e set out selection criteria, including but not limited to
qualifications, skills, experience in assessing the suitability
of a proposed candidate and the requirement for the Board
to have independent non-executive Directors in accordance
with the Listing Rules and whether the candidates for
independent non-executive Directors would be considered
independence with reference to the independence criteria or
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules; and

e list out the nomination of Directors applicable laws and
procedures.

The attendance record of the Nomination Committee members

is set out in the heading "Attendance Record of Directors at
Meetings held during the Year” on page 52 of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) has been established on 27 June 2005 and consists
of four members with a majority of independent non-executive
Directors. They are:

Mr. Cheng Tak Yin (Chairman)

Mr. Tang To

Mr. Ho Wei Sem (independent non-executive Director)
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan (independent non-executive Director)

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee performed the
duties and responsibilities under the terms of reference and other
duties as required under the CG Code.

During the year under review, two Remuneration Committee
meetings were held and the main works performed by
the Remuneration Committee during the year included:
(i) consideration and review of the remuneration package of
executive Directors; (ii) review of directors’ fees of non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors); (iii)
consideration of the renewal of letters of appointment for a non-
executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors;
and (iv) review of terms of reference of Remuneration Committee.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to individual
performance, the Group's performance and profitability,
remuneration benchmark in the industry and prevailing market
condition. The Directors do not participate in the determination
of their own remuneration.
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Details of Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December
2019 are set out in note 10A to the consolidated financial
statements.

The attendance record of the Remuneration Committee members
is set out in the heading "Attendance Record of Directors at
Meetings held during the Year” on page 52 of this report.

Audit Committee

An Audit Committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
has been established on 30 October 1998 and consists of
three members, and all of them are independent non-executive
Directors. They are:

Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Tak Yin (independent non-executive Director)
Mr. Ho Wei Sem (independent non-executive Director)

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

During the year, the Audit Committee performed the duties and
responsibilities under the terms of reference and other duties as
required under the CG Code.

During the year under review, four Audit Committee meetings
were held and the main works performed by the Audit
Committee during the year included: (i) review of the final results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018; (ii) review of
the interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2019; (iii) review of the internal audit plan for 2020; (iv) review
of the whistleblowing policy; (v) recommendation to the Board
on re-appointment on external auditor for Shareholders’ approval
and review its audit fees; and (vi) review of terms of reference of
Audit Committee.
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The Audit Committee meets with the chief financial officer and
the Company’s external auditor, where applicable to discuss
their respective audit findings, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, legal and regulatory compliance,
internal control and risk management systems, and financial
reporting matters (including the annual financial statements
before recommending them to the Board for approval). The
Audit Committee also meets with the head of Internal Audit
Department separately without the presence of management. The
Audit Committee assists the Board in meeting its responsibilities
for maintaining an effective risk management and internal control
systems. It reviews with the Group's internal audit annual plan
together with their resource requirements and considers the
report submitted by the head of internal audit department of
the Company (the “Internal Audit Department”) to the Audit
Committee on the results of risk assessment and effectiveness of
internal controls in the business operations of the Group.

The attendance record of the Audit Committee members is set
out in the heading “Attendance Record of Directors at Meetings
held during the Year” on page 52 of this report.

Whistleblowing Policy

A whistleblowing policy has been adopted on 28 March 2019 for
employees and those who deal with the Company (e.g. customers
and suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence, with the Audit
Committee about possible improprieties in any matter related to
the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
Group's risk management and internal control systems on an
ongoing basis and reviewed their effectiveness by the Audit
Committee at least annually with the assistance of the Internal
Audit Department. The Group's risk management and internal
control systems, are systems of process performed by the Board
and management to provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of operations in
achieving the established corporate objectives, safeguarding
assets of the Group, providing reliable financial reporting, and
complying with applicable laws and regulations. The purpose of
the risk management and internal control systems is to identify
and manage various risks which are categorised as strategic,
operational, compliance and financial risks of the Group so as to
reduce, mitigate, transfer or avoid them. However, these systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate risk of failure in
operational system, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Internal Audit

To comply with the CG Code in relation to the requirements of
the establishment of internal audit function and appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems, the
Internal Audit Department is responsible for preparing an annual
audit plan with use of appropriate risk-based methodology,
evaluating the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control processes through a systematic and disciplined approach,
reviewing financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions, and reporting the findings with
recommendations to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
takes the responsibility to review the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems, and ensure the
internal audit function and its duties in compliance with the CG
Code.

The internal audit function is carried out by the Internal Audit
Department and its purpose, authority, roles and responsibilities
were formalized under internal audit charter adopted by the
Audit Committee.
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Internal Audit Department prepares an annual internal audit
plan based on a risk assessment methodology upon the Audit
Committee’s approval. Internal audit works are carried out
pursuant to the approved audit plan. Internal audit reports with
audit findings and recommendations are prepared for the Audit
Committee’s review and discussion from time to time.

Risk Management

Our risk management process is embedded in our daily
operations, financial activities, compliance, strategy development
and business planning, investment decision and external factors.
The risk management process includes:

Risk Identification
e |dentifying the risks through department heads and general
manager of each business segment

e Identifying the risks that may have a potential to negatively
affect the business strategic plan of the Group

e Considering the materiality of the impact of the risk

e Accessing the relevancy to the business strategic plan and
the level of potential impact of the delivery of the business
strategic plan

Risk Analysis
e Conducting a quantity measurement to evaluate the risk
level

e Assessing the risk severity according to its level of
consequence and the likelihood of the risk event becoming
actual event

e Determining the risk severity with reference to the historical
data, industry norms and own judgment

Risk Evaluation
e Identifying the risks and assess the options available to
accept, mitigate or avoid the risks

e Deciding the appropriate response in terms of its
effectiveness and establish the priorities
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Risk Treatment
e  Selecting the risk treatment options

e  Preparing and implementing risk treatment plans and
reporting to Audit Committee regularly

Internal Control
The internal control system consists of a set of rules, policies and
procedures and organizational structures which aims to:

e ensure the corporate strategies are properly implemented;
e achieve effective and efficient corporate processes;
e safeguard the value of corporate assets;

e ensure the reliability and integrity of accounting and
management data; and

e ensure the business operations comply with laws, rules,
policies and regulations.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control, and
Corporate Governance Compliance

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has concluded a review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 December 2019, covering
all material financial, operational, compliance controls and risk
management functions, and therefore considered that such
systems were effective and adequate. In addition, it also reviewed
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience of
staff and the training programs and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function.
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Procedures for handling and dissemination of inside
information

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside
information in compliance with the Listing Rules, SFO and other
regulatory requirements, the Company has adopted a policy
on disclosure of inside information (the “Inside Information
Disclosure Policy”) to regulate procedures and internal controls
in handling of inside information. The Directors and senior
management of the Company oblige to take all reasonable
measures stipulated in the said policy to ensure that proper
safeguards exist to prevent the Company from breaching
the statutory disclosure requirement. The Inside Information
Disclosure Policy covers the following:

e setting out the processes for identifying, assessing and
convening a board meeting to consider and discuss potential
inside information;

e  setting out the responsibilities of officers in preserving the
confidentiality of inside information; and

e identifying who the Company’s authorized spokespersons
are and their responsibilities for communications with
stakeholders of the Company.

The Board considers that the Company’s existing measures are
effective and appropriate compliance mechanisms to safeguard
the Company and its officers in discharging their disclosure
obligations in respect of inside information.
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External Auditor's Remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the fee paid/payable
to the external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the external auditor to the Group were as follows:

B A BB A
RBEE-_ZT-—NF+A=+—BLEFE"
BR&ET/EETINEZEEM AR ERRZMH
TP B RG2S T

Fee paid/payable

B ENER
HK$'000
FET

Services rendered T 12 it AR 7%
Audit services % ER 75 2,648
Non-audit services IEZ RS 17
Total AT 2,665

RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION AND
REPORTING OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting and
financial reporting standards to enable the presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Directors will
subject to statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards, select suitable accounting policies and apply them
consistently, make prudent, fair and reasonable judgements
and estimates and prepare the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yeung Yuk Lun resigned as a company secretary of the
Company on 17 May 2019. Following the resignation of
Mr. Yeung Yuk Lun, Ms. Man Wing Yan remains in office and acts
as the sole company secretary of the Company. Ms. Man is a full
time employee of the Group and reports to the Chairman and/
or Chief Executive Officer. During the year, she has duly complied
with the relevant professional training requirement under rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED e« AE##MEEERAA

mERE2BUBRE 2EE

EXNERFEEERBEZEERNERE
SR BmE LR R A EEGRE MRS
IFERAR A M B WMER TS R R M
REBARBERRL - EFEHZHIIOEE B R LE
Azt RAZEET EBRVERERAE
MEHBR FHEER RFRAE 2 HH &
HE WRFELEREERIIHRE -

DNAWE

BHBEEN _T-NAFRAATLABER
NERAMWE - ZREBHB LRI XA
TTHREETAQNRE —RAAIWE - XX+
RAEEZ2BETIRFRAEE R, HAIT
AR E R - NAFE - HEBT LEWRANE
329G BRAEREIZME



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company has opportunities to directly communicate with
Shareholders at various annual general meetings and other
general meetings where Shareholders are encouraged to actively
attend. In addition, the Chairman and the chairmans of each of
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee were present to answer any Shareholder’s questions
at the annual general meeting. The auditor had also attended the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report,
the accounting policies and auditor’s independence.

Furthermore, the Company provides information in its annual
and interim reports, and announcements. All shareholders’
communications are also available on the Company’s website at
http://www.cosmel.com.

Convening of a general meeting

Pursuant to section 566 of the Companies Ordinance,
Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights
of all Shareholders having a right to vote at general meetings
can request the directors to call a general meeting. The request
must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with
at the general meeting and may include the text of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the
meeting. Such request must be authenticated by the person(s)
making it and sent to the Company at its registered office in
hard copy form or in electronic form to ir@cosmos.com for the
attention of the company secretary.
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Shareholders’ Power to Request Circulation of Statement
Pursuant to section 580 of the Companies Ordinance,
Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all Shareholders or at least 50 Shareholders who have
a relevant right to vote at a general meeting, may request the
Company to circulate to the Shareholders entitled to receive
notice of a general meeting, a statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution or other business to be dealt with at that meeting.
The request (i) must identify the statement to be circulated; (i)
must be authenticated by the person(s) making it; and (iii) may
be sent to the Company at its registered office in hard copy form
or in electronic form to ir@cosmos.com for the attention of the
company secretary at least 7 days before the meeting to which it
relates.

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at an
annual general meeting

Pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance,
Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all Shareholders of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at
annual general meeting or at least 50 shareholders who have
a right to vote on the resolution at an annual general meeting
to which the request relate, may request the Company to give
to the Shareholders notice of a resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting. The request
(i) must identify the resolution of which notice is to be given; (ii)
must be authenticated by the person(s) making it; and (iii) may
be sent to the registered office of the Company in hard copy
form or in electronic form to ir@cosmel.com for the attention of
the company secretary no later than 6 weeks before the annual
general meeting; or if later, the time at which notice of the
meeting is given.
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Procedure for Shareholders and other stakeholders to send
enquiries and concerns to the Board

Shareholders and other stakeholders are invited to access the
Company’s website at http://www.cosmel.com for up-to-date
information of the Company. They are advised to send enquires
and concerns to the Board:

(i) by post at the registered office of the Company situated at
10/F., Billion Plaza 2, No. 10 Cheung Yue Street, Cheung Sha
Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary; or

(ii) by email to ir@cosmos.com for the attention of the company
secretary.

The Board has adopted a revised shareholders’ communication
policy of the Company on 28 March 2019 which is posted on
the Company’s website. Shareholders and other stakeholders can
read the said policy at the Company's website for details.

DIVIDEND POLICY

A dividend policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”) has
been adopted by the Board on 28 November 2018. The Dividend
Policy sets out the factors in determination of dividend payment
of the Company, the frequency and form of dividend payments.

When considering the decision on dividend declaration, the Board
will take into account among other things, the following factors:

(i)  financial performance and financial conditions of the Group;

(ii) cash flows position of the Group;

(iii) capital requirements for business plans of the Company;

(iv) investment opportunities available with the Company;

(v) borrowing capacity of the Company so as to capture any
growth opportunities;
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(vi) expected commitment of the research and development on
new products and technology; and

(vii) future outlook of the macro economic environment that
have an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Group.

The dividend shall be paid in the form of (i) cash; or (ii) a scrip
dividend; or (iii) a combination of partly in (i) and partly in (ii)
above.

The Board may declare interim dividends at its absolute discretion
in line with the Dividend Policy and may recommend final
dividend payable to the Shareholders at its annual general
meeting in line with the Dividend Policy, subject to the approval
of the Shareholders in the annual general meeting. The Company
may recommend a special dividend in special circumstances.

The Dividend Policy would be subject to revision and amendment
under the Articles and the Hong Kong law, including the
Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules from time to time.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year, there is no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SCOPE OF THIS REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report (the
“Report”) elaborates the sustainability-related information and
data of the Group during the financial year 2019, mainly covering
the headquarters in Hong Kong and Dong Hua Machinery Ltd.
in Dongguan (“Dong Hua"”). Subject to the development of the
Group's operations and ESG data availability, we review the
scope of reporting annually. Compared to the reporting scope
defined in the previous year, Gainbase Printed Circuit Board Co.,
Ltd. in Shenzhen is excluded and another company, namely,
Cosmos Machinery Technology (Jiangsu) Company Limited in
Wuxi (“Cosmos Jiangsu”) is included because the latter has more
significance to our core operation of machinery manufacturing.
Unless specified otherwise, the disclosed information and data
in this Report include the annual data from headquarters, Dong
Hua and Cosmos Jiangsu in 2019. This Report was prepared
in accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to
the Listing Rules published by the Stock Exchange.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group believes that stakeholder engagement is integral in
driving sustainable growth of our operations. We stay connected
with our stakeholders through various internal and external
communication channels to ensure that our business is responsive
to their suggestions, and that we strive to build a trust-based
long-term relationship with them.

Any individuals or entities having a significant interest in principal
activities of the Group are identified as our stakeholders. The
six main stakeholder categories of the Group are: shareholders,
employees, customers, suppliers, government and regulators, and
banks. Our communication channels with these stakeholders are
categorised as follows:

RiE o2 REBWMS

] &

AREF e REARSE ([ARE])FHAAN
SRR -_T-NAYRFENAFEERAH
ERMBUE T2RTFEERBRURRSE
MRERBERAR ([RE]) AKEER
ERMANEBERMARHENRE HER
EREM BRI RENERLE - ARIN
FFEERREEE - AR E W SOR A RR
NERYNAEREIRERARWEBEER
i # 7 — R AL 85 B KRR OT 8% )
BRAR (DIHAKR])MARSHE AR
BREHERBNBMAEEZOETRAEER-
R S TRCBASN - AR R & I ER &Y B R A BUE R
ERR REMNIHRARAR-_T-NLFNF
JE R - AR AR IR B X A B T AR AN B 8%
T GRE - HERERREIESD
( GRIE-ghEREDD HE-

FHE2H
BPMRAEERDEGHERR KOHEN
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRI HEREBRS (B)

Stakeholder categories

40 & 85l

Communication Channels

BERE

Shareholders

MR

Emails, telephone calls and postal correspondence
B FEE LB

Company’s website

NN A

Annual general meetings and general meetings
BREBAFAGRBRRERE

Annual and interim reports

FHREPHERE

Circulars, announcements, notices and publications
B NE-BERRM

Investor relations enquiries

REEMAEEN

Employees

‘&

Employee satisfaction surveys

EEMEEHRE

Annual appraisals

FERZ

Team building activities

B A A

Company internal notices and communications

NAEIA BB E KB

Annual dinners of the Company and various business units of the Group
ARRRAEETNREREMLEFRE

Customers

5P

Face-to-face meetings and visits

gHEERS

Day-to-day communications via frontline staff
BBAREENHEES

Industry exhibitions

ERRE

Customer service hotline and email
BEPRGRGEREH

Suppliers
H R

Face-to-face meetings and visits
SHEERS

On-going direct engagements
SEEESH

Government and regulators

Face-to-face meetings and visits

BUR & 8 & e 1 G H &R
Reports and submissions made according to regulatory requirements
RREERTERBELREREH

Banks Face-to-face meetings and visits

R1T 2HRRS
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Materiality Assessment

Over the past few years, the Group has conducted a number
of stakeholder engagement exercises which helped the Group
to determine and prioritise the material topics. In 2019, the
Group reviewed the material topics from previous exercises
and developed a stakeholder survey that covers potential
material topics related to the Group’s businesses and day-to-day
operation. A materiality matrix was developed from the results
of stakeholder questionnaires. The materiality assessment and
prioritisation shown below took two dimensions into account, i.e.
the importance of issues to stakeholders and to the Group. Below
is the materiality matrix based on the assessment results:

BRI HEREBRS (B)

EEMFME

BEBF AKREERETEZEFNHERS
AE AR EEZERREESTARR R
—E-AF o BRMRISTRERERNHES
HAZBENERRAER URAFOHEAS
ME pEAKEBXBELRAEEERENE
EEEZRHARR ARREFNHEHS
HEEENEE - THANERMFEHEMESL
RARBTMALEEA BIZEED B #
MELRAEENEENE - TERRIEFHE
REBEONEEEER

/|

Cosmos Machinery - Materiality Matrix
REHW — EE IR

High Priority &8 %4 5!

HEGENEESE

Importance to Stakeholders

Low Priority {58 5% 4% 5l

Low Priority {£{& 54 3l

High Priority S8 %45l

Importance to Cosmos Machinery

HARBMNE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE- HEREBHRS ()

Table 1. Material topics disclosed in this Report cross- R1: AREFENEZZEREEN (R
referenced with ESG Guide aspects R -#HERERES) SZEE

Environmental 3%

1. Air pollutants emission /& 5@ ¥ % Low 1K

2. Greenhouse gas emission ;& 7= 5,82 BE Low &

3. Hazardous waste B EEY Medium 1 ¥
4. Non-hazardous waste 35 Z 1) Low &

5. Energy consumption 878 & #% Medium ¥

6.  Water consumption #£7K Low &

7. Packaging consumption % FEHf Low 1

8.  Other impacts on environment ¥R 2 & & High & ¥ 4
Social &

9.  Employment (E{% High = ¥ ¥
10. Occupational health and safety BB LT 2 High & ¥ ¥
11.  Vocational training 5 2 523l High & Yo ¥
12.  Child labour & T Low &

13. Forced labour 38 #14 T Low 1K

Operating practices & E 18|

14. Supply chain management f i §3 & 12 High & ¥ ¥
15.  Product safety Em%E 2 High = * ¥
16. Customer satisfaction & F i = & High & ¥ *
17. Intellectual property issues 1% & & Low 1K
18. Quality of products EmE £ Low {&
19. Data protection and privacy & £HRE M AL Low &
20. Anti-corruption practices R &5 Low 1&
21.  Whistle-blowing procedures £ {2 /v Low &

Community # &
22.  Community investment #f [& & & Low 1&
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

General Disclosure

The Group strives to operate in a manner that minimises
environmental impacts. We continue to explore methods to
reduce our carbon footprint through increasing the efficiency
of using natural resources, enhancing the energy performance
of our products, increasing waste recovery and recycling rates,
and installing emissions control devices. In 2019, there were no
incidents of non-compliance with local environmental laws and
regulations.

Apart from complying with local environmental legal
requirements, we also take extra effort to align with
international, national and industry standards, and we have
designed internal policies and guidelines that are applicable to
our businesses. Making continuous effort in incorporating these
internal policies and guidelines into our daily operations, we aim
to further enhance energy efficiency and improve our overall
environmental performance.

To ensure that we could identify and mitigate environmental
risks more effectively, risk analysis reports on how to respond to
potential environmental emergencies during manufacturing have
been prepared for Dong Hua's manufacturing plant since 2017.
Emergency protocols and action plans have also been developed
by Dong Hua to address adverse environmental impacts.
Additionally, comprehensive environmental impact assessments
are carried out for our major construction or expansion projects
to minimise environmental impacts caused by our operations.

Air Emissions Control

Committed to taking responsibility in reducing air emissions,
the Group has implemented emissions control measures to
reduce emission levels. Dong Hua has installed a Volatile Organic
Compound (VOC) purification system which uses active carbon
filters, central exhaust systems, water spray devices and UV light
purifiers in manufacturing machines to filter associated airborne
pollutants and ensure that emissions meet local standards before
they are discharged into the atmosphere.

BRI HEREBRS (B)

RRTEEHRE

—RIKE
AEBBOARFOTAEEER SRE
TERERE - BRMATES KR EREHR
BRE FBRERRAER BICEMERK
3 RE YN B E R MR RS R
BEOKE BRB|BEREHEH - R=F—N
FoRMLEBEM AT A EMWRFEE IR
REVEM

o

N

BT BT EHRERERN BRI LT
NEEHAENBEER BRMERRE L5
FIEAREEEMBEY BOANBEEK LES
RIS HER A E 2 ER ERER M TER
BRERMAENE(CEEERBNRRREA -

AR BRI A B EERFRER RE
MEEREBR T —LtFRn HEEBRIR

AR ESFREERERITHIER N
BERERFEEE - WIHN RORFAERAAR
REIERTRZMNELETEARREZE
FHE - EREREFERERE -

22 SR BF R
AEEBRERFCEREZRERY St
HETT 2 TRBE IRUAR 1 45 0 P2 AR PR UK - R 2
EEEERE TR EKRIE EHE R 5 /018 3
HEBRIEAWMVOOREREIZRN - FRIER
R BKKERAIMRF LR TEBRBE
EREEL N ZERITRY - 5 AT R EE
REINSES NPT ELE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRI HEREBRS (B)

Waste management

The Group aims to maximise resource efficiency and to minimise
waste generation by every possible means. All useful materials
are reused or recycled whenever feasible. We keep track of all
materials that are used and sort them out by category. We have
also developed a database to better monitor our waste data,
which helps us to analyse the recycling rate and develop an
effective waste management programme. Further, we strictly
follow local waste disposal regulations and engage qualified
contractors to handle waste and effluent; whereas recyclables,
such as scrap metal, plastics, paper, waste oil and oil-based paint
containers, are separated at source for recycling.

In strict compliance with new legal requirements of Mainland
China regarding the prevention and control of water pollution
released in April 2018, Dong Hua and Cosmos Jiangsu have
begun to store liquid effluent which is periodically collected and
tested by qualified water effluent contractors.

The Group devotes efforts in waste reduction by implementing
waste management measures at all operation sites. Apart from
the manufacturing plant, staff from the headquarters are also
encouraged to minimise waste generated at the office as part of
our “green lifestyle” initiatives. We have put up posters in staff
canteens to remind employees to order suitable portions of food
and minimise food waste.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED e« AE##MEEERAA
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Energy consumption and efficiency measures

The Group believes that highly energy-efficient machines can
increase productivity and further improve cost effectiveness.
To this end, we have been using our technological expertise to
design and manufacture high quality machineries which would
reduce the environmental footprint for our clients. Energy-
efficient models include the 393SEc servo energy-saving thin-wall
high special injection moulding machine, the 450JSell small-and-
medium-size servo-driven two-platen injection moulding machine,
and the Ge electric-plus. The Group has been extensively
promoting our digital control system “iSee 4.0" with very good
response. The system provides real-time data for our clients to
monitor the performance of their machines. While providing users
with a simple overview of their machine performance, the system
also keeps track on production data, stock numbers and related

figures to allow our clients to maximise production output.

Water consumption and recycling

To reduce fresh water consumption, a water recycling system
was installed in the industrial paint booth of Dong Hua to lower
overall water consumption. During the spray painting process,
fresh water is required for paint sludge removal to keep the
tanks and pumps of the paint booth clean. The water would be
filtered from the wash paint and recycled several times before
being replaced. Water saving reminders were posted in kitchens
and lavatories to educate employees about reducing water
consumption.

Green Office

Office operations are another focus of the Group’s efforts to
implement green practices and raise environmental awareness.
At our Hong Kong headquarters, we have been introducing
the green office guidelines since 2017 to raise environmental
awareness among our staff.

RIg. HERERME (H)

BEREE R AR MR IE

BPRAR R R B B IR EE T
P ARz - B T ETE R R RERMNE
BERFAREEEEERW BEPRERRER
EN o B P RLE A = AL IR S 22 i 28 B2 $E 393 SEc A
fR &0 858 B2 = IR X 2B # - 450)Sellp /Y
MR LB Ge2 B - NE B F AR
HER MBI T & RI=6 £ 4% [iSee 4.0] -
BEEREBE -ZEARERBEERERGE

FR P s B M 28 e BB VE R o ? K’%Lﬂ”ﬁéﬁ%
BMERTEEMN R BB AES
B FERESHEBER HEFPEI&ERN
B Ko

HEKERER

REQBK RERITEBEREREREK
B ERG EAREBBAKE - BRIFH
EEARKBELENRGHE MRBEREH
B 7K BT A1 7K 3R B R o 1 2 4% AT R BR 2K R B9 O
BadE MEEKGERZRABEER R
b2 5N TR %% BT BB KRB TR AR BB B R
NORBBIEHAK

RERER
MAERAEEERGEHMANERRRE
BHE—BH -BEEBR T —LFHF]
THRERAERE FEMBEINRRE
e
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRI HEREBRS (B)

“Green Office
Green Month” campaign, we introduced various office-related

Having joined Friends of the Earth Hong Kong's

green practices to reduce unnecessary electricity consumption
and set up the Cosmos e-Library to encourage our staff to
enjoy reading ebooks in their spare time. The Group has also
implemented measures to ensure that resources are fully utilised
at our headquarters.

Furthermore, we supported staff's participation in a number
of green activities and promoted the benefits of leading a
healthy and green lifestyle, including the Red Packet Recycling
programme by Greeners Action, mooncake tins recycling
programme by Délifrance, WWF's Earth Hour campaign, and “No
Air Con Day” by Green Sense. These activities have enhanced the
awareness of our staff in protecting the local environment, and
they are eager to share what they have learned with their friends

and family members.

To further promote an environmentally-responsible lifestyle and
the use of sustainable energy, we continued to participate in an
indoor cycling competition in 2019. Our team that comprised
some employees from the headquarters took part in the challenge
by pedalling an electricity-generating kinetic bike.

ﬁzfﬁ/ BT JBHIR 2 KB (%DEB.;F*“_?
BE RRERNEHRITZERRERR D
BEREE Hﬂi‘“ifkﬂﬁhiliﬁEJ
SBETHEAHKRMNEEFENTEE 5
el AR HERATNERFAER -

BMZHEIRO2ESZIAGZEEE HE
EEREENEE BERETHERESZETHN
[F 2 BN EAXITE ] - Délifrance 2 i &9
B AgEETE R EAES TN (MR —
PRI FRREEN [(BLAR] -REMT
BREDPRBINREAHBREHNEE T
BENEBR D Z MR-

AR HERRARN AT T AR E A FERL
R BAR - NFEESNMERNEEE-
BEFHRZUANRAEER WEAIZXENS
EEEEEAEMSBEE WS-

Konica Minolta Green Concert “Extreme Power Generatlng Challenge
Lo | EREER

BERH2E[MERERLERES
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE HEREREE (H)

This year, we also partnered with the Ocean Park Conservation FR - RIFEEFAEREES (OPCRHERT
Foundation (OPCF) to co-organise “We Love Ocean 3000 Flag 1% #% [We Love Ocean 3000 H | - & TH
Day” at our headquarters. Staff volunteers sold flags at the ZHELBERASFABREESER
headquarters to raise funds for the OPCF, while grasping the Wit EREREKEVMEMIFFEEN
opportunity to raise awareness of protecting aquatic species and ERBEE LK EFREMETE -

support the OPCF's ocean conservation research programme.

"LLE

e BESHABREES WNO

= DIEAN PARE DONSERVATION FEUMOATION, HOMG EOMG FLAG

“We Love Ocean 3000 Flag Day"” at the Hong Kong office
EEH BB EE 1T [We Love Ocean 3000E & A |
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BiE. 8K

To keep the environment-friendly momentum going and help FHFERAESHEEERREL R _ZT—N
our offices “go green”, we encouraged the entire workforce to  F B2 E THREUTFIRFEE
implement the following green measures in 2019:

Electricity Energy saving labels are placed on all electrical appliances and light switches to remind staff to
£V} conserve energy.
EFAEEIBERE FEHORRRERT RMB ISR
To reduce energy consumption, all computers are set to auto energy-saving mode.
HEMRTAEBEEER SFHRE-
Staff are reminded to switch off all lighting, air conditioning and electrical appliances before
leaving the workplace.
RESIBMIEREKHEEMEERE SRREH-
Lighting would be switched off during non-business hours, unless for safety and security
purposes.
EWAREEEER AEENEEERZERREFTERE -
Water Water saving labels are in place to remind staff not to leave the tap running in the pantry.
K REGETX KR E  IREEE TN EEAOKHEA KRB E -
Waste Recycling bins are set up at the office to encourage staff to separate recyclables, such as paper,
237 plastic and metal.

R RERBEYAE - DEOERER 2R R ESBE A Kk -
Used envelopes, folders and shopping bags are collected in recycling bins for staff to reuse.

RERMPHEEEERSS XHREBEYRRETHER-

Office Equipment

Staff are encouraged to purchase environment-friendly stationery and office equipment

N as a priority and not to purchase stationery and office equipment with potential adverse
environmental impact.
FEHEIEARBREXARMAERE URTHEBSHREERNEENXARMRAZER
1o

Others To reduce paper consumption, employees are encouraged to adjust document margins and font

EAh size before printing, use double-sided copying, and reduce colour printing.

SEE TTEIRARXHERRFRAN RAEEZNIR I ZETE LRI RARE -
The Company’s annual report is printed with environment-friendly (wood-free) paper.

RARFRES (EAMR) DEARR B FH-

Green Manufacturing

RREE

The Group has identified that key environmental impacts caused FHMIEH A FEBKEEREPEER =A%k
by its operations are related to energy, air emissions, water HKEREVERBBANRELE WeHE
and waste management. We are committed to minimising  7E%& 4 7 5% b6 B R & TR 3T B BORN 3 AT R 4 7
environmental impacts by continuing to apply new technologies MM R BRKERRTZEREFE - Fln- &
and upgrading hardware at our production plants. For instance, ¥ER-_T—tFELRREEEREEER
Dong Hua has installed provincial motors, inverter air compressors — EE#4g 1 - LA R LED&E B - KIgR K AEERE K
and LED lights, resulting in significant energy savings in the &IRFEA=E-

manufacturing process since 2017.
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Environmental Data Summary
The Group's major annual resources consumption, emissions and

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE HEREREE (H)

REEE-E

TRIMAEENTIEERFERBE

waste generation data are displayed below. WE REEYE &I -
2019 Resources Consumption Data Summary 019 EREAESERE
Amount
gE
Hong Kong Cosmos
Description Units Headquarters Dong Hua Jiangsu Total
85 B BBAH RE STE AR BE
Natural gas m? - - 53,574.00 53,574.00
AAR VAR
Diesel for vehicles Litres - 10,297.00 2,850.00 13,147.00
B AT
Petrol for vehicles Litres 5,988.18 5,840.00 2,970.00 14,798.18
BRI ~H
Electricity kWh 173,614.00 3,012,950.00 3,586,500.00 6,773,064.00
g TRE
Total Energy used GJ 833.93 11,447.12 15,208.85 27,489.91
HBELIR{E A TEEE
Water m? 253.00 76,115.00 20,100.00 96,468.00
K MK
Packaging (plastics) Tonnes - 7.77 4.60 12.37
aEY (28) YN
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
SO A (4
E/n#ﬁlm (,HE)

BiE. 8K

2019 Emissions Data Summary 2019 SR ERBBERE
Amount
yE
Hong Kong Cosmos
Item Description Units Headquarters Dong Hua Jiangsu Total
HA 5l B BAEAN RE LE K B
Air Emissions SOx kg 0.09 0.25 0.09 043
ERITHY ik=Rlet) R
NOx kg 4.90 4.84 529 15.03
pE=t(et) Nis
PM kg 0.36 0.36 0.39 1.1
TR NI
Greenhouse gas Scope 1 Direct GHG Tonnes of COze 16.22 43.27 189.87 249.35
(GHG) emissions Emissions'
mER BN BE-EZRRERBHEN LH_SKES
Scope 2 Energy Indirect GHG Tonnes of COze 88.54 1,536.60 1,829.12 3,454.26
Emissions?
HE_RREERAERE LSBE_S{tRES
Scope 3 Other Indirect GHG  Tonnes of COze 25.16 7.42 - 32.58
Emissions?
BE-HMEZRERE LH_SKEE
Total GHG Emissions Tonnes of COze 129.92 1,587.30 2,018.98 3,736.20
RERBHREE AW S iREE
Waste water Wastewater m? - 100,000.00 11,000.00 111,000.00
discharge FEK 7K
A KBER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE HEREREE (H)

2019 Waste Collection Data Summary 2019 BEYREHERE
Amount
g
Hong Kong Cosmos

Description Units Headquarters Dong Hua Jiangsu Total
L] Efy EhL s RE TE AR B
Hazardous Waste Waste oil Tonne - 8.01 1.00 9.01
BERY & N

Qil containers* Pieces - 251 54 305

hRs 1

Qil paint containers* Tonne - 3.95 0.50 4.45

WRE NI

Others (e.qg. activated carbon and Tonne - - 3.50 3.50

filter, and paint sludge) N

Hft (MERBRIEERRERE)
Non-Hazardous Waste  Metals (e.qg. steel, iron, welding slag) Tonne - 302.51 490.19 792.70
FEEEY B (i & 88%) A

Plastics Tonne - 6.54 - 6.54

2R YN

Paper (e.g. cardboard) Tonne - 26.63 - 26.63

HR (MARE) NI

Others (e.g. scrap, wiring, wood, slow Tonne - 199.37 21.14 220.51

moving inventory)

Hio (g Ak B8 BAM N

BRYEE)

Paper Recycled® Tonne 0.54 - - 0.54

EEEIE N
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRI HEREBRS (B)

2019 Resources Consumption and Emissions Intensity Data

Summary

Description Units Amount
Pzl By B
Energy used per sales GJ per million HKD of sales 52.93

FHHERTNRERERE

Water used per sales

FHHERTHAKE

Packaging materials (plastics) used per sales
FHHERINEEY (ZB)RE

Scope 1 Direct GHG Emissions per sales
FHHERINEE —ERRAERBHENE
Scope 2 Energy Indirect GHG Emissions per sales
P HERNEE —REERERBHENE
Scope 3 Other Indirect GHG Emissions per sales
FHHERTNBE=-EMEEAERBENE
Total GHG emissions per sales
FHEEETNAERBERES

Total hazardous waste per sales®
FHHERINE TR RES

Total non-hazardous waste per sales

FHHERTNFEZTENEE

Notes:

THhREE SEEETHERT

m3 per million HKD of sales 185.76
NHK SEBETHER

Tonnes per million HKD of sales 0.02
NURESIER- Vbt Sh-X: oy

Tonnes of COze per million HKD of sales 0.48
RE—RLIREE - BABBTHEET

Tonnes of COze per million HKD of sales 6.65
ABE_ELIREE BABBTHEE

Tonnes of COze per million HKD of sales 0.06
NE—SLIREE - BABBITHE R

Tonnes of COze per million HKD of sales 7.19
RE—RLIREE - BABBTHEET

Tonne per million HKD of sales 0.03
NWE - FHEBTIHE BT

Tonne per million HKD of sales 2.02

N FHEBITHERE

EX

0195 EREAEBRSAFRFEHERE

HE-EXREREINENEHERR

1. Scope 1 direct GHG emissions caused by the natural gas 1.

consumption were calculated with reference to emission factors
stated in the China Greenhouse Gas Emissions Accounting
Method and Reporting Guide for Machinery Equipment
Manufacturing Corporations.

Scope 2 energy indirect GHG emissions were calculated with
reference to emissions factor stated in the CLP 2018 Sustainability
Report.

Scope 3 other indirect GHG emissions were calculated with
reference to ICAO emission factors.

Qil containers and oil paint containers may contain hazardous
contents.

Most of the hazardous waste were available in tonnes, apart from
oil containers, which was excluded in the calculation.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

SOCIAL ASPECTS

General Disclosure

Our philosophy of being “people-orientated, pragmatic and
continuously learning” is the key of maintaining a highly-efficient
workforce with caring internal relationship. Apart from providing
a pleasant and safe working environment for our employees, we
also strive to attract the best talents to support our sustainable
growth. As a responsible manufacturer, we aim to manage our
supply chain in a socially responsible manner, and we ensure
that our suppliers adhere to the Group’s sustainable business
practices. The Group not only focuses its efforts in minimising
environmental impacts, but also constantly looks for ways to
foster a caring community. We are proud to have received the
Caring Company Logo from the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for over ten consecutive years.

The Group respects human rights and complies with all local
labour laws as well as local workplace and social standards.
We have established a code of conduct for our employees to
ensure the integrity and governance of our operations, while
maintaining a high standard of professional conduct. We do not
tolerate any form of corruption, forced labour, child labour, or
sexual harassment anywhere in our operations. We offer equal
opportunities to all qualified applicants and staff members, and
refrain from any type of discrimination.

To facilitate effective communication between our staff and
the Group’s management, we encourage employees to voice
their opinions freely through various communication channels
and to seek assistance through formal mechanisms in case of
grievance. Any opinions received through these channels will
be handled confidentially. We strictly abide by local laws and
regulations of the regions where we operate, and observe the
industry’s employment practices. During the reporting period,
no legal cases were reported regarding our labour practices or
market operations or regarding any issues related to product

responsibility.
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BRI HEREBRS (B)

Employment and Welfare

To build a motivated workforce, the Group offers competitive
remuneration and benefits. We conduct an annual performance-
based appraisal to assess the work performance and leadership
skills of our staff at different levels. This appraisal is also used as
a reference for adjusting remuneration and bonuses accordingly.
We ensure that our staff benefits comply with local legal
requirements. Apart from medical insurance, provident fund and
pension contributions, we also offer employees various leave
entitlements, including annual leave, marriage leave, maternity
and paternity leave, bereavement leave, examination leave and
injury leave.

The Group has been promoting healthy work-life balance to
our staff. In 2019, we continued to organise a range of social
activities for employees, including birthday parties, Father’s Day
and Mother’s Day celebrations, and other festive celebrations.
Dong Hua has also specially arranged a trip to celebrate Women's
Day on 8 March 2019, where the employees enjoyed a day out
at the Dongkeng Agriculture Garden. Through a guided tour,
participants learnt more about the health benefits of different
Chinese herbs and the use of herbs in various treatments for
specific health conditions.
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Dong Hua Women's Day Trip
REFUBHHRE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

We believe such wide variety of leisure events would help
strengthen staff relationships, as well as maintaining healthy
work-life balance. In order to attract employees with
different talents and interests to participate in our activities,
we participated many forms of sports activities, such as
football games, running, and sports fairs. In 2019, Dong Hua
representatives participated in the 2019 Worker Sports Fair and
snooker tournament organised by our staff association.

Workplace Health and Safety

Workplace health and safety is always our first priority. The
Group directs great effort in building a robust culture of health
and safety for all our staff. Policies and guidelines for safety
equipment, occupational hygiene and prevention of occupational
diseases are well established for all manufacturing facilities
in Mainland China to ensure all employees understand the
importance of maintaining workplace safety. A Safety Production
Committee made up of safety officers has been put in charge
of monitoring and managing safety initiatives and preventing
workplace accidents. We conduct health and safety training
regularly, covering topics such as first aid, handling hazardous
chemicals and production safety. In addition, compulsory
emergency fire drills and site inspections are conducted for
employees at all levels on a regular basis.

We do our utmost to provide an accident-free workplace
for employees. Dong Hua has established a comprehensive
Prevention of Occupational Diseases Policy under which on-site
safety officers were appointed to conduct daily safety patrol and
generate weekly follow-up reports on safety issues identified and
corrective measures taken. The implementation of these safety
measures have been providing positive results, as the number of
work-related injuries and lost days have significantly decreased in
the last two years.

As an industry leader of machinery manufacturing, we strive to
uphold the latest occupational safety laws and regulations. Apart
from providing intensive training programmes for employees, we
have also arranged complimentary annual health screening for
different levels of staff in Dongguan to ensure the health and
well-being of our workers.
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BRI HEREBRS (B)

In order to enhance Group-wide productivity and competitiveness,
staff at the headquarters were encouraged to participate in the
"Joyful@ Healthy Workplace” programme in 2019. Co-organised
by the Occupational Safety and Health Council, the Department
of Health and the Labour Department, the programme aimed to
reinforce the concept of healthy eating at workplace, promote
physical activities to our employees, and help employees manage
their mental wellbeing.

Staff Development

In terms of staff development, the Group arranges various
internal and external training programmes for staff at all levels,
encouraging them to enhance their professional skills and
knowledge for each particular role. To support continuous growth
of the Group, we have offered work skill training courses at Dong
Hua, such as cleaner production, effective assembly, injection
moulding machine installation and operation, etc.

As an industry leader, we aim to stay ahead of the industry trend
and ensure that our staff are equipped with an excellence skill
set. In 2019, staff were encouraged to take part in the Dongguan
Electrician Competition, and ten of our electricians from Dong
Hua took up the challenge of testing their electrical skill set
through a competition with other electricians of the industry. This
event gave our electricians the opportunity to better understand
the latest industry standards and technology.

Product Quality

It is our priority to improve product quality along the entire
value chain, from sourcing right through to manufacturing and
sales. Our manufacturing units ensure that both raw materials
and finished products meet international standards, such as
the “Restriction of the Use of Certain Hazardous Substances
in Electrical and Electronic Equipment (RoHS)” and halogen-
free requirements defined by the International Electrochemical
Commission (IEC). This effort is complemented by the Quality
Department which conducts regular quality checks and
monitoring to ensure our products are up to the highest
standards. To strengthen our after-sales management, satisfaction
surveys are conducted and product recalls would be arranged if
any product defects were identified.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In addition, our manufacturing sites have demonstrated a
firm commitment to providing high-quality products through
implementing recognised quality control management systems,
such as ISO 9001.

The development of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area (Greater Bay Area) is one of the key strategic
directions of the PRC. Accordingly, the Group has taken the
opportunity to expand its market exposure in that area. A
number of government officials and postgraduates from Tsinghua
University were invited to visit our Dong Hua manufacturing
plant where we exchanged ideas on the manufacturing industry’s
development within the Greater Bay Area. During the tour, we
introduced to our guests our quality control system and the
innovative technology adopted for manufacturing, as well as
the in-house developed “iSee 4.0" digital platform. In return,
our guests shared their observations on the evolving market
trend, technology development and challenges that were
identified within the industry. This visit provided us with valuable
insights into improving the overall manufacturing process and
strengthening our quality control system.

BRI HEREBRS (B)
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BRI HEREBRS (B)

Number of Suppliers by Geographical Region in 2019

0195 BRI SN HEETHE

Quantity
Location ith 2% g5E
Hong Kong &/ 22
Mainland China A B A 3 418

Supply Chain Management

We have been working closely with our suppliers to ensure that
social and environmental considerations are taken into account
throughout our sourcing activities. We review our supply chain
management policies and green procurement guidelines regularly,
and conduct periodic assessment of suppliers’ performance.
Any breach of supplier agreements may lead to legal action in
accordance with our corporate policies.

To establish a good procurement practice, we monitor suppliers’
quality and their social and environmental performance. We
conduct examination at every stage of the manufacturing
process to ensure our suppliers and the materials they provide
comply with local laws and regulations. Corrective actions will be
implemented in a timely manner if any product safety concerns
are raised or any violations of product declaration and labelling,
human rights, customer privacy protection, anti-corruption and
intellectual property rights are identified.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Caring for the Community

The Group actively promotes and participates in community
activities to contribute to developing a caring community. A staff
volunteer team has been established to take part in charitable
events regularly and gather donations and supplies for people
in need. In 2019, our staff volunteer team from headquarters
raised and donated around HK$30,000 to support local charitable
services. We also participated in various community activities,
such as Skip Lunch Day organised by The Community Chest,
and Happy Easter fund raising for Lok Sin Tong, to support local
community and social services.

BRI HEREBRS (B)
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Happy Easter fund raising at our Hong Kong office in support of Lok Sin Tong
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE- HEREREE (H)

HEHE -8
TRIMAEENTELSERBREIE-

Social Data Summary
The Group’s major annual social performance data are presented
in the following tables.

Total Staff Head Count as of 31 December 2019 and 2019 R2019F12531HETHEANER2019FEEFS

90

Annual Staff Turnover T F
Category Description Staff Headcount | Annual Turnover
Al i 88 ETAH FERIAY
Gender Female 87 19
MR 4
Male 422 163
B4
Rank Senior Level 21 3
B 4R =HRAE
Middle Level 58 3
R AE
General Staff 435 176
—BBEAE
Age Under 30 72 43
F #h 305% AT
30-50 329 114
30-50%%
Over 50 108 25
50B% A £
Geographic Region Hong Kong 12 5
& B
Mainland China 477 177
AR A A
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Workplace Health and Safety Performance Summary

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RIE. HERE

TIFEREEL ZENAE

R (&)

Number of work-related fatalities

BE{ER AR A B BINRE

Number of work-related injuries 3
HEXHBENIER
Days lost due to injury 275
EIGHEEATIERH

Total and Average Training Hours Per Staff Member in 2019

2019 & £ 8 T #1255 8 R A 155 5 b5 B

Rank

Senior Level 144.75 6.89
SHMAE

Middle Level 571.25 10.78
RPN =

General Staff 7,385.00 16.98
—REBRAE
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HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX

TABLE

General
Disclosures and
KPIs

—RIFEER
BEENER

Aspect A1: Emissions
BE1: ATEERY

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI'A1.1

KPI'A1.2

KPI'A1.3

KPI'A1.4

KPI'A1.5

KPI'A1.6
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COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED

Description

g

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

ERERKRERBHMR  MAKRLEEES - F

ERFEEEEYNEESTH :

(@) BUK: R

(b) EFHBETABERAZEMNHEBRERERAED
BB R -

The types of emissions and respective emissions

data.

HE AR Y0 1 KR I AR R R AR o

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity.
BRERBEHFRERTE -

Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.

MELBERRNBERTR

Total non-hazardous waste produced and
intensity.

EEIFEZEEYEERER -

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and
results achieved.

e 2L VR (K R A2 O HE B R FTAS B R ©

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and
results achieved.

R R ERIIFBEEEEMN AL REEES
BRI R PSR o

AERBEEBRA R

B (RR HEREGHREE
5]) MERBREIR

Reference
Chapters Page No.
SREW =]

Remarks

B

Environmental
Aspects
RIBEFZHE
— General
Disclosure
— R EE
— Green Office
RRER
— Green
Manufacturing
RIREE

73, 75-78

79-82 Restatement of PM
emission in 2018 to be
0.47kg

EH Y2018 F BRI

BO0ATA T

Environmental
Data Summary
BRI 5

Environmental 79-82
Data Summary
ERBE— B
Environmental
Data Summary
BRERE B
Environmental
Data Summary
EHBIE— %
Green 78
Manufacturing
RIREE

Green 78
Manufacturing
RIREE

79-82

79-82
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Description
i ot

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EmA2 - ERERA

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI'A2.1

KPI'A2.2

KPI' A2.3

KPI A2.4

KPI' A2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.
BERERABER (BEER KEREMERME) /K
%o

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type
in total and intensity.

RERESNEER SHEEEREEEREE -
Water consumption in total and intensity.
BREKEBREE -

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and
results achieved.

it RER 2 A Az 5t B PR ASAR

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

3 S BRGE AR KO AT A R fe] R RE - LA R R AR K
Mt B RPIERR -

Total packaging material used for finished
products and with reference to per unit produced.

HRRAAERMHNERERBEEEMHE -

Reference
Chapters
SREMH

Environmental

Aspects

RIBFZHE

— General
Disclosure
— R

— Green Office
RRERE

— Green
Manufacturing

IRIREE
Environmental
Data Summary
RAKE—H
Environmental
Data Summary
RAKR—H
— Green Office

RRER
— Green

Manufacturing

IRIREE

— Green Office
RIREE

— Green
Manufacturing
RIREE

Environmental

Data Summary
B BIE— B

BRI HEREBRS (B)

Page No. Remarks

" B £

73, 75-78

79 & 82

79 & 82

75-78

75-78

79 & 82
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General
Disclosures and

KPls Reference
—REER Description Chapters Page No. Remarks
BRERER i SREH B B &

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BEA3: REBERRAER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant Environmental 73, 75-78
— T impact on the environment and natural resources.  Aspects
WEBTAHBERRABRENEATZENR REFTEHE
xo - General
Disclosure
—RIKEE
— Green Office
RREE
— Green
Manufacturing
IRIREE
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities Green Office 75-78
on the environment and natural resources and the  RIREE
actions taken to manage them. Green
W EBTHHRBERRAAERNEAFYENE  Manufacturing
KREEEMTZENITE- RIREE

Aspect B1: Employment

[EEB1 : £ %
General Disclosure Information on: Social Aspects 83-85
— R R (@) the policies; and HEEXZHE
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and — General
regulations that have a significant impact Disclosure
on the issuer relating to compensation — R
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, — Employment
working hours, rest periods, equal and Welfare
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, &% & 1& 7
and other benefits and welfare.
B R R BERES  THERS - REA-F
EHE - 2k RIRAE AR E 58 R EF g
(@) BE: R
(b) BEFHBETABEAZENHEBEERRARM
AR -
KPI'B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age Social Data 90
group and geographical region. Summary
BRI EEEE  FREN BRI SNESRE HSHE—F
o
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and  Social Data 90
geographical region. Summary

ZIER FRAR MR E S HER MK E- HEHE—%8
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General

Disclosures and

KPls

—REER Description
BREVER i utt

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EMB2 : RFEHET 2

General Disclosure Information on:
— R (@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

FERHEZ2TERERREREREBEBELESR

FH

(@) HBE: Rk

(b) EFHEBEITABEAZENHEEERERAM
BB R -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

ETEMEMIE T AB R X

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
HAITEGHRATERH:
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety

measures adopted, how they are implemented
and monitored.

F it P R AN O B 2R R R B 2 2 - DA AR AT
REETE-

Aspect B3: Development and Training

JEmEB3 : BRE R

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and

— R T skills for discharging duties at work. Description
of training activities.
BERHEE BT TIERE &Y A H AR BUR ©
B IFIES o

KPI'A3.1 The percentage of employees trained by employee
category.
ZEEBEMNESHZIEEE L

KPI'A3.2 The average training hours completed per

employee by employee category.

REBERNE D SREBTRZIH TR -

BRI HEREBRS (B)

Reference
Chapters Page No. Remarks
SREH =1 Bt 3£

Social Aspects 83 & 85-86
HEeXEHE
— General
Disclosure
—MRIREE
— Workplace
Health and
Safety
TEMfE R
o

Social Data 91
Summary

HEEE—Y

Social Data 91
Summary

HEBE—F

Workplace Health 85-86

and Safety
TEfRRERRZ 2

Social Aspects 83 & 86
HETFTEHE
— General
Disclosure
—RIRE
— Staff
Development
BTERE
Social Data 91
Summary
HEEE—8
Social Data 9
Summary
HEHE -8
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General
Disclosures and

KPls Reference
—REER Description Chapters Page No. Remarks
BRERER i SREH B B &

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[EEB4 : &5 T 2R
General Disclosure Information on: Social Aspects 83-85
— R E (a) the policies; and e EEE
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and - Ganaral
regulations that have a significant impact on Didlesine
the issuer relating to preventing child and _ emar—
forced labour. - ﬁxﬁ&&g
HBBIEE TR M ST - Employment
@ HE: R and ngiare
b) MIHBFTAGEARE0AMEARRHG  (REREF
BE Rt o
KPI A4 .1 Description of measures to review employment Employment and ~ 84-85
practices to avoid child and forced labour. Welfare
B AR EINEEAREETRAHSET .  meper
KPI A4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such Employment and ~ 84-85
practices when discovered. Welfare
BREERERERHERERERARENE EmpE
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
JETBS : /e EE
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social Social Aspects 83 & 88
— MR risks of the supply chain. HEerEHE
I RS IR B W R R _ General
Disclosure
—MRIKEE
— Supply Chain
Management
1 e 9 12
KPI A5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain 88
?Eﬂtlﬁ%ﬂ’ﬁﬂ'ﬂfﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ%l B e Management
e 2 B R
KPI'A5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging Supply Chain 88
suppliers, number of suppliers where the Management
practices are being implemented, how they are HESEE

implemented and monitored.
fet B B A AR ER  mEHRITERBER
HEBBE URBRAEBINATRERD A
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Description
i ot

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[BHEB6 : EmMEE

General Disclosure

—REE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.

ERARHEERNMRBHEEEZE BS BH

KRB EE A RERT AR :

(@) HBE: Rk

(b) HSFHEITABEAFENBEAERAEA
&R

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

BEB7 : RE)S
General Disclosure

—REE

KPI'A7.1

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

BRABIERERR B3R BRRE RO R A

(@) BE: R

(b) BEFEEBEITABEARZENEEERERARA
BYE R -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding

corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its

employees during the reporting period and the

outcomes of the cases.

RERBAANHBETAXHEERHVEEENE

EHRARGEEA RFRER -
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Reference
Chapters Page No.
SREH =1

Remarks

B =

Social Aspects
HETEHE

— General

83, 86-87

Disclosure
— R

— Product Quality
EmEXR

Social Aspects 83 & 88
HEeEEXEHRE
— General
Disclosure
—RIREE
— Supply Chain
Management
HIEHEE IR

General 83
Disclosure

—RIKE
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General
Disclosures and

KPIs Reference
—REER Description Chapters . Remarks
BRERER i SREH B &

Aspect B8: Community Investment
[ETEBS : it KE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand  Social Aspects 83 & 89
— R the needs of the communities where the issuer HEErEHE
operates and to ensure its activities take into — General
consideration the communities’ interests. Disclosure
BRAAIE R 2R T iR & BT R FHE EMELR —MRIREE
HEBEHEEREENEOBUR - — Caring for the
Community
BEA
KPI A8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Caring for the 89
HrERiEE - Community
Bt =
KPI A8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. Caring for the 89
EEFHBEMEAER - Community

ik
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TING HO KWAN & CHAN
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS (PRACTISING)

9th Floor, Tung Ning Building
249-253 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on
pages 106 to 284, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

B EE RS

i

X1 EIR

ol

%‘:

S i
BAREBEEERATDRRE
(REEAME T2 HRAE])

=

AIZEAED (AT (3] BB EHRE
10652848 K AWM EBGR AR (LA THE
BIERR) REMBAR (LTHBEIES
B])WGREMBHRE Y BRERBENRZ
T-NF+_A=Z+—HHKRAMBERRE
HEEZALFENRARER KEAE2E
WHmE GEEREDREGAHSRER
NRGEMBREMT (RREEXESHBR
BME) -

BRRR ZEHFAMBRRCRER B
fhag ([BEGEAE])BME (FAEM
BREER) ([ (BEMBRELER) |DE
EMAFRREEER -_T—-NF+_-A
=t ANKREMBRARBEZBILFE
ERENSGAVBRAREGERSRE
WEEREE (RAHED) ZRESR-

RRE®
HMEREBEFTESFAMASRMN (FEE
FHERD ([ (BAEFER]) |ETER
BPEZSEN TAENEEEEARS [Z
BB AV BERROEE] BBOF1IE
E—TR - REFEGTMARH (FXE
sEpEESTA) (Is781)) HABINESE
W ERESTRIETEMERSE T HPIAE
E BAMESHNEZEERHREEE M
REFNEREHER-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYZBEHRE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

BRRETEE
FRREBTFHERBERMANEXZAE  RRH
AU AN B REANBEARREENSTE-
ZEEFRRERMBFEREOMBRENK
HABRRBETREN -RATEHZES
RREEBENER -

opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Key Audit Matters
HREETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EMNERNMNEERREREE

Impairment of goodwill
Refer to note 19 to the Group consolidated financial
statements.

FLHESBEGRAMBEHRAMEI9 -

The Group has goodwill of HK$53,483,000 relating to
the acquisition of KFE Hong Kong Co., Limited in 2013
which is engaged in trading of printed circuit board.

EEERR _E—=FUBHR _EMRFTEERAA
(ERE=GRBEIRES)  ELRHE SR /R53,483,00087T

Management has concluded that there is no impairment
in respect of the goodwill. This conclusion was based on
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units ("CGU") to which goodwill has been allocated. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
and to determine a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate its present value. Key assumptions for the value
in use calculation are future cash flow forecast, growth
rate and discount rate, where small changes of them can
result in a significant change in the value in use.
ERERAYEFBERBNRE -Z&wmIREBEHED
HENReELSN ((ReELEM])EREEMNR
FAmMEL - EEREER  EREAGARPERSE
AEUVEFNARRERREETAENBBEXRUGFER
B-FHEERBEENEIERIARKRR LRI BRE
MEEHR X EZEFEE LB/ EE AIHEREEBKE
RNEH-

The impairment assessment involves significant
judgements made by management and therefore is
identified as a key audit matter.

WE G RERBIELOERAE B #E5 A8
RETEE-

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED e« AE#HMEEERAA

BERE
Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment included:

B EEE ZREMNEZIEFEE:

Obtaining the cash flow forecast prepared by
management, reviewed and discussed with
management on the major assumptions adopted
in the cash flow forecast for each CGU and
checked arithmetic accuracy of the forecast
calculation.

REEEERENRERNTEN HEBREEMK
MwmARREREARSEReESELRAN
FEREZ TREAERANEES D LR

Comparing the growth rate, budgeted sales and
gross margin to historical results to determine
the reasonableness of the assumptions.

RIERE FAEHEREMNEEBEREIELE
NHEERREEAE -

Assessing the discount rate used by management
in the cash flow forecast by benchmarking
against the required rate of return adjusted for
industrial specific factors.
NITEBEREZRABOMTLORERELE HE
BENE RIS EEL G-

Reviewing the sensitivity analysis prepared by
management on the significant assumptions
including the growth rate and the discount
rate to evaluate the extent of impact of these
assumptions on the cash flow forecast.

EHEREEREARRK (BRERXLMEAE) K
HOFRESN UFEZEFRRERLRER

MEEREE-



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By ZBE RS (B)

Key Audit Matters
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EMNERNMEERRELREE

Valuation of inventories
Refer to note 25 to the Group consolidated financial
statements.

FLHESEGRA M HRAM 25 -

The Group has inventories with carrying amount of
approximately HK$434,640,000 which is subject to a risk
that changes in customer demand could result in some
products becoming slow-moving or obsolete, such that
they could not be sold or could only be sold with selling
prices that are less than the current carrying value. This
means there is inherent subjectivity and estimation is
needed in determining the level of inventory provision
required.

BEEEREEN A434,640,0008 T2 FEFEREF R
REC BRI D EmFHIGAR  EBEELERE
NERBEREEHENESELHENRAR BT 2 EREMN
EREREKIEFEIHEMGEANTE

The Group has made a reversal of inventory provision
of approximately HK$8,337,000 in 2019. Significant
judgements on the percentage of general provision
and the amount of specific provision made are required
by management in determining the adequacy of the
inventory provision.
BEEER_ZE-NFEHARE,337,0008 T2 FERE
O - BEFEREBEEERIK TETEEN —REHE
MBEDLREERENSRIELERHAE-

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance
to the Group consolidated financial statements as a
whole, together with the judgement associated with
determining the adequacy of the inventory provision.
ENGEEREGESV BRI ER INE2 N L5’
ERERBRERD B S RAME  Hit7F 8 G EH®ER
REARETER-

FEME
Our procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on inventory provision included:

BB EECFERBIEZIEFEE:

— Inquiring and understanding from management
the inventory provision policy of the Group.

MEEEEARTHESENTFERBRR-

— Assessing the reasonableness of the inventory
provision made by the Group by obtaining
the aging analysis and slow-moving inventory
lists from management and discussing with
management on the basis of inventory provision
made.
MERENSEFKREDITMERFESE I
HEREIRTEREBNEE EMAEESEE
FEHNEEREBERETAE-

—  Performing testing on the inventory aging to
assess the accuracy of the basic data used to
determine the provision and re-performing
the provision calculation to check arithmetic
accuracy.
HEFENEFEETRR AT BIEH B EE
MERBBEERER WENITERBUZEE
BH)ERENE -

— Understanding from management the rationale
for the specific adjustments and assessing the
assumptions made where there are specific
adjustments on the inventory provision.
MERETHMETARNEE TARAEEERE
e E R AT E L B RER

—  Reviewing subsequent sales on the inventory
samples selected to assess whether the
inventories were able to be sold at prices above
their carrying values.
EHNQERNTFERAZREHE RN FEF
ERAAIESNERAENEREL -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYZBEHRE (&)

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED e« AE##MEEERAA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control;

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors;

B RS ()

BRBMRET REMBERERNEE

BAMBER THRAVBBEREBRS T
T 7 0 70 BN AF 2088 5R T 28 2 BB K #E AR PRt
BREAERE THABERMERNWZH
B & o HAPIRILREE (R AUERDI) F405
REVIRE - ER BB B #RE o BR UL BASH - B
PIEy & TR BIEE M AR - AT A
BENADT HEMEMBA TR EIAEZX
BEE -ABRRIFRSKEHRSE BETRER
EILR (BAEFEFER) ETNRT EX—
BN 5 RR R T 1 B 4B BE B 3R o 38 AR BR L 7T
AR FFRERLIE IRAERHEME
BRERERAEZEREMBRRERE
REMBRERAELOEERE  MAREN
BRI AT R ARIEE AN
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RRER:

s HREEZAMAANBPIES  URF8E

% i B
ENEZEF BEAEEHEEER
MEHOAMIEEERER:

e HEMAEHBEELRE UREF
PrERstERERARETSAE

—ZT—AEEHR e+ Annual Report 2019

103



104

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYZBEHRE (&)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern;

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Chan Shu Kin.

TING HO KWAN & CHAN
Certified Public Accountants (practising)

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020

B RS ()
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

e W

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
k23 FET FET
Revenue A 5 2,344,923 2,682,452
Cost of sales 8 & AR A 25(b) (1,967,383) (2,245,294)
Gross profit EF 377,540 437,158
Other income and gains, net H b A K W F R 6 66,516 45,202
Selling and distribution costs DEEE (168,808) (153,780)
Administrative expenses TEE A (221,354) (251,593)
Operating profit RERF 53,894 76,987
Finance costs M5 E R 7 (24,958) (21,856)
Investment income KEWA 8 4,486 4,938
Share of results of associates FEAL B & A R FEAE 21 2,991 1,658
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHMER R BT - 44,588
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary 35 — M B 2 A2 & F 2,662 1,904
Profit before tax R B A 2 R 9 39,075 108,219
Taxation IR 11 (14,191) (19,467)
Profit for the year RERF 24,884 88,752
Profit attributable to: FE {2 F
— Equity shareholders —ARAIRERFEA
of the Company 15,755 74,052
— Non-controlling interests — IR NS 9,129 14,700
24,884 88,752
Earnings per share for profit FRRRAIREREE ARG
attributable to the equity sl
shareholders of the Company
during the year 12
- Basic —E XK 1.83 HK centsiEfl  9.36 HK centsi#{ll
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using A/##: AEBEERZZZT—hLhF—A—BEALE

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See note 3.

The notes on pages 116 to 284 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e EHEWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —ET-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
Bt it FET FET
Profit for the year AERF 24,884 88,752
Other comprehensive (expense)/ REMBRIRIER 2
income for the year, net of tax: Hih2mE () M 13
ltems that have been reclassified EEHoBASHE] SN
or may be reclassified subsequently ¥ ZEEm2IEE :
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising from 28 & 5 5 75 5 765 3R K 5
translation of financial statements E4£ ZJER =%
of foreign operations (24,150) (56,348)
Share of reserves of associates JE(R B & N Rl 21 (650) (1,031)
Reclassification adjustments: DR
Release of translation reserve upon H%& —E B QA 7k
disposal of a subsidiary WER FEER L - 547
Release of translation reserve upon &% 85— &M B A 716
deregistration of a subsidiary WE R FEER L (2,662) (1,904)
(27,462) (58,736)
ltems that will not be reclassified T&&ZEFHHEE
to profit or loss: BmEE:
Surplus on revaluation of properties B Y3 & & &
held for own use 16,158 11,485
(11,304) (47,251)
Total comprehensive income AFEETEHKRHZLE
for the year 13,580 41,501
Total comprehensive income EhEEERSARE:
attributable to:
— Equity shareholders of the —ARERERFEA
Company 5,339 32,900
- Non-controlling interests —FEIER 8,241 8,601
Total comprehensive income AEEHKRZLE
for the year 13,580 41,501

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using A/a#: AEBERZZT—hLhF—A—BEALE

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the RIEE WA B R E B G HmEERE
comparative information is not restated. See note 3. 1658 - BRI F % EREB AT EY - R
B3 ©

The notes on pages 116 to 284 are an integral part of these Z116E284B 2MABAGKAEMBRERZ —

consolidated financial statements.

BB -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BB R

At 31 December 2019 —F—F+=-A=1+—H

108

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
it FET FET
Non-current Assets RBEE

Property, plant and equipment W BB k&EE 15 597,417 618,271
Leasehold land and land use rights & + 3t & + b {F F3 # 17 = 40,271
Right-of-use assets EREEE 18 99,973 -
Goodwill kS 19 53,483 53,483
Intangible assets B EE 20 5,071 6,454
Interests in associates Bt N EIRE R 21 32,809 31,139

Financial assets at NEEEFAEMERE

fair value through other WamzemEE
comprehensive income 22 - -
Finance lease receivables FEW R E TR E K IE 23 40,175 44,451
Deferred tax assets RAEFLIEE E 24 29,577 26,419
858,505 820,488
Current Assets REEE

Inventories e 25 434,640 491,937
Finance lease receivables ER R EHE A 23 102,432 109,249
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E b ERGRIA 26 890,987 934,171
Other financial assets HttemEE 27 4,687 33,930
Current tax recoverable ZKHA |y Uy [B] 75 18 5 2,216
Cash and bank balances Be R4 28 312,633 339,702
1,745,384 1,911,205

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
mEBRRE (&)

At 31 December 2019 —F—hFE+=-A=+—H

2019 2018
—ZE-NEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
i FET FAET
Current Liabilities RBasE
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk E AR FRIE 29 699,646 792,545
Contract liabilities SHBRE 29 66,202 66,323
Provision for restructuring B 30 = 30,238
Provision for indemnity BEERE 37 = 25,780
Amount due to an associate R — &R B 5RIE 149 704
Bank borrowings IRITER 37 299,843 357,052
Lease liabilities HEaE 32 14,052 -
Obligations under finance leases mMEMREER 32 — 2,547
Current tax payable N HA FE A B I8 5,297 5,732
1,085,189 1,280,921
Net Current Assets BREBEE 660,195 630,284
Total Assets less Current HWEERBRRBEE
Liabilities 1,518,700 1,450,772
Non-current Liabilities kRBEB
Bank borrowings RITER 31 53,376 20,111
Lease liabilities HEAE 32 49,250 -
Obligations under finance leases RMEMEER 32 = 4,528
Deferred tax liabilities RERIE B (& 24 29,633 25,848
132,259 50,487
Net Assets FEE 1,386,441 1,400,285
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

melBRRE (&)

At 31 December 2019 —F—F+=-HA=1+—H

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
it FET FET
Equity &
Capital and reserves attributable to A AR ER A A E(L
equity shareholders BRI EE
of the Company:
Share capital i 33 609,027 609,027
Reserves ff# 18 562,642 557,303
Proposed final dividend EEAHKE 14 = 17,239
1,171,669 1,183,569
Non-controlling Interests FERER 214,772 216,716
Total Equity ERAE 1,386,441 1,400,285

The consolidated financial statements on pages 106 to 284 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
30 March 2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

TANG TO
BE

DIRECTOR
EZF

Pl

A

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See note 3.

The notes on pages 116 to 284 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

an\ 1: ]

3L 424

Z \ mom

BE)R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARERERE AR
Proposed Non-
Share Other final Retained controlling Total
capital reserves dividend profits Total interests equity
E% AL e A/ 4 N/
RA Efhff AERE  REBEN BE  ERER  EREE
(Note 34)
(Hiit34)
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000
FET FET TET FET FET FET FET
Balance at 1 January 2018, RZZ-N\5-R-AF{
as previously reported g e E 532,903 153,368 - 394223 1,080,494 211645 1,292,139
Changes in accounting policies BHRRE - - - (5,949) (5,949) (563) (6,512)
Balance at 1 January 2018, restated -\5-A-R0"
B\ﬁ 532,903 153,368 - 388,274 1,074,545 211,082 1,285,627
Profit for the year REEM - - - 74,052 74,052 14,700 88,752
Other comprehensive (expense)fincome AEEMRE (FH)/
for the year: U
Release of translation reserve upon HE-BNBRAR
disposal of a subsidiary WEARERD - 547 - - 547 - 547
Share of reserves of associates EEHERAGEE - (1,031) - - (1,031) - (1,031)
Surplus on revaluation of properties ERMEERRS
held for own use - 13,200 - - 13,200 1,102 14,302
Deferred taxation adjustment BERHERR - (2,650) - - (2,650) (167) 2,817)
Exchange differences arising from translation of A Z &/ EREBHRE
financial statements of foreign operations EECERER - (49,314) - - (49,314) (7,034) (56,348)
Release of translation reserve upon HE-ERER AR
deregistration of a subsidiary HERRBERS - (1,904) - - (1,904) - (1,904)
Total other comprehensive expense AERMAARILAE
for the year - (41,152) - - (41,152 (6,099) (47,251)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) rE2ENE/
for the year ()@ - (41,152) - 74,052 32,900 8,601 41,501
Release of revaluation reserve upon HE-RRBA A
disposal of a subsidiary REGRERD - (9,028) - 9,028 - - -
Transaction with owners: BEFEIRS:
Issue of ordinary shares BTERR 76,124 - - - 76,124 - 76,124
Dividend to the non-controlling shareholders  £aFEERIRE 2k & - - - - - (2,967) (2,967)
Proposed final dividend (note 74) BERBRE (HiE14) - - 17,239 (17,239) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\E+ZA=+-H
&5 609,027 103,188 17,39 454,115 1,183,569 216,716 1,400,285
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using  A7i#: AEEER® —NWE—RA—RERKE

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See note 3.

Details of other reserves of the Group during the year are set out

in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

AEBRAFREZHMERE

aTEI'\JL/F)ﬂP&E//\?m‘m%/%ﬂﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁ,ﬂﬂ%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

HAERRDE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ERARESEAEL
Proposed Non-
Share Other final Retained controlling Total
capital reserves dividend profits Total interests equity
(5]
Kx  HttRk KBRS REER aE  FBREE  BREER
(Note 34)  (Note 14)
(Hit34)  (KiE)
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000
FEn FEn FEz FEn TEn FEz FEn
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZZ-hE-R-B&H 609,027 103,188 17,239 454,115 1,183,569 216,716 1,400,285
Profit for the year KERF - - - 15,755 15,755 9,129 24,884
Other comprehensive (expense)/income RELMRE(ZH)/
for the year: Wiz :
Share of reserves of associates [N - (650) - - (650) = (650)
Surplus on revaluation of properties ERNEERRE
held for own use - 18,044 - - 18,044 1,719 19,763
Deferred taxation adjustment BERERE - (3,344) - - (3,344) (261) (3,605)
Exchange differences arising from translation of A&/ EKEBHRE
financial statements of foreign operations EECELZER - (21,804) - - (21,804) (2,346) (24,150)
Release of translation reserve upon HE-ERERRR
deregistration of a subsidiary B BERL - (2,662) = = (2,662) = (2,662)
Total other comprehensive expense AEEMEAT LS
for the year - (10,416) - - (10,416) (888) (11,304)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) RERENE/
for the year (i) s - (10,416) - 15,755 5,339 8,241 13,580
Transaction with owners: BRFELNS:
Dividend to the non-controlling shareholders  &A3FERER 2R & - - - - - (10,433) (10,433)
Dividends approved in respect of BEFERHERE
the previous year (note 74) (Hi#14) - - (17,239) - (17,239) = (17,239)
Capital contribution from non-controlling FERBERLE
shareholders - - - - - 248 248
Balance at 31 December 2019 RZE-NETZA=1-H
3 609,027 92,112 - 469,870 1,171,669 214,772 1,386,441

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the

comparative information is not restated. See note 3.

Details of other reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

The notes on pages 116 to 284 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #iZ2 =%

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Bank and other interest income
Finance costs
Realised and unrealised gain on
other financial assets
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Gain on deregistration of
a subsidiary
Share of results of associates
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of leasehold land
and land use rights
Amortisation of intangible assets
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Surplus on revaluation of
properties held for own use
Unused provision for restructuring
reversed
Reversal of provision for indemnity
Allowance/(reversal of allowance)
for impairment of
bad and doubtful debts
(Written back)/written down of
inventories, net

EEED
B4 4 A
@5 AR

RIT R E A F B YA
MEER
HMeRMEEZD

BN LRER AR
HE—RHBARZ8H
A -ERBARZ AR

FEAG B & R A A
ME -BERREBITE

EREEENE

MG £ o L 30 (5 4
B 5

BB E#H
HEME  BE K

Eeg =gl
BRAMEERARR

RS BEHEEE
o] 3 B (B B
RERREREE ()

FERE (D), BE

Notes

libgE3

21

25(b)

an\ IE:@/)“:E%

—NE+ZA=1—HIFE

2019 2018
—E—hE — \4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
39,075 108,219
(3,836) (3,603)
24,958 21,856
(650) (1,335)
= (44,588)
(2,662) (1,904)
(2,991) (1,658)
69,517 69,396
14,967 -
= 1,350
1,383 1,384
(566) (446)
= (915)
(20,290) (19,612)
(25,780) -
11,703 (9,638)
(8,337) 13,201
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

HERTREXR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
k23 FET FET
Operating cash flows before EEESHBA2KERER
changes in working capital 96,491 131,707
Decrease/(increase) in inventories TFERD, (3Em) 56,427 (3,950)
Increase in finance lease JE Uk B & TE & R IR 1 0
receivables (1,747) (33,126)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 K& EH b e W E IR
other receivables A (s 26,833 (60,188)
Decrease in trade and other B 5 REMBENKER
payables and contract liabilities EHaERD> (77,183) (30,568)
Cash generated from operations KEFHEEZ RS 100,821 3,875
Restructuring costs paid BfREHER 30 (9,286) (1,632)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEAREM (2,874) (693)
Overseas tax paid BAEINE R (12,640) (20,186)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/  R&ZEEL (FH) 2
(USED IN) OPERATING R& T8
ACTIVITIES 76,021 (18,636)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETEH
Decrease/(increase) in pledged B MR ITFER
bank deposits L (3ghn) 48,980 (23,062)
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE BELEE
equipment (48,058) (44,222)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE HE L& 2 KB
plant and equipment 1,881 2,603
Interest received 24 E 3,836 3,603
Net proceeds on disposal of other HEHM SR EE 2
financial assets FIBF 8 29,664 -
Net payment for other financial ST E AR R & R
assets - (13,760)
Dividend received from associates U EREf & A &) % B 719 1,498
Dividend paid XA’ E (17,239) -
Repayments of deferred BERLEEMNRE
consideration payable - (1,000)
Repayments from associates Bk & N AR X 342 1,485
Proceeds from disposal of a HE—MWEB QAR ZRE
subsidiary - 65,434
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ REZFBHEXL (FH)2
(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES R&FE 20,125 (7,421)

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED e« AE#HMEEERAA



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
meReRER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2019 2018
—ZE-NEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
B &t FETT FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mMEEE
Repayment of bank loans EERITER 36 (338,540) (290,256)
Interest paid BT FE 36 (19,844) (21,650)
Repayment of obligations BEREHEEN
under finance leases 36 - (3,559)
Capital element of ENEERENAEIH
lease rentals paid 36 (12,308) -
Interest element of BENAERESHFE I KD
lease rentals paid 36 (5,114) -
New bank loans raised HIERITER 36 321,299 245,338
Advance to an associate BN —RHBERR 2
KIB 36 (553) (161)
Dividend paid to the AT IR R S
non-controlling shareholders 36 (10,433) (2,967)
Repayment to the non-controlling &% #& /K JF 122 PR RS B2 7008
shareholders 36 - (745)
Capital contribution from BB REEE
non-controlling shareholders 248 -
Issue of new shares BITHRR 33 = 76,124
Finance charges paid ERmEHEERNE 36 - (206)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED B & EE (M),
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES EXCHeFE (65,245) 1,918
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN ReRBESEEEM CRD)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS E%E 30,901 (24,139)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B &RBAEEE
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 282,678 315,922
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ER# g/ &
RATE CHANGES (3.848) (9,105)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S XBESRHEESZEE
AT END OF THE YEAR 28 309,731 282,678

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using it ASBEER_ZT—NF—A—HERAKE

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the RIMEMEAE RN E BN IEREERE
comparative information is not restated. See note 3. 1655 BB IL 05 LA AT EY - R
BFE3 ©

The notes on pages 116 to 284 are an integral part of these 11622848 2B AGAMBHER 2 —
consolidated financial statements. B A5 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

GENERAL

Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) is a
public limited company domiciled and incorporated in Hong
Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
address of its registered office is 10/F,, Billion Plaza 2, No. 10
Cheung Yue Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 45.

Saniwell Holding Inc. (“Saniwell”) (a company incorporated
in Cook Islands) is the ultimate holding company of the
Company.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(1) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the
Group”) have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"),
which also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS") and Interpretations (“Int”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the "Listing
Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of interest in leasehold land and buildings
where the Group is the registered owner of the property
interest and certain financial assets, which are carried at
fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)

(1) Basis of preparation (Continued) (1) wREE(F)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed

1B IS BRI ES R E R A
BHEERGEE L HI
MEBR EEHE GBS
YESHRENEAAREE &
WA RE 2B o Bl
SR B R Ty R IR SR AT T
WEEBERTBA R NA XA
1R B T A RS
5 1 FU R 2 0 00 PR T B (L P
BT S8 o B S 1O T 4 LS e A 3
TR -

BLMBE MEERREFET AR

on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates Al e @ FH b TV IE AT E HHE 5T A
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is MELATYE AEFZERSHEEH
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the WR MG e E T EHE AT
period of the revision and future periods if the revision MRRKRBEHEETLE HEX

affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of

L E AR R EEITHER -

BEEEHEHERREAYHREE

HKFRS that have significant effect on the consolidated AR EHANGEVBREBEEY
financial statements and major sources of estimation ZREEIMEEM 2 EERHEZHE
uncertainty are discussed in note 4. M sE49 515

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16, Leases, EEGHMAGCEAS —EFOHE
and a number of amendments to HKFRSs that are B BEmEER BEMBREE
first effective for the current accounting period of the AlZE16%: HEN R ZIHLEETH
Group and the Company. Note 3 provides information BEERBHMEER  BEEFTER
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from SEEAMARAN ARG T HEERE
initial application of these developments to the extent B M3 B ARMZEEME
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and WGt REEMEHREEHRE

prior accounting periods reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

£t AR EIL F4RE B
BRARRAEE 2 NEE KB T
SEtHRAR-

—ZT—AEEHR e+ Annual Report 2019

J=1-/



118

For the year ended 31 December 2019 L2 =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(2) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and the entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

- has power over the investee;
— is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

—  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)

(2) Basis of consolidation (Continued) 2) #EFRA (&)

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRS).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 (note 2(9)), when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture (note 2(3)).

AEBZKERAHERSEHZ
ESEEARRHEE BE #&
@ WA AXMRERETINEGS
fR B R B ES -

FEBREEHBLAZHEERE
KB

AEBERMBRAR ZHEBEEEZD
BEMY EEYAEEUELEE
Bl RIERRERS AR - A%
B eyt o IR R B S M BR A B A
HEIARRM B AR 2 HEERE
BoMABRFERERSBECDH
FEWREHRFEEZEHEM
EREERRNBA RS ERLFER
KRRFEBA

BN B R HH B A B )
- BERERRERILIAGNGE KK
BAFEERMEAREEDZATE
ENRBREGINBLAREE (24
8 ) M BB DA R R A7) JF 12 B b
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A E Al 2 T UK 2 R AR B R Y B 1 A
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EERLEZMBAR 2 HEEE
FEENEAR (RERER
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 L2 =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(2) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

— deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
benefits” respectively;

—  liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations” are measured in accordance with that
standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(2) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity's net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(2) Basis of consolidation (Continued) 2 #EFRA (&)

2. TESHBEBE (&)

Business combinations (Continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depend
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or
a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates
in accordance with HKFRS 9, or HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(2)

(3)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
at that date.

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy

decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBEERBEE (£)

POLICIES (Continued)

(3) Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale). Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition
change in the Group's share of the investee’s net assets
and any impairment loss relating to the investment.
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated income statement,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associates or the joint ventures, the Group's interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the Group's interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the
Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associates or the
joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(3) Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and the joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the investee, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence is lost, is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (note 2(9)).

In the Company's statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
at cost less impairment losses, unless classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)

(4) Property, plant and equipment 4) ME-BRERZE

The following properties held for own use are stated at
their revalued amount, being their fair value at the date
of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation:

— interests in leasehold land and buildings where
the Group is the registered owner of the property
interest.

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation
is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the
asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued
amount of the asset.

The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses (see note 2(10)(ii)).

— right-of-use assets arising from leases over
leasehold properties where the Group is not the
registered owner of the property interest;

— items of plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets arising from leases of underlying plant
and equipment (see note 2(24)); and

— Leasehold land and land use rights (see note 2(5)).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed
in profit or loss during the financial period in which they
are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)

(4) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 4) ME -BERZE(EZ)

Revaluations on properties held for own use are
performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that
the carrying amount of these assets does not differ
materially from which would be determined using fair
values at the end of the reporting period.

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated separately
in equity in the property revaluation reserve. The only
exceptions are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in respect
of that same asset immediately prior to the
revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a deficit
on revaluation in respect of that same asset had
previously been charged to profit or loss.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
cost or revalued amounts to their residual values (if any)
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
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Ownership interest in leasehold Unexpired term of ERMEE LN TR EFH
land held for own use the leases FrB R

Ownership interest in buildings 40 years or BRAEFH 40F NI Z
held for own use unexpired term of P R A T4 TH & F 5

the leases, if shorter

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 - 10 years B EER 3E104
B
Plant and machinery 5 - 10 years R E Tt 8 5&10%F
Motor vehicles 3 — 10 years TE 3E 104
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 L2 =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(4) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values (if any) and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. An item of property, plant and
equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset.

Assets under construction represent buildings,
structures, plant and machinery and other fixed assets
under construction or installation and are stated at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses, and
are not depreciated. Cost comprises direct costs
of construction, installation and testing as well as
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction or installation.
Assets under construction are reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
or investment properties when completed and ready for
use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item
and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus
is transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained
profits and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note

2(10)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(5) Leasehold land and land use rights

2. FREHBEBE(E)

(5) HELHR L bEHE

Leasehold land and land use rights are lump sum
upfront payments to acquire long-term interest in

HE T S L AEEREAR
7%%&/\{5% ZEM M E R R B S

certain lessee-occupied properties. RS TR BEE

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 January (A) E=FE—NF—HA—HEFH
2019 = &
These leasehold land and land use rights are ZERELH R T HEAER
reclassified as right-of-use assets at the date of BHREMBE AU HRELERE
initial application of HKFRS 16 and are stated at 16 E BEEFERER

cost less accumulated depreciation (see note 2(4))
and any impairment losses (see note 2(10)(ii)).

BEESHARNBREINE
(BW&E204)) MR ERE (R
2(10)(i) ) ABR©

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31 December B) BZ-_ZFE—NEFEF+-F=+—
2018 AR E s BE
In the comparative period, leasehold land and SEBOMEINEE LR
land use rights relating to certain buildings of the + Mo Y LA AN T BR R A
Group are stated at cost and are amortised over FAZENIZE GF B LTI A
the period of the lease on the straight-line basis to Bamid -
profit or loss.

(6) Goodwill (6) HE

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 L2 =%

—NF+ A=

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(6)

(7)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Research and development
Research expenditure is recognised as an expense
as incurred. Costs incurred on development projects
(relating to the design and testing of new or improved
products) are recognised as intangible assets when the
following criteria are fulfilled:

(i) it is technically feasible to complete the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

(i)  management intends to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it;

(i) there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset
will generate probable future economic benefits;

(v) adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(7)

(8)

Research and development (Continued)
(vi) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period. Capitalised development costs are recorded as
intangible assets and amortised from the point at which
the asset is ready for use on a straight-line basis over its
useful life.

Intangible assets (Other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and accumulated impairment losses
(see note 2(10)(ii)),
assets that are acquired separately.

on the same basis as intangible

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the assets’ estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9) Financial assets

(i)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group's business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments
in debt instruments, this will depend on the
business model in which the investment is held.
For investments in equity instruments that are
not held for trading, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

See Note 43(a) for details of each type of financial
asset.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(9) Financial assets (Continued)
(ii) Recognition and derecognition

2. TESHBEBE (&)

(9) EMEE (&)
(i) TEZRA IR

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are recorded in profit or
loss. Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

FRBARHEZEREER
XPATUER XHBHEXR
SEABBARNBEZEEZ
H-BUWRMEREEMBRSE
MEBZENDEIHKELHE
EOMAKECKHEAREZE
R BB B B [ e 48 7 By - )
RIERTHEE-

(iii) 12

p R AEBEREQF
EBEM(HBLIEARNTFEER
AAEAHEEHFARENERE
BE)EERRENBESRE
ENXHHAFEATRE
E-LAATFEEBFAELHEED
AABRENEREENRHK
AEBmEH AR -EERBK
ATETANEREENR S
MERLE/IMNATMAE
B RERBEZESREE-

BB LA
BERLEMEBESBETAE
BEEZEEZEBERARZ
BEZREREBEME - K
SEBEBERIASEA=E
STEER:

—ZT—AEEHR e+ Annual Report 2019

133



134

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(9) Financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses)
together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated income statement. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income or other income using the effective
interest method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI"): Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other gains/(losses) — net.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income or other income using
the effective interest method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in other gains/
(losses) and impairment expenses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated income
statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(9) Financial assets (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ =%

(9) EWMEE

—NFF=HA=

(%)

1T—HILFE

2. TESHBEBE (&)

(iii) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"): Assets
that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on
a debt investment that is subsequently measured
at FVTPL and is not part of a hedging relationship
is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in
the consolidated income statement within other
losses/gains, net in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established. Changes in the fair value
of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised in other
gains/(losses) — net in the consolidated income
statement. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured
at FVTOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE MR (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 L2 =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on the following
items:

—  financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and bank balances, trade and
other receivables); and

—  finance lease receivables

Financial assets measured at fair value including
other financial assets are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, TEETHRBE(£F)
POLICIES (Continued)
(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (10) EEFEREERE(£Z)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments () EBTAELZIEEEE

(Continued) (&)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued) J”EHH%E}%T%H'JJE (%)
The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using WA T EE R BAHEA S
the following discount rates where the effect of RO A ER DA T B 3R SR AL 3R -

discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets and trade and other - TELRMEERESIRE
receivables: effective interest rate determined fth & W 5K IE - A ) IR W TR
at initial recognition or an approximation RrE TR E RN EH
thereof; (PRI=

—  variable-rate financial assets: current effective — HFEoBMEE:NHER
interest rate; FIE

-  finance lease receivables: discount rate used - Euﬁlrﬁﬁf EFRIE - DARG
in the measurement of the finance lease R ERBBMERER
receivable; IE’

The maximum period considered when estimating BETEREEBERZEEY

ECLs is the maximum contractual period over BEREABAAEERAZEER

which the Group is exposed to credit risk. B R R G IR -

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account Rt=EBHEERERK K&

reasonable and supportable information that EegEZREALETYERAE

is available without undue cost or effort. This SENAERNEEESR
includes information about past events, current KENER BEBRBESE
conditions and forecasts of future economic BRI R R R R A E AR

conditions. TERIE E KL o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE MR (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 L2 =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

—NE+_A=1—HIFE

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following

bases:

- 12-month ECLs:

these are losses that are

expected to result from possible default events

within the 12 months after the reporting date;

and

- lifetime ECLs:

these are losses that are

expected to result from all possible default

events over the expected lives of the items to

which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and finance

lease receivables are always measured at an

amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

ECLs on these

financial assets are estimated using a provision

matrix based on the Group's historical credit loss

experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to

the debtors and an assessment of both the current

and forecast general economic conditions at the

reporting date.

For all other financial instruments,

the Group

recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month

ECLs unless there has been a significant increase in

credit risk of the financial instrument since initial

recognition, in which case the loss allowance is

measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days
past due. The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE MR (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 L2 =%

—NF+ A=

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

F— AR

2. TESHBEBE (&)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the

technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’'s ability to meet its

obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status

and credit risk ratings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account, except for investments in debt securities
that are measured at "FVTOCI” (recycling), for
which the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair
value reserve (recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
2(23) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance)
of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE MR (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 L2 =%

—NF+ A=

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes the following observable events:

—  significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

F— AR

2. TESHBEBE (&)

(10) FEBBREERE (&)

(i)

a breach of contract, such as a default or

— it becoming probable that the borrower

will enter into bankruptcy or other financial

reorganization;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that

have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the

issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
or finance lease receivable is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the

amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in

which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment (other than
ownership interest in leasehold land and
buildings held for own use carried at fair
value);

- land and land use rights classified as being
held under an operating lease;

— investments in subsidiaries and associates
(except for those classified as held for sale or
included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale) in the Company’s statement
of financial position;

- goodwill; and

— intangible assets.
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(10) FEBEBRREERME (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE MR (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(iij) Impairment of other non-current assets

(Continued)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for
use and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)

(11) Borrowing costs

(11) BEERA

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.

(12) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as revenue in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(13) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities
(i) Financial guarantees issued (i)

2. IR BERE (A
(13) BHBBER BERRARE

VE LR F S

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. The fair
value of financial guarantees issued at the time
of issuance is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transactions for similar
services, when such information is obtainable, is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group's policies applicable to that category of
asset. Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in
profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR ME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(13) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 2(13)(iii) if and
when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of
that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation.

Contingent liabilities acquired in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at
the date of acquisition are initially recognised at
fair value, provided the fair value can be reliably
measured. After their initial recognition at fair
value, such contingent liabilities are recognised
at the higher of the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation where appropriate,
and the amount that would be determined in
accordance with note 2(13)(iii). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination that
cannot be reliably fair valued or where not present
obligations at the date of acquisition are disclosed
in accordance with note 2(13)(iii).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEETBRBE (£)

POLICIES (Continued)

(13) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(iiij) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

(13) BEBKER BERRARER
(%)
(iii) EMBEREAEE

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
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economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR ME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(14) Inventories and other contract costs

(i)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process of
production for such sale or in the form of materials
or supplies to be consumed in the production
process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less applicable
variable selling expenses.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(14) Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)
(ii) Other contract costs

2. TESHBEBE (&)

(14) GERAEMBENEAR (&)
(i) BtE#HEE

Other contract costs are either the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract with a customer or
the costs to fulfil a contract with a customer which
are not capitalised as inventory (see note 2(14)(i)),
property, plant and equipment (see note 2(4)) or
intangible assets (see note 2(8)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a
contract with a customer that it would not have
incurred if the contract had not been obtained
e.g. an incremental sales commission. Incremental
costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised when
incurred if the costs relate to revenue which will
be recognised in a future reporting period and the
costs are expected to be recovered. Other costs of
obtaining a contract are expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the
costs relate directly to an existing contract or to
a specifically identifiable anticipated contract;
generate or enhance resources that will be used
to provide goods or services in the future; and
are expected to be recovered. Costs that relate
directly to an existing contract or to a specifically
identifiable anticipated contract may include direct
labour, direct materials, allocations of costs, costs
that are explicitly chargeable to the customer and
other costs that are incurred only because the
Group entered into the contract (for example,
payments to sub-contractors). Other costs of
fulfilling a contract, which are not capitalised
as inventory, property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets, are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBEERBEE (£)

POLICIES (Continued)

(14) Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)

(14) GERAEMBENEAR (&)

(ii) Other contract costs (Continued)

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Impairment losses are recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of the contract cost
asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount of
consideration that the Group expects to receive in
exchange for the goods or services to which the
asset relates, less (ii) any costs that relate directly
to providing those goods or services that have not
yet been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is
charged to profit or loss when the revenue
to which the asset relates is recognised. The
accounting policy for revenue recognition is set out
in note 2(23).

(15) Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 2(23)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the
payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets
are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy set
out in note 2(10)(i) and are reclassified to receivables
when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see note 2(16)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue (see note 2(23)). A contract
liability would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see
note 2(16)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(15) Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)
For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a
net basis.

(16) Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset (note 2(15)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses.

(17) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECls
in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(10)(i).

Pledged bank deposits are not included in cash and
cash equivalents.

2. TESHBEBE (&)

(15) ERNEERAGNERE (&)

REEPFIYNE-—GHOME U
EMEEFEIANEBETFESR
Fl-EBEHME - TNHEBAE DN
BHEENEGHNABIREREE

275

(16) B 5 R H b FE W IR

NEE A A EAGHEF IR ER
HREWRE - TZREDNRAZ A
Al WK ENEMEZTLR R
A AEKF NRBZEAEE
BEEKGEANBRDRAREANLEE®
RRISEENAENEE (R
2(15)) °

& W SR IR T A BB N ROK 1R i SH R
AREEBEBEDR-

(MMBRERAESEE

BehBReFEEBRRITERLR
T ERITREA SRR RS
FRARRE RSN EHIRE -
B E A A RGBT A8
BREMBRENRS MEEER
FrmmERY TEX BERE
MBI BE=A 2R -sLikHR&E
EHERERMS ARERER
WHKAEERSEEZ— &7
RITBEXNINABRE RS EFED
ME D - RE MRS FERME
2010)() PR AT TERHE BB

ERERTEERRe MREeEE
7o

—ZT—AEEHR e+ Annual Report 2019

153



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)

(18) Share capital (18) IR A<

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction (net of tax) from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental
costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company's equity shareholders until
the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of. Where
such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any
consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income
tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
Company's equity shareholders.

(19) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
(if any) measured in accordance with note 2(13)(i),
trade and other payables are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)

(20) Bank and other borrowings (20) BT R HAbfE R

Bank and other borrowings are initially recognised at
fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Transaction
costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset
or financial liability, including fees and commissions
paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies
by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and
transfer taxes and duties. Bank and other borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Bank and other borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.

(21) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)

(21) Income tax (Continued)

(21) FREH (&)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)

(21) Income tax (Continued)

(21) FREH (&)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the future. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTI
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &Z —F—NWF+—-H=

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(21) Income tax (Continued)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)
(22) Employee benefits 22) EERA

(i) Retirement benefit costs (i) BEkEF

Payments to defined contribution plans under
the mandatory provident fund scheme, the ORSO
scheme and state-managed retirement benefits
scheme are charged as expenses as they fall due.

(ii) Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula
that takes into consideration the profit attributable
to the Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is
a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.

(iii) Share-based compensation

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in share option reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the Hull White Trinomial Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the
total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.

(ii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(22) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged or credited to the income
statement for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The
equity amount is recognised in the share option
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share capital) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before the
normal retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a)
when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity
recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(23) Revenue recognition and other income

(i)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received and receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods supplied
or service performed, stated net of rebates and
returns. The Group recognises revenue when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
when it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity; and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below. The Group bases its
estimates of returns on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customers, the
nature of transactions and the specifics of each
arrangement.

Sales of products

Revenue from the sale of good directly to the
customers is recognised at the point that the
control of the inventory have passed to the
customers, which is primarily upon the acceptance
of the products by the customers. The customers
have full discretion over the products, and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customers’ acceptance of the products. The Group
collects cash or bank acceptance notes from the
customers before or upon deliveries of products
through banks. Cash or bank acceptance notes
collected from the customers before product
delivery is recognised as contract liabilities (Note
2(15)).

Installation services income
Installation services income is recognised when the
relevant services are provided.

The Group’s obligation to repair or replace faulty
products under the standard warranty terms, which
cannot be purchased separately and serve as an
assurance that the products sold comply with
agreed-upon specifications at the time of sale.

2. TESHBEBE (&)

(23) W mER R EMKA

(i)

W % B 5T
WAZE W R EH R
EBEAE SuMEEERK
PRETTH R MR 3730 KR
ERWHKIE - BWA S REEH
AISERTE  RREEMzH A
ERAER RAKEREE
B A ABIRTR (W T3P
) AEE SRR - RNE
BIRBEEBTEXREYEREP
8BRS HEEREBETHN
R B AE @R A Ao

EmiHE
EERREPHERMMABTKRA
REENEHECERETEP
B (EBREFPEREMR)
R-BFHERERIWIGRE
AYEARBITRETAZERF
HRZEERNER AKEE
EmR N Z A2 R EBIRTT
AR PKEGE S HIBITALE
IR HEMXN AT A E P Y
MRS HMITEALRERRAE
aMmamE (ME2015)) °

2 R AR T A
RERBWATIREREEH
AR5 12 AR o

AEEEREERBERELERIE
REEERERRBER (ZF
ERIGRTAIEBEELRE
PTHEEMEHERTEHE
RIREVIREE )

—ZT—AEEHR e+ Annual Report 2019

161



162

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(23) Revenue recognition and other income (Continued)
(i) Revenue recognition (Continued)
Finance lease income
Interest income from the finance lease is
recognised on a basis that reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the net investment in the

(i)

finance lease.

Other income

(a)

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are earned.

Handling and services income are recognised
when services are provided.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see note 2(10)(i)).

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established prior to the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(24) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether

the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or

contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to

control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed

where the customer has both the right to direct the use

of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of

the economic benefits from that use.

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2019

(i)

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate non-
lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for

all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset,
the Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 L2 =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(24) Leases (Continued)

—NE+_A=1—HIFE

2. TESHBEBE (&)

(24) K ()
(A) B=E—N&E—F—AEAH

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 January

2019 (Continued)
(i) As a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised,

the lease

liability is initially recognised at the present

value of the lease payments payable over the

lease term, discounted using the interest rate

implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot

be readily determined,

using a relevant

incremental borrowing rate. After initial

recognition, the lease liability is measured

at amortised cost and interest expense is

calculated using the effective interest method.

Variable lease payments that do not depend

on an index or rate are not included in the

measurement of the lease liability and hence

are charged to profit or loss in the accounting

period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a

lease is capitalised is initially measured at

cost, which comprises the initial amount of

the lease liability plus any lease payments

made at or before the commencement date,

and any initial direct costs incurred. Where

applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets

also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle

and remove the underlying asset or to restore

the underlying asset or the site on which it

is located, discounted to their present value,

less any lease incentives received. The right-

of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see notes 2(4) and 2(10)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(24) Leases (Continued)
(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2019 (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines
at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case, the
lease is classified as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE MR (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 L2 =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(24) Leases (Continued)

—NE+_A=1—HIFE

2. TESHBEBE (&)

(24) W (&)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2019 (Continued)

(ii)

As a lessor (Continued)

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with note

2(23)(ii)(a).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor,
the sub-leases are classified as a finance lease
or as an operating lease with reference to
the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease
to which the Group applies the exemption
described in note 2(24)(A)(i), then the Group
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classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease. MEEAKEHEE
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2018 AR E T BE

Leases of assets are classified as finance leases

when the leases transfer substantially all risks

and rewards incidental to ownership of the assets

to the Group. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(24) Leases (Continued)
(B) Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2018 (Continued)

(i)

Leases of land and buildings

Whenever necessary, in order to classify and
account for a lease of land and buildings,
the minimum lease payments (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception
of the lease.

The land element is classified as an operating
lease unless title is expected to pass to the
lessee by the end of the lease term. The
building element is classified as a finance or
operating lease in the same way as leases
of other assets. The payments made on
acquiring land held under an operating lease
are recognised in the statement of financial
position as leasehold land and land use rights
which are stated at cost and are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(24) Leases (Continued)
(B) Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2018 (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Leases of land and buildings (Continued)

If the lease payments on a lease of land
and buildings cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements at
the inception of the lease or the relevant lease
transfers the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the land in accordance with the
criteria set out in HKAS 17, the entire lease is
classified as a finance lease, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases, in
which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease.

Finance leases

Lessee

Assets held under finance leases are
recognised in the statement of financial
position at amounts equal to the fair value
of the leased assets, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, each
determined at the inception of the lease.
The corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, on the finance leases are recorded
as obligations under finance leases. All assets
held under finance leases are classified as
property, plant and equipment, except for
those properties held to earn rental income
which are classified as investment property, in
the statement of financial position.

Depreciation and impairment losses are
calculated and recognised in the same manner
as the depreciation and impairment losses
on property, plant and equipment as set out
in note 2(4), except for the estimated useful
lives cannot exceed the relevant lease terms, if
shorter.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(24) Leases (Continued)
(B) Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2018 (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Finance leases (Continued)
Lessee (Continued)

Minimum lease payments are apportioned
between finance charge and the reduction of
the outstanding liabilities. The finance charge
is recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the lease term so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability.

Lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recognised as receivables at the
amount of the Group’s net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the
leases.

Operating leases

Where the Group is the lessee, lease payments
under an operating lease are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term. Where the Group
is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-
current assets and rentals receivable under the
operating leases are credited to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the
lease period. Contingent rentals are charged
as an expense in the periods in which they are
incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 L2 =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(25) Dividend distribution

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’'s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when
they are proposed and declared.

(26) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group's top management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria. A discontinued segment is
separately presented from continuing segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(27) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK dollars, which
is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency. All values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss, except
those arising from qualifying cash flow hedges
or qualifying net investment hedges which are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities, such as equity instruments
held at fair value through profit or loss, are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets, such as equities
classified as available-for-sale financial assets, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR ME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(27) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iiij) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group

entities (none of which has the currency of a

hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional

currency different from the presentation currency

are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the
translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(27) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii)) Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the translation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when gain
or loss on disposal is recognised.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the year-end closing rate.

(28) Related parties

(i)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control of the Group;
(2) has significant influence over the Group; or
(3) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 L2 =%

—NF+ A=

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

F— AR

2. TESHBEBE (&)

(28) Related parties (Continued)
An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(1

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in note 2(28)(i).

A person identified in note 2(28)(i)(1) has
significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16, Leases, and
a number of amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, Leases, none of the developments
have had a material effect on how the Group’s results and
financial position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period (see note 46).

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17, Leases, and the related
interpretations, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4, Determining whether an
arrangement contains a lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15, Operating
leases — incentives, and HK(SIC)-Int 27, Evaluating the
substance of transactions involving the legal form of a lease.
It introduces a single accounting model for lessees, which
requires a lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability for all leases, except for leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less (“short-term leases”) and leases
of low-value assets. The lessor accounting requirements are
brought forward from HKAS 17 which remain substantially
unchanged.

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
guantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to assess the effect that
leases have on the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of an entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

176

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1
January 2019. The Group has elected to use the modified
retrospective approach to recognise the right-of-use assets at
the amount of the lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments. As a result
there was no impact to the opening balance of retained
profits. Comparative information has not been restated and
continues to be reported under HKAS 17.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes
to previous accounting policies and the transition options
applied are set out below:

(a) New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly relates
to the concept of control. HKFRS 16 defines a lease
on the basis of whether a customer controls the use
of an identified asset for a period of time, which may
be determined by a defined amount of use. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use. The Group applies the new definition of a lease
in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were entered into
or changed on or after 1 January 2019. For contracts
entered into before 1 January 2019, the Group has used
the transitional practical expedient to grandfather the
previous assessment of which existing arrangements
are or contain leases. Accordingly, contracts that
were previously assessed as leases under HKAS 17
continue to be accounted for as leases under HKFRS
16 and contracts previously assessed as non-lease
service arrangements continue to be accounted for as
executory contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEHEES (&)
(Continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

(b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact

BERMBHREERNE165 HE (F)
(b) RHEANEEFBEZE

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to
classify leases as either operating leases or finance
leases, as was previously required by HKAS 17. Instead,
the Group is required to capitalise all leases when it
is the lessee, including leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, other than those
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets which
are exempt. As far as the Group is concerned, these
newly capitalised leases are primarily in relation to
property, plant and equipment as disclosed in note 38.
For an explanation of how the Group applies lessee
accounting, see note 2(24)(A).

At the date of transition to HKFRS 16 (i.e. 1 January
2019), the Group determined the length of the
remaining lease terms and measured the lease liabilities
for the leases previously classified as operating leases
at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the relevant incremental borrowing
rates as at 1 January 2019. The weighted average of
the incremental borrowing rates used for determination
of the present value of the remaining lease payments
was 8%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE MR (B)

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

(b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact

(Continued)

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group applied
the following recognition exemption and practical
expedients at the date of initial application of HKFRS

16:

(i) applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

(i) applied the recognition exemption for leases which
the lease term ends within 12 months of the date

of initial application;

(iii) applied the recognition exemption for leases of low

value assets;

(iv) excluded initial direct costs from the measurement
of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial

application; and

(v) used hindsight, in determining the lease term if the
contract contains options to extend or terminate

the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ERBEEY (&)
(Continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) EBMBHREEDF165 HE (£)
(b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact (b) EEANESABEZE (/)
(Continued)
The following table reconciles the operating lease TERHIIRZ=ZZFE-—NF+=A
commitments as disclosed in note 38 as at 31 =t —BzEMFIFHEBNL
December 2018 to the opening balance for lease EHEREAN _T—NF—A—
liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019: AEwMAEEEBRZHVEHR Y
B :
HK$°000
FET
Operating lease commitments disclosed RZE-N\F+_RA=+—HEEHN
as at 31 December 2018 KEEERH 84,441
Less: adjustments as a result of different W AR IEEEROTREES R
treatment of termination option BYHAE (814)
Less: commitments relating to leases B EREREREEMEE 2 M A
exempt from capitalisation:
— short-term leases with remaining —FBpEBER =T —NF
lease term ending on or before +=ZA=+—Hz%kz
31 December 2019 Al 45 SR A0 78 HAR 4 (4,752)
78,875
Less: total future interest expenses W RRF B AT (18,130)
Present value of remaining lease payments, WAEBR -_ZE—NF—HF—AK
discounted using the Group's incremental  1ZEE{E KA RBEIBAIEE T
borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019 HERBECEE 60,745
Add: obligations under finance leases m:ZZ2—NF+_A=T—HA8RD
recognised as at 31 December 2018 EEAEER 7,075
Total lease liabilities recognised RZZFE-—NF—A—BERHN
as at 1 January 2019 HEaEHERE 67,820
Of which are: Hep a4
Current lease liabilities nBHEAE 10,852
Non-current lease liabilities EmEBEERE 56,968
67,820
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE MR (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

(b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact

BN ERED (&)

ERUBH/EEAE 165 HE (&)
(b) REANEEFBEZE (&)

(Continued)

The recognised right-of-use assets relate to the CHERNERREELRNTERE

following types of assets: EHE:
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—E-NF —E-NF
+=B=+—8H —A—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Land use rights (note a) T RARE (Hfita) 37,930 40,271
Plant and machinery (note b) BB e (Hritb) 6,459 7,364
Land and buildings (note c) T REF (Bitc) 55,037 60,745
Motor vehicle ke 547 -
99,973 108,380

Prepaid lease payment in respect of the land use
right held for own use in the PRC were reclassified as
right-of-use assets at the date of initial application of

The Group reclassified plant and machinery previously
held under finance lease in accordance with HKAS 17
as right-of-use assets at the date of initial application

Note a:

HKFRS 16.
Note b:

of HKFRS 16.
Note c:

The Group has leased several land and buildings for
offices and factories. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of terms
and conditions. Tenures of the leases range from 1 to
10 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEHEES (&)
(Continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

(b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact

BERMBHREERNE165 HE (F)
(b) REANEEFBEEZE (&)

(Continued)

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases previously
classified as operating leases have been recognised at
an amount equal to the amount recognised for the
remaining lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
that lease recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018.

So far as the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
on leases previously classified as finance leases is
concerned, the Group is not required to make any
adjustments at the date of initial application of HKFRS
16, other than changing the captions for the balances.
Accordingly, instead of “obligations under finance
leases”, these amounts are included within “lease
liabilities”, and the depreciated carrying amount of the
corresponding leased assets is identified as right-of-use
assets. There is no impact on the opening balance of
equity.

HERKFELSKEMENTEE L
HEERREECKASEERR
CENEEAE URBE-_Z—N
Ft-A=t—BHEaUBIRRE
RER 2 HHEA T E M R TR S
NHRERBASEIEHAE-

RRABEM S REERE 165 Y
ERRFESRENE CHEEK
VREIN ARERBERENE L
M BsmEERIE 165 E B BEED
FPRERBEUIINZEMAE R
b REERKAATHEAGB M
FIMEMERENR] MAEEESR
EFERAEZRIRERREEE-
HERB GO ERYT EZ

\
/

i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE MR (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)
(b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact

(Continued)

The following table summarises the impacts of the
adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position:

Line items in the consolidated
statement of financial
position impacted by the
adoption of HKFRS 16:

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and
land use rights
Right-of-use assets
Current liabilities
Obligations under finance
leases
Lease liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Obligations under finance
leases
Lease liabilities

Carrying
amount at
31 December
2018
REER
—E-N\E
+ZA=+-H
HK$'000
FHET
BEBMBHRARAR
RnEEnBRs
ERFI6HTEL
ER:
FRBEE
ERY Y& 618,271
MELT R
fERE 40,271
EREEE -
REEE
REMERR
2,547
MERRE -
kRBEE
BMEMERR
4,528
HERRE -

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED e« AE##MEEERAA

3. BFBEREE(£)

ERVBH/EEAF 165 HE (F)
(b) REANEEFBEZE (&)

TERBMRANBBHEHRELERE
165 H AR E A HYBIRRN KRN

26 .
=

Capitalisation
of operating

Reclassification lease contracts

LeRg

ENAE BRERL
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET

(7,364) -

(40,271) -
47,635 60,745

(2,547) -

2,547 8,305

(4,528) -

4,528 52,440

Carrying
amount at
1 January
2019
REER
ZE-hE
—-RA—-H
HK$000
FET

610,907

108,380

10,852

56,968



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BitBREE (£)
(Continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)
(c) Impact on the financial results, segment results

BERMBHREERNE165 HE (F)
(c) BEEBEHBEFRE 7 EFENE

and cash flows of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019, the Group as a
lessee is required to recognise interest expense accrued
on the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and
the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the
previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. This results in a positive impact on the
reported operating profit in the Group’s consolidated
income statement, as compared to the results if HKAS
17 had been applied during the year.

In the consolidated cash flow statement, the Group as a
lessee is required to split rentals paid under capitalised
leases into their capital element and interest element
(see note 36). These elements are classified as financing
cash outflows, similar to how leases previously classified
as finance leases under HKAS 17 were treated, rather
than as operating cash outflows, as was the case
for operating leases under HKAS 17. Although total
cash flows are unaffected, the adoption of HKFRS 16
therefore results in a significant change in presentation
of cash flows within the consolidated cash flow
statement (see note 36).

EREBHEE
ER-_T-NF—A-BERER
EREEENEERER AEHE
EREABAERREERENRE
BT EENF B IR EA
REENHEE MIFBENERE
ERDHAANRLEHEELTNEE
FAXMBE BN ERNEREE
SR ERE17RAASHREMEL -
B AEELGES W ERPERFHE
EmMELELRFZE-

HREERERER AKEER
EBEARABERCEERTEMNE
D RAZEMO RAE D (FH
iE36) WL BEUR LR F B G
ERF1TRE TR ERESTRE
FRAOBEABERS AL MR
REBGENEI7TR THLEHR
EeitBRETANER/EERER
He-#ARSRELBIZTE B
RNBBM B REEF 165G
RERSRERTRERENZS
FRBEEBEREL (RHE36) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

(c) Impact on the financial results, segment results

and cash flows of the Group (Continued)

The following tables may give an indication of the

estimated impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on

the Group's financial results, segment results and

cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2019, by

adjusting the amounts reported under HKFRS 16 in

these consolidated financial statements to compute

estimates of the hypothetical amounts that would have

been recognised under HKAS 17 if this superseded

standard had continued to apply in 2019

of HKFRS 16, and by comparing these hypothetical

amounts for 2019 with the actual 2018 corresponding

amounts which were prepared under HKAS 17.

BREEED (£)

ERVBH/EEAF 165 HE (F)

Financial results for the year ended ZRHFBHHHREER

31 December 2019 impacted XY ENBE
by the adoption of HKFRS 16: —®-h&+=A=+-H
LFEECHBER:
Operating profit BEER
Finance costs B
Profit before tax BB AR R
Profit for the year KERF

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED

(c) HEZEFHBHE TEFEFE
EHRENEE (E)
TRAAERRANEBH B RELE
AE+RRHAERBEE _—T—1
FTZA=T—HBILEFEZHHBE
BEFENGATE HERKZSE
FAaMBRRTPBREFEMBRSE
HAF16FMERMNSEERER
BEFERIE 7R R ERBHRE
TRETHE (HMZEMAIREE

instead BERBR-ZT—NFEMIFEEERE
HERE165)  WEKZE=T
—NERRBVERBEEEGAE
AT REN T — \FERE
FES I TT LB o

2019 2018

Deduct:

Estimated
amounts Compared
Add back: related to  Hypothetical to amounts
Amounts HKFRS 16 operating amounts for reported

reported depreciation leases as 2019 as for 2018

under and interest if under if under under

HKFRS 16 expense HKAS 17 HKAS 17 HKAS 17
(note a)

REEE

HBBRRRE BRRESE B EA

BEEEHHK MERE  BEEHER gt ER ESVL

RERER BEMBRE FIREE  B17RELEN 25

£16%% AR E165 BEREN ZE-NF ZE-N\F
ERNEE FERAEMX [hga: BREH SEHB
(Hizta)
(A) (B) (@] (D=A+B-C)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
53,894 12,962 14,149 52,707 76,987

(24,958) 4,774 - (20,184) (21,856)
39,075 17,736 14,149 42,662 108,219
24,884 17,736 14,149 28,471 88,752

AERBEEBRA R



For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

(c) Impact on the financial results, segment results

3. BFRfEEREH (&)

BERMBHREERNE165 HE (F)
(c) BEEBEHBEFRE 7EFEFNE

and cash flows of the Group (Continued) EHENEE (E)
2019 2018
Deduct:
Estimated
amounts Compared
Add back: related to  Hypothetical to amounts
Amounts HKFRS 16 operating amounts for reported
reported depreciation leases as 2019 as for 2018
under and interest if under if under under
HKFRS 16 expense HKAS 17 HKAS 17 HKAS 17
(note a)
REERE
NBRBRRRE BRRREEE B
BEEBHE MERE BEEHEL B &S F17%
BEEL BEUBERE F1REE  F1TRELN 2HH
%165 KR E165 TEREN “E-nE —E-N\E
EHEMEE FERMERX CHER] BReE SEZUB
(Hiita)
(A) (B) (@] (D=A+B-C)
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FHET
Reportable segment results SHRNEBRBREED
for the year ended 31 December IRV ENEE
2019 (note 5(b) impacted by —E-fAfE+ZA=1+-H
the adoption of HKFRS 16: \LEE (HiE50m) 2
AHREIBEER
- Industrial consumables -I%KEEm 4,601 3,699 3,307 4,993 2,988
~ Plastic processing products —FBEMRNT 48,608 559 584 48,583 33,173
- Machinery — W (4,184) 557 634 (4,261) 30,142
— Printed circuit boards — EDRlER B AR 17,986 7,718 9,159 16,545 28,493
- Other operations -HinEE 10,827 429 465 10,791 20,307
- Total — @&t 77,838 12,962 14,149 76,651 115,103
—ZT—AEEHR e+ Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

(c) Impact on the financial results, segment results

and cash flows of the Group (Continued)

Line items in the

consolidated cash flow
statement for the year

ended 31 December

2019 impacted by the
adoption of HKFRS 16:

Cash generated from
operations

Net cash generated
from/(used in)
operating activities

Capital element of lease
rentals paid

Interest element of lease
rentals paid

Net cash (used in)/
generated from
financing activities

SHRNEEMEREEL
FIRTENEZ
—E-hE
+=ZA=+-AL
EEVZGARS
REXREER:

ReERPELHS

REEHELE/ (A2
REFH

ENEERENAEHD
ENEEREHMEHD

MEED (ER)/
BEZRERE

3. BFfERED (&)

BERMBH

EnE

HEEAE 165 HE (&)

& (E)

2019

Estimated

amounts
related to Hypothetical
Amounts operating amounts for
reported leases as 2019 as
under if under if under
HKFRS 16 HKAS 17 HKAS 17

(note a & b)
BEBEEE BRIBREEE
BREFERE aitER it ER
REZR  BTHRELN BU7RELM
E165% BHLE “E-hE
EHNEE HEZEHLHE BRLE

(Biita&b)
(A) (B) (C=A+B)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET
100,821 (17,736) 83,085
76,021 (17,736) 58,285
(12,308) 9,375 (2,933)
(5,114) 4,774 (340)
(65,245) 14,149 (51,096)

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED e« AE##MEEERAA

(c) BEEBEHBEFRE 7 EHFENE

2018

Compared
to amounts
reported for
2018 under
HKAS 17

B
BREHER
FITHRER
W-E-N\F
SEIHE

HKS$'000
FET

3,875

(18,636)
(3,559)

(206)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)
(c) Impact on the financial results, segment results
and cash flows of the Group (Continued)

(d)

Note a:

Note b:

The “estimated amounts related to operating leases”
is an estimate of the amounts of the cash flows in
2019 that relate to leases which would have been
classified as operating leases, if HKAS 17 had still
applied in 2019. This estimate assumes that there
were no differences between rentals and cash flows
and that all of the new leases entered into in 2019
would have been classified as operating leases under
HKAS 17, if HKAS 17 had still applied in 2019. Any
potential net tax effect is ignored.

In this impact table these cash outflows are
reclassified from financing to operating in order to
compute hypothetical amounts of net cash generated
from operating activities and net cash used in
financing activities as if HKAS 17 still applied.

Lessor accounting
Under HKFRS 16, when the Group acts as an
intermediate lessor in a sublease arrangement, the

Group is required to classify the sublease as a finance

lease or an operating lease by reference to the right-

of-use asset arising from the head lease, instead of

by reference to the underlying asset. The adoption of

HKFRS 16 does not have a significant impact on the

Group's financial statements in this regard.

e B HmRME ()

B ERERED (£)

BERMBHREENE165 HE (F)

(c)

(d)

HBEEBRYHFRE 7 EHREFNE
EREBHZE (E)
Mfeta - [HEEHERBEOMBT 5]
E-Z-NFHLREMAT
S BAAENEAKEEE
(BB ERE17THRR =
T-NFMAER)MHEER
ottt BREASERE SR
BWmER BER =T —NF
RIMEFTAFIEERRIEEE
SREAFITREOBEREER
5 (MEBGFEYFZNTHRR
“T-NFDRER) o EME
EFHBAZEINTHES -
Bath - MUILREINERT  ZFHRER
HRBEEFOBREE U
FRRERERBELAZRS TR
LBEBRSMAZHSFEL
BRELE BUE B AER
SEVTHRADRER

HBEAZ B EE
REFBMBRE LT 165 E
AEBEREARFNFHBEHEA
B AEBAS2EHATIEOELEN
FEREEE SEHIBAMEH
ESREHE MIFE2EERER
THYE E o bt 7 B SR E B B
EERNF 165 M AL B B wK
WEEBAFE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS
The assumptions, estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(i) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2(10). The recoverable amounts
of cash-generating units have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require
the use of estimates and assumptions. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of goodwill
and the impairment (if any) in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

(ii) Allowance for impairment of trade receivables and
finance lease receivables
For trade receivables and finance lease receivables, the
Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses as prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
requires the use of the lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables and finance lease receivables.
The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. A considerable
level of judgement is exercised by the directors when
assessing the financial condition and credit worthiness
of each customer.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED e« AE##MEEERAA
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EEAAEER AZEBREY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ =%

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in Hong
Kong and the Mainland China. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally
relate to allowance for doubtful debts and tax losses,
depends on the management’s expectation of future
taxable profits that will be available against which the
tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual
utilisation may be different.

Provision for inventories

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of inventories
at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether the inventories are carried at lower of cost
and net realisable value in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(14). The directors
estimate the net realisable value based on the current
market situation and historical experience on similar
inventories. Any change in the assumptions would
increase or decrease the amount of inventories write-
down or the related reversals of write-down and affect
the Group's net asset value.

e B HmRME (&)

—NFFZA=+—HIFE

4. EEGTHEFRHE (&)

(iii)

(iv)

e
RNEBBHNERSRPBEAM 2 FT
BR-BEMEHN o BEAELE
BEAE - RBEEKBES K&
EREETREBEZZERIR
AEAEUTAEE - AEEREE
HATH 755 28 25 P 5| B A9 BT hn 7 75 7 3R
REBE - MZEEBELREY S
BB ZREAR  ABEBEEEY
LT R AEH REERIER
1o

EEFBEENBREIZ SRR
RRERFEER YERERE
BEHNARKEISATIEERE
Z BBARB RN 2 FEH -
BRFAZ & RLB TR -

u/<*r§

FERE
AEBEE - HFEREIEEEY
FHE UBETEBRTFERSSRR
BT 5E2(14) By sl 5 ERER DAPK AR I 7]
BHEMNEPRERBEAKR-ES
PIRBEUTFE ZRITT R B
ﬂ%mﬁT ''''''' AIREEFRE AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(v) Classification of interests in leasehold land and

buildings held for own use

In accordance with HKAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment, the Group chooses to apply either the cost
model or the revaluation model as its accounting policy
for items of property, plant and equipment held for
own use on a class-by-class basis. In applying this policy,
the Group has concluded that its registered ownership
interests in leasehold properties and the right to use
other properties leased under tenancy agreements
are two separate groupings of assets which differ
significantly in their nature and use. Accordingly, they
are regarded by the Group as separate classes of asset
for subsequent measurement policies in accordance
with notes 2(4), 2(5) and 2(10)(ii). Specifically,
registered ownership interests are carried under the
revaluation model, while rights to use properties under
tenancy agreements are carried at depreciated cost.

In making this judgement, the Group has taken into
account that, as the registered owner of leasehold
property, the Group is able to benefit fully from any
changes in the valuation of these properties whether
as holding gains or by selling the property interest to
others, as well as being able to use the properties in
its operation free of paying market rents. In contrast,
the shorter term tenancy agreements are typically for
periods of no more than 10 years and are subject to
other restrictions, in particular on transferability of
the Group’s tenancy rights to others. These shorter
term tenancy agreements are executed in order to
retain operational flexibility and to reduce the Group's
exposure to the property market fluctuation.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED e« AE##MEEERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4., EESE AT RAE (£Z)
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(vi) Determining the lease term

(vi) EEHEES

As explained in note 2(24), the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term. In determining the lease
term at the commencement date for leases that include
renewal options exercisable by the Group, the Group
evaluates the likelihood of exercising the renewal
options taking into account all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for
the Group to exercise the option, including favourable
terms, leasehold improvements undertaken and the
importance of that underlying asset to the Group's
operation. The lease term is reassessed when there is a
significant event or significant change in circumstance
that is within the Group’s control. Any increase or
decrease in the lease term would affect the amount
of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised in
future years.

BN FE224)FT i - A E B &I
HEHNENHEERNREETY
SR - RHBBHETESAE
| AT 17 65 A 4B 7R A o) T & 78 EA R -
AREBETHTEEME AT
M- WERINMBRTEKAEESA
RIENEBMITHEEREZIBBEE
RIER (BEEFGR BEEH M
ERBERZEAEEUREEKS
ZEEM) MBEEBEBREHIER
HIRBEREFMZEETHREDHT
AERZEG - A ESNTEEER-
HEHNTRERRFEERYSTE
RARFERRANEEGBERER
EEEST-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. WARSHEE
(a) Revenue (a) WA
Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents WA MEAEBEZHERE IBF
the amounts received and receivable for goods sold NAEEREEUIINEFPIEEE D
to customers, less returns and discounts and interest BARE MITHE 2 B U K W E
income from finance lease receivables during the year. NMEWBEREFEEA MBI
An analysis of revenue is as follows: Ao REBZWADITIAT :

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HKS$'000 HK$°000
FETT FET
Revenue WA

Sales of goods EmEE 2,301,143 2,645,710
Installation services for machinery A % i AR 1 4,466 4,594

Revenue from contracts with KERFEHZWE
customers 2,305,609 2,650,304
Finance lease income RERE WA 39,314 32,148
Total revenue UL 2,344,923 2,682,452

Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

WAZHE

BEZBRDENTFAHRAL

customers by major products is as follows: N
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trading of industrial consumables THEHEERES 326,956 380,108
Sales of plastic processing products BRI RINTHEE 462,976 509,479
Sales of machinery MR iE & 747,053 897,297
Sales of printed circuit boards E[J | 437 3%t 38 & 764,158 858,826
Installation services for machinery e 2 5 AR TS 4,466 4,594
2,305,609 2,650,304

The timing of revenue recognition of all revenue from
contracts with customers is at a point in time when
customers obtain control of goods or services.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED e« AE##MEEERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. WARDEHKE (£2)
(Continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (b) ZWMHE

The Group manages its business by a mixture of
both business lines and geographical location. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group's top management

ANEERHEER MR B RS
¥B-REIFERZERAAH
REFEESHEEBHRATGY

HMzRERDEERANIBREE —

for the purposes of assessing segment performance B AEERBEMELE  SHAIA
and allocating resources between segments, the Group THIEZHDHE -

has identified, on a product basis, the following four

reportable segments.

(1) trading of industrial consumables; (1) IEEERES:

(2) manufacturing of plastic processing products; (2) FERMEENMNI:

(3) manufacturing of machinery; and (3) MM RE

(4) processing and trading of printed circuit boards. (4) EIREBRINIRES -

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group's top
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis
to that segment. For example, segment assets may
include inventories, trade receivables, right of use assets
and property, plant and equipment. Segment revenue,
expenses, assets, and liabilities are determined before
intra-group balances and intra-group transactions are
eliminated as part of the consolidation process, except
to the extent that such intra-group balances and
transactions are between group entities within a single
segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms
as those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets that are
expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets and corporate expenses.

DEEE BERER
EHE"*B?EF‘E& fic & fE & IR

CEENSRITHEREREIA
—Fﬁ/ﬁﬁ* Zr RS —RDE®RD B
ZEE BENMABE:

DEBA T EE BERAE
BRE-—ESMEREHEZEE A
Ml aBEEmABY A2
HE Pl HHEERBEFE
EWE BN ERREERYE
E &G Dl X BE
MBEEEEEARRBAERLEE
AABIMERZEREHE (LIRS
fRE B2 2 —&F ) ATEESE @ HEfLE
EEBARAHEEBRERZTHER
SERMXE-—DBAELE AE
Ao D EEZ EBIIAEUE
SNRATIRE Z GRS ER -

DEEARFZTIEA BRI A

—EHEA L2 REEMEL
IR
AOEKBEETERREMARERE
ENEEER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 L2 =%

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5.

(Continued)

—NE+_A=1—HIFE

(b) Segment Reporting (Continued) (b)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January

2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under

this approach, the comparative information is not

restated. Details of the impact on adoption of HKFRS

16 can be found in note 3 to the consolidated financial

WARDEB®RE (&)

DEREE ()
DERE BEREE (&)
AEEER_ZE-—NF-—HA—HE

REETRBREE XRNEEH
BREERIE 1657 - B A A
REBTTEY - RMNE AV R
HERFIHEN T E 28R AR

statement. BEmEMEES -
The segment results for the year ended 31 December HE-_ZT-NF+_A=+—8H1
2019 are as follows: Erz/\*E%ZEﬁDT
Plastic Printed
Industrial ~ processing circuit Other
consumables products  Machinery boards  operations Eliminations Consolidated
TR
I$K%ER EMI BE  DRISEK HitgE s &4
HKS 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FiEx FEx FET FE7 FEx Tz FEx
REVENUE 0N
External sales HIMEE 326,956 462,976 751,519 764,158 39,314 - 2,344,923
Inter-segment sales (ote) PEREE (Hit) 11,463 155 1,613 - 120 (13,351) =
Total revenue B 338,419 463,131 753,132 764,158 39,434 (13,351) 2,344,923
Segment results PHEE 4,601 48,608 (4,184) 17,986 10,827 - 71,838
Unallocated corporate RAARLZ
expenses TtEER (23,944)
Operating profit g s 53,894
Finance costs HBER (24,958)
Investment income RERA 4,486
Share of results of associates  JE/AHE & A A% 2,991
Gain on deregistration of FE-AREAR
a subsidiary LB 2,662
Profit before tax BRBAEN 39,075
Taxation BE (14,191)
Profit for the year RERA 24,884
Note: Bt it -

Inter-segment sales are determined at prevailing market rates.
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #iZ2 =%

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)
(b) Segment Reporting (Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December

2019 are as follows:

ASSETS

Segment assets

Interests in associates
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Current tax payable
Borrowings

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION
Capital additions
Depreciation and amortisation
Allowance for impairment of
bad and doubtful debts

EE
NHEE

BELREE

AUPRZEREE

RARBERE

af
NHEE
RBEMAHE

&R

AUARZE%EE

Hipas
BREM
REREH
REFRERE

Other non-cash expenses/(income) £/t EH £ ER,/

Restructuring provision reversed
Provision for indemnity reversed
Share of results of associates
Interest income

Finance costs

Taxation

(A)
BRARR A
B REREE
EiEBEARRE
ﬂ%uﬁl)\
HHER
HE

Industrial
consumables
I%

HER
HK$'000
FET

235,248

56,183

5514
5,685

3,249

Plastic
processing
products
2R
EmI
HKS 000
FET

326,493

107,271

13,809
20,582

358

(44)
(25,780)
2,438
4,380
4,934

WARDEB®RE (&)

—NE+ZA=1—HIFE

(b) D@/ E (&)
TEEE BEREME (E)
RZE—-—NWFT+A=+—8B2z%
HEERBENOT:
Printed
circuit Other
Machinery boards  operations Consolidated
£l
101 RER HitgE &E
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET
931,957 580,582 438,770 2,513,050
32,809
58,030
2,603,889
418,077 236,420 7,194 825,145
5,297
353,219
33,787
1,217,448
17,914 18,313 1,540 57,090
22,348 31,152 6,100 85,867
320 - 11,014 11,703
(7,973) - - (8,337)
(20,290) - - (20,290)
- - - (25,780)
3,527 - (536) 2,991
510 327 555 3,836
10,008 5,298 4,512 24,958
897 2,532 2,579 14,191
ZZ—AEEIR e« Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE MR (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (Continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The segment results for the year ended 31 December

5. WARDH®ESE (&)

DEREE ()
DERE BEREE (&)
BE_T-/\F+ZA=+—HIL

2018 are as follows: FEZOHEBZNT :
Plastic Printed
Industrial processing circuit Other
consumables products Machinery boards operations  Eliminations  Consolidated
ik
I%E#Em RiI R ERIEER Hitgig i34 )
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T FiEr FET T T
REVENUE LON
External sales HIMEE 380,108 509,479 901,891 858,826 32,148 - 2,682,452
Inter-segment sales (ote) AHEEE (Hit) 19,174 214 3,257 - - (22,645) -
Total revenue ETON 399,282 509,693 905,148 858,826 32,148 (22,645) 2,682,452
Segment results PHEE 2,988 33,173 30,142 28,493 20,307 - 115,103
Unallocated corporate RAPEL
expenses TrEER (38,116)
Operating profit g s 76,987
Finance costs HBER (21,856)
Investment income RERA 4,938
Share of results of associates ~ JE(EEEE AR £E 1,658
Gain on disposal of HE-RNEAT
a subsidiary LB 44,538
Gain on deregistration of Echl= il UNG
a subsidiary LB 1,904
Profit before tax BRBATE N 108,219
Taxation HE (19,467)
Profit for the year RERT 88,752
Note:  Inter-segment sales are determined at prevailing B HEEBEERBITMSERE
market rates. JE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. MARDHHRE (&
(Continued)
(b) Segment Reporting (Continued) (b) DEW/E (&)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) TEEE BERERE (E)
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December RZE—N\F+_A=+—H2ZH
2018 are as follows: HEENABBWT:
Plastic Printed
Industrial processing circuit Other
consumables products Machinery boards operations  Consolidated
I% FBRG DAl
HER kNI B RER Hin &g gFa

HKS$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TET TET TET TET TET TET

ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE 243,994 380,061 1,004,837 561,376 402,910 2,593,178
Interests in associates - YNTL: 31,139
Unallocated corporate assets RUPEZL¥EE 107,376
Consolidated total assets GREERE 2,731,693
LIABILITIES 2%
Segment liabilities AHAE 55,695 156,608 463,458 200,024 36,725 912,510
Current tax payable REERHIE 5,732
Borrowings EE 384,238
Unallocated corporate liabilities KA DB 2 S £&E 28,928
Consolidated total liabilities GABEBE 1,331,408
OTHER INFORMATION HgER
Capital additions BARE 1,742 29,973 11,381 7937 1193 52,226
Depreciation and amortisation ~ 47% [ # 34 2,069 15,629 22,699 26,194 5,539 72,130
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance FZEHE (ME),/

for impairment of bad and BB

doubtful debts (10) 194 (2,691) (2,146) (4,985) (9,638)
Other non-cash expenses HEt kR e B8R 7,869 46 5,286 - - 13,201
Restructuring provision reversed & 48 A 0] & - - (19,612) - - (19,612)
Share of results of associates BEHEAREE - - 2,348 - (690) 1,658
Interest income FEMA 171 857 1,113 75 1,387 3,603
Finance costs HBER 373 5,077 10,461 986 4,959 21,856
Taxation BE 5,127 5,006 2,039 3,350 3,945 19,467

—ZT—AEEHR e+ Annual Report 2019 P/
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR ME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5.

(Continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (Continued)
Geographical information
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong,
Mainland China, other Asia-Pacific countries, North
America and Europe. The Group's trading of industrial
consumables division is located in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. The manufacturing of plastic
processing products, machinery and printed circuit
boards divisions are located in Mainland China.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
sales by geographical market:

WARDEB®RE (&)

(b)

DEmE (&)

HEER

REENEBUNES  PREAK -
Hibga KER - b EM R BN - A&
BrIXBEEMEBEIENMNRES
KA B R o )T BB o R AN - HE A
K BNV 45 B 1R 55 B4 38 S 58 R L R
A A b o

THIE D A SR B i & AR R T
B2

Sales revenue by
geographical market

RETHE D ZHERA

2019 2018

ZE-NF —ZT-N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT

Hong Kong BE 392,962 605,023
Mainland China o B A 3, 1,586,997 1,795,177
Other Asia-Pacific countries Hfth g KE X 288,570 201,449
North America £ =M 20,207 10,066
Europe BM 56,187 70,737
2,344,923 2,682,452
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. WARZEH®ESE (&)

(Continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (Continued) (b) 2H®E (£)
Geographical information (Continued) HEER (Z)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s fixed REEBNETEE FHRBEE B
assets, right-of-use assets, goodwill and intangible BrmILEE (BEIERBEE) X
assets (”specified non-current assets”), and additions ETIERBEEZIERIGHE Z D
to specified non-current assets, analysed by the wmT:

geographical area in which the assets are located:

Additions to
Specified specified
Non-current assets non-current assets
EEFRBDEE EERDEEZER
2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-NE —ZE-N\HFE ZB-hAE —E-N\HF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFET FET FHET
Hong Kong BB 201,807 196,967 3,835 2,508
Mainland China A 554,137 521,512 53,255 49,718
755,944 718,479 57,090 52,226
Information about major customers TEEEFHNER
No customer of the Group has individually accounted AREFEHEGERNETEPHAEBRER
for over 10% of the Group's total revenue during WAMEETEIO% (ZE—N\F #&) -
the year (2018: Nil) and no information about major W EHNFEREER -

customers is presented accordingly.

—ZT—AEEHR e+ Annual Report 2019 =29,



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR ME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6. HttW AR W= FHE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Bt it FET FET
Other income Hi g A
Unused provision for EIEABANEMARREE
restructuring reversed 30 20,290 19,612
Reversal of provision for [o] 43 B 8 Bt 1
indemnity 37 25,780 -
Gross rental income from WERZHEZHE K=
properties and equipment 3,292 2,566
Handling, tooling and sales of &I THE KERIHEE
scrapped materials 4,191 4,429
Government grants K T 758 B 4,688 11,230
Sundry income E b A 6,450 8,118
64,691 45,955
Gains/(loss), net W (EE) B8
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - HERELHE
plant and equipment 2 &R 566 446
Exchange gain/(loss), net ERER, (E18) %8 1,259 (1,199
1,825 (753)
66,516 45,202
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

FINANCE COSTS 7. BMBER
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Interest on: BTIIEEEENTA:
Bank borrowings wholly repayable AREFANEEREZ
within 5 years HRATE R 19,844 21,650
Lease liabilities HEBRE 5,114 -
Finance lease BEMHE - 206
Total interest expense on WIEERFEEFEZRR
financial liabilities not at fair value BEnseomBaEr
through profit or loss BF B 24,958 21,856
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 Brit: AEEER-ZT-hF-A—-HEA

using the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, the comparative information is not restated. See

KERTRREBR RRAT BT B H
HEEAF 6 R A LR E

note 3. BT FES - BHFES ©
INVESTMENT INCOME 8. BEWA
2019 2018
—g-hE  ~T-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Bank and other interest income RIT R E A B U A 3,836 3,603
Total interest income on financial WIEERAFEEFZBEBR
assets not at fair value through BanleMmEEY
profit or loss 48 T B U A 3,836 3,603
Realised gain on other financial assets HEft & @& E 2 B EH AT 650 1,294
Unrealised gain on other Hth @ mEEZRERATF
financial assets - 41
4,486 4,938

—ZT—AEEHR e+ Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. FRBATEF
Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging/ PR AT B2 Bk (B A) TFIFIE :

(crediting) the following:

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Staff costs (including directors’ BETIRA(BEESFHG)
emoluments)
— Salaries and other benefits —Fae REMER 370,478 401,547
— Retirement benefits scheme — R RAE FIET B 3k
contributions 38,564 40,365
Total staff costs 8 T A 409,042 441,912
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) RERRERE (EH)
for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts 11,703 (9,638)
Auditors’ remuneration 1% ELRD BN &
— Group auditor — £ B ZEA 2,648 2,480
Surplus on revaluation of BRAMEEMHAR
properties held for own use - (915)
Depreciation and amortisation on: e REH
— Property, plant and equipment —ME BERREE
— Ownership interest in leasehold -~-ERAELH RIEFH
land and buildings held for FB R
own use 14,292 14,559
— Other owned assets —EMmEEEE 55,225 53,861
— Assets held under finance lease —-RMEHEEE - 976
— Leasehold land and land use rights ~— — & £ 3 & + i {55 FR 4 - 1,350
— Intangible assets —EILEE 1,383 1,384
- Right-of-use assets —FREEE 14,967 -
Research and development expenditure #ff 3 & F 17,540 17,018
Exchange (gain)/loss, net ER (B BERFE (1,259) 1,199
Operating lease payments KEHENR - T RETF
— Land and buildings - 21,854
Short-term lease payments CHHEERES 5,035 -
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 M : AEBER=_Z—NF—A—HEA

using the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, the comparative information is not restated. See
note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R R IRARMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

10A.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

()

Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments of each director of the Company are

set out as below.

For the year ended 31 December 2019:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person'’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAREES (FRAFLARAMELAXK) RECTAARUME

MAEETAIRER
() EE@S

BREZZMeHIIWT:

BE-_Z—-h&+=-A=+—-HL

FE:

Employer's

contribution to

Allowances  a retirement
Discretionary  and benefits benefit
Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme Total
B
BER BAER
e Fe miERL ENEN HE 1558 &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET Tz TET FET
Executive Directors HHEE
Mr. Tang To HELE - 1,560 - - 108 1,668
Mr. Wong Yiu Ming BRARE - 4,485 - - 311 4,79
Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman Hars - 2,080 - - 18 2,098
Mr. Mei Zhegi HEREE - 682 21 - 17 926
Non-Executive Directors FHIEE
Mr. Kan Wai Wah BEERE 60 - - - - 60
Mr. Qu Jinping (Note) EOTRE (M) - - - - - -
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BY#517EE
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan BERERL 168 - - - - 168
Mr. Cheng Tak Yin HEBRE 60 - - - - 60
Mr. Ho Wei Sem (Note) MRREE (Hit) - - > 5 - -
Mr. Huang Zhi Wei (Note) BEERERE (W) - - - - - -
288 8,807 227 - 454 9,776
Note: Hiat:

During the year, Mr. Ho Wei Sem, Mr. Qu lJinping and Mr.
Huang Zhi Wei agreed to waive their directors’ fees under their

letters of appointment.

RAERELE B2V EEREER
FENZES FERAERFARER

BME=ME -

“E-NEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR ME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

10A.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

()

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018:

WA EETALERS (&)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,

(i) E=ME (&)
BE-_Z-\Ft-_A=t—H1t

FE:

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

AEAREES (THRARRARANBERAAER) BHENARMHE

Employer's
contribution to

Allowances a retirement
Discretionary and benefits benefit
Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme Total
EEH
ZER RINET
e EEa BERA ENET SHEIEER GH
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS 00
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. Tang To HEfE 195 1,365 1,173 - 109 2,842
Mr. Wong Yiu Ming EEREL 260 4225 5,358 - 31 10,154
Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman HaLs - 2,080 2,347 - 18 4,445
M. Mei Zheg e T - 315 236 - 5 556
Non-Executive Directors FHEE
Mr. Kan Wai Wah BEERE 60 - - - - 60
Mr. Qu Jinping (Note) LEIRE (M) - - - - - -
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BU#H7TEE
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan ERERL 168 - - - - 168
Mr. Cheng Tak Yin PEEEAE 60 - - - - 60
Mr. Ho Wei Sem (Note) WEHREE (M) - - - - - -
Mr. Huang Zhi Wei (Note) BEERRAE (M) - - - - - -
743 7,985 9,114 - 443 18,285
Note: Bt it -

During the year, Mr. Ho Wei Sem, Mr. Qu lJinping and Mr.
Huang Zhi Wei agreed to waive their directors’ fees under their

letters of appointment.

AERBEEBRA R

REMERELE B2 FEERESRE
FENZES FERAENFAREK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

10A.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

None of the directors received or will receive any
emoluments in respect of a person accepting office as a
director during the year (2018: Nil)

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2018: same)

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Company did not pay consideration to any third parties
for making available directors’ services (2018: same).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were
no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors (2018: same).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Company's business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year (2018: same).

e B HmRME (&)

WAEETALERS (£)

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

EEME (&)
FABEETNEEREANEER
i T W B S A BT B 2 (—F
—N\F:8EB) -

EERABEANRBERER

FABEEFCEIBSWRE
fRARENEBEREN (ZF—N
FHER) -

REREERFALE=TxT2K
B
RBE-_T-NAF+-_A=t—8H
I E - RARRAY E EEREER
BmEERNE=7NRE(ZF
—\F:HEE) -

FRUES ZEES2REME
ErREAERRARBACENR £
EXRAEMXRE Z2EHR

RBE-FT-NAF+-_A=+—H
IFFE BEANEE IRFEFZ
XEHAERAEERRRmAL
EX - EERREMR IR (ZF
—\F:HEA) -

EENRS RUREHNZEXRE
=
AARMEREEHTLARE R
HFTHT RARREEFHERENKME
BERAEARSMNERAFAME
AREDATENEARS L5
AN (ZF—-NF:HR) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR ME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

10B.EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

10B.EEEFB X

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Wages, salaries, allowances and FE LE EEK
other benefits H A 4EF 370,478 401,547
Pension costs — defined contributed plans  EREFIFTE] 2 3 2,829 3,051
Pension costs — social securities RIKEFFE 2R
in the PRC FENTSRES 35,735 37,314
409,042 441,912
Five highest paid individuals EeifuFM=ES

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2018: three) were directors of the Company,
details of whose emoluments are included in note 10A to
the consolidated financial statements. The emoluments of all
of the five individuals with the highest emoluments for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

rEEZEMERAMEEZF =M (=
T—NF: M) DARRES EHT
REE NG BTN EEE B Wk M
FI0AHE2-—T—hF+=-A=1+—8
=B N\F+_A=Z+—BLFEx
aMemANEENMSFINET

2019 2018

—E-hA% T )\F

HKS$000 HK$'000

FET FET

Fees we = 455
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e R R HEMER 10,537 11,586
Discretionary bonuses FIRMEE R IEAD 1,922 12,229
Pension costs — defined contribution plans iE/K#& 5T 2] 2 &% 600 584
13,059 24,854
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

10B EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued) 1B EERAMX (&)
Five highest paid individuals (Continued) EeiuFmzESs (&)
Their emoluments are within the following bands: BE2MESN T T34ER -

Number of individuals

EE%E
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Emolument bands Bl & &5 [
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 8 T
2,000,000/ 7T 2 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 L&
2,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 TR
3,000,000/ 7T 1 2
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 T2
4,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 L2
5,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000 10,000,001 T2
10,500,000/ JT = 1
5 5
For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, no BHE_Z-—NER_Z-AE+H
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors =T —BIEFE AKEHSEREARES
or other members of the five highest paid individuals as an AfHM s EEHAMKE NS
inducement to join, upon joining the Group, leave the Group LAYE B WK B] 1 % A0 A S 0 A N &8 B 65
or as compensation for loss of office. L RENERBBMEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRMEE ()

ja =]

11.

TAXATION

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the "Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits
of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities in Hong Kong not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed
at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at
8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable
profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits
above HK$2 million (2018: same).

Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant
countries.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

11. i1\

RZEBE—-—N\EFE=A=-+—8 FHELFE
BBZT—EFHB (EF]) (F790) 1§
BlEZR ([ER])  H3| AMAHFEH
EEE-RERR_E-N\E=A=+N
BEEXAZZAENZANNEEHR R
EMRHIFESHRESNE aEREEE
BHE _—B 8 8mm g8 25%mE
B MBB =8 8B T2 M N
16.5% BB B EF - TFRFA FIB B RS
CEABEEER D ENBESIZ165%
R4 — TR ERT o

Eit - BB 8B T2 Bt ERa A
%8.25%FTEBEMEH mM-a&BT
LA B 27 (B ET FEER Bl A BI3%16.5%AT &
EBNERH (ZE— N\E  HRA) -

BN B A R B IR IR AR B R e E A
BITHME B -

o]

2019 2018
=E-NF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Current tax AEAFE
Hong Kong profits tax BEANEH
Current year KEE 1,633 1,601
Over-provision in prior years TFEZIR (157) (105)
1,476 1,496
Overseas tax B HNBLIE
Current year RFEE 16,573 20,203
Over-provision in prior years TFEEZIE (708) (3,442)
15,865 16,761
Deferred tax IEAE B 1E
Deferred taxation relating to the REREZE (FE)REELEY
(reversal) and origination of BRI IE (K it24)
temporary differences (note 24) (3,150) 1,210
14,191 19,467
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

11. BB (&)
AEEMBF AR R RLERRGA AR
HA T A EAES Bt eEE

11. TAXATION (Continued)
The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using

the domestic taxation rates applicable to profits of the -3/
consolidated companies as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FHEIT
Profit before tax B 5 B4 A 39,075 108,219
Tax calculated at the domestic income LAARHETSFIE16.5%
tax rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) —ZT—N\F:165%)FE 6,447 17,856
Tax effect of share of results of JT’ETTEHuﬁ EAREEHME
associates T (493) (273)
Tax effect of expenses that are not 2T TE & AR A1 IRy ]
deductible in determining MRNRAZEBIAZE
taxable profit 3,720 8,040
Tax effect of income that is not ST 7E JE RR T g ) AR 8 JB AR
taxable in determining IR AEBIRE &
taxable profit (6,052) (4,756)
Under-provision of current tax RNF G AR IE B
in current year, net DIRFEE 287 67
Over-provision of current tax BEFEARATIERE
in prior years, net ZiRE A (865) (3,547)
Tax effect of utilisation of deductible  {# F5 i@ & A& #E 52 2 A HRL
temporary differences not TRMERFBEIHE
previously recognised (625) (1,599)
Tax effect of temporary differences/tax FER 2 LHFMHEZE FiE
losses not recognised BERERE 2ZE 8,478 5,143
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses — {F @A RER 2 FHE
not previously recognised BBz wE (680) (4,041)
Effect of different tax rates of EHMBEREELE 2
subsidiaries operating in other MEARMEZERE 228
jurisdictions 3,974 2,577
14,191 19,467
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. BREAF
The calculation of basic earnings per ordinary share is based AEEEREBRERZFNDIERFE
on the Group's profit attributable to equity shareholders of RATIREFRBEABGEERZFNREE
the Company divided by the weighted average number of NE T SRR D INETFIIEGTE -

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT-N\F

Weighted average number of ordinary BADN#EFHHEETE 2
shares in issue during the year RNEFEBEITEBBRKRMD 861,930,692 791,218,363
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Profit attributable to the equity KARREFBEAZ
shareholders of the Company FEAG = T 15,755 74,052
HK cents HK cents
B JEA
Basic earnings per share BREKRAT 1.83 9.36
No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no AR MEFEATEBERTET LR

potential ordinary shares in issue for both years. i Fut I 25| GRESEER B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

13. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE)/INCOME 13. A EHIKRFEEEAz2EMEZE (X

FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX H)
Tax effects relating to each component of other BRAHMEE (), e SEKEn
comprehensive (expense)/income are as follows: BB ENT
2019 2018
—%-h¥ —z-N%
Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax  Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount  expenses amount amount expenses amount
BRBEAD nEHE BBt Al M E
8  BEEA ¢85 8  HEER £k
HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEZ FET FET FET FET FET
Share of other comprehensive B SRR EMh
expense of associates 2EXH (650) = (650) (1,031) - (1,031)
Surplus on revaluation of properties ~ EHREMEEEES
held for own use 19,763 (3,605) 16,158 14,302 (2,817) 11,485
Exchange differences arising from REBNABREE
translation of financial statements EEZERES
of foreign operations (24,150) - (24,150) (56,348) - (56,348)
Reclassification adjustments: PERE:
Release of translation reserve upon HE—HIHBARE
disposal of a subsidiary HER SRR - - - 547 - 547
Release of translation reserve upon HHE-RRE AR
deregistration of a subsidiary R EERD (2,662) - (2,662) (1,904) - (1,904)
(7,699) (3,605) (11,304) (44,434) (2,817) (47,251)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR ME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

14. DIVIDEND 14. R &

(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (a) BRI FARAARRZEAFERE
Company attributable to the year

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-N\F
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Final dividend proposed MEEBEEZZRPRE &
after the end of the reporting (ZE2—N\F:
period: Nil F0%0.02/87T)
(2018: HK$0.02) per share - 17,239
(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (b) BRE—EMBEE XRAFRHAL
Company attributable to the previous financial BEXEZNFEATRRZESRE
year, approved and paid during the year
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FHEIT
Final dividend in respect of the  BR E—EAFHRFEITRFR
previous financial year, OB 5 2 RERRR B
approved and paid during Fh%0.028 T
the year, of HK$0.02 (2018: Nil) (=T — )\ 4 : #&)
per share 17,239 _
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % BERRE
Ownership
interest in
leasehold land
and buildings Furniture, Assets
held for own fixtures and Plant and Motor under
use equipment machinery vehicles construction Total
BERHE
THRBTH B %E
FERER ET BEREE AE ERIR fafE
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
COST OR VALUATION
At 1 January 2018 417,471 202,654 665,901 32,781 351 1,319,158
Exchange realignment (13,928) (7,313) (22,955) (1,075) (268) (45,539)
Additions 8,009 7,249 25,080 6,437 5,451 52,226
Disposals (36) (5,331) (14,553) (5,000) - (24,920
Adjustment on revaluation 1,384 - - - - 1,384
At 31 December 2018 and RZB-NE+ZA=t+-8
1 January 2019, k=Z-hr%f-f-8:
as previously reported RERMRE 412,900 197,259 653,473 33,143 5,534 1,302,309
Impact on initial application of HKFRS16 & X IR BB E H @4 24
(note 3) E16% 2T E (Wit3) - - (7,949) - - (7,949)
At 1 January 2019, restated RZE-hn%-5-8"
Eil&H 412,900 197,259 645,524 33,143 5,534 1,294,360
Exchange realignment ERRE (6,151) (3,681) (10,964) (463) (324) (21,583)
Reclassification ENNE 9,879 686 3,833 - (14,398) -
Additions RE 495 7,628 27,633 787 11,515 48,058
Disposals e - (6,760) (11,353) (2,193) - (20,306)
Adjustment on revaluation BRRE 5,641 - - - - 5,641
At 31 December 2019 RZB-AE+ZA=1-8B 422,764 195,132 654,673 31,274 2327 1,306,170
Analysis of cost or valuation: RASEEL AT
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-AF+-A=+-8
At cost BRAE - 195,132 654,673 31,274 2,327 883,406
At valuation REEE 422,764 - - - - 422,764
422,764 195,132 654,673 31,274 2321 1,306,170
At 1 January 2019, restated RZ2-n5-A—-R EjlEH
At cost BRAE - 197,259 645,524 33,143 5,534 881,460
At valuation RRHEER 412,900 - - - - 412,900
412,900 197,259 645,524 33,143 5,534 1,294,360
At 31 December 2018 RZF-\E+-A=+-H
At cost RHRAR = 197,259 653,473 33,143 5,534 889,409
At valuation REEE 412,900 - - - - 412,900
412,900 197,259 653,473 33,143 5,534 1,302,309
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE MR (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. ¥ -BERRE (&)

(Continued)
Ownership
interest in
leasehold land
and buildings Furniture, Assets
held for own fixtures and Plant and Motor under
use equipment machinery vehicles construction Total
BREE
THREFH BR %8
FERE: &L BERES RE ERIE BE
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION, iR BHERAE
AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\$-A—-H - 173,900 473,344 27,038 - 674,282
Exchange realignment ERRE 14 (6,204) (15,344) (782) - (23,044)
Depreciation provided for the year AENERE 14,559 10,526 42,098 2,213 - 69,396
Written back on disposals HEARE (12) (4,278) (13,624) (4,849) - (22,763)
Eliminated on revaluation B (13,833) - - - - (13,833)
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-\E+ZA=1+-8
1 January 2019, EZE-NE-A-R"
as previously reported REANRE - 173,944 486,474 23,620 - 684,038
Impact on initial application of HKFRS16 & R IFMB B R4 28
(note 3) E165% 28 (I#3) - - (585) - - (585)
At 1 January 2019, restated R=EB-h%-5-8"
EllGe - 173,944 485,889 23,620 - 683,453
Exchange realignment EREE (170) (3.168) (7.430) (336) - (11,104)
Depreciation provided for the year RERERE 14,292 9,212 43,344 2,609 - 69,517
Written back on disposals HERER - (6,503) (10,360) (2,128) - (18,991)
Eliminated on revaluation B (14,122) - - - - (14,122)
At 31 December 2019 RZB-AF+=A=1-8B - 173,545 511,443 23,765 - 708,753
NET BOOK VALUES REFE
At 31 December 2019 RZB-AE+ZA=1-R 422,764 21,587 143,230 7,509 2,327 597,417
At 1 January 2019, restated RZZ-hE-A—0 E5lEH 412,900 23,315 159,635 9,523 5,534 610,907
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\§+-A=1-H 412,900 23,315 166,999 9,523 5,534 618,271
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January Bz : REBER-_Z—hAhE—A—HEA

2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under
this approach, the comparative information is not restated.
See note 3. In addition, “leasehold land held for own use
under finance lease” and “buildings held for own use” is
now grouped as “ownership interest in leasehold land and

buildings held for own use”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The ownership interest in leasehold land and buildings of the
Group were revalued as at 31 December 2019 on the open
market existing use basis by Cushman & Wakefield Limited,
independent firms of professional valuers. The surplus arising
on revaluation attributable to the Group has been credited
to the other comprehensive income for the year and is
accumulated separately in equity in property revaluation
reserve.

Depreciation expense of approximately HK$54,736,000
(2018: HK$53,482,000) has been expensed in cost of sales,
HK$955,000 (2018: HK$900,000) in selling and distribution
costs and HK$13,826,000 (2018: HK$15,014,000) in
administrative expenses.

Had ownership interest in leasehold land and buildings
been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortisation, the carrying value of leasehold land and
buildings would have been approximately HK$310,034,000
(2018: HK$316,547,000).

At 31 December 2018, net book value of the Group's
plant and machinery included an amount of approximately
HK$7,364,000 in respect of assets held under finance leases
(note 42).

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment with an aggregate cost of HK$48,058,000 (2018:
HK$52,226,000 of which HK$8,004,000 was acquired by
means of finance leases). Cash payments of HK$48,058,000
(2018: HK$44,222,000) were made to purchase property,
plant and equipment.

15. % -BERKRE (&)

BERTARRAR OB 2B MLER)
RZE-NF+ZA=1+—B URT
NAMGZEE RAKEHEL R
BFOmERERETEL -AEMM
EEZBBRCEBALRFEEMZEEA
MBI RFARYEEERHEEA -

WE BB A54,736,0008 T (=F
— J\#F 153,482,000/ 7)) B st AR
$HE KA 955,000 7T (T — \F:
900,000/% 7T) M 9 §5 & A 113,826,000
B (ZZF—/\F:15,014,000 70)
THER-

B E + 4 RAE F K FT A R 2 LARK
AR B TERENE HE LM RET
ZIRITERMEX A310,034,000/8 7T (=
T — )\ :316,547,0008 7T ) °

R_E—N\F+-_A=+—8 4A£H
BERERZEDFECEERERE
ZHE 2 EEEER A7,364,000% 5T (I
5142) °

REEAEBEBEENE BRERXE
48 ¥H48,058,000B L (=& — N\ 4F:
52,226,000 7L 7 A8,004,0007% 7T 2 M
FIVREHERAIN) MAReHEE
W - B &% £48,058,000%8 T (=
T — J\F :44,222,00087C) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B $R R B EE ()

g

f=]

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s ownership

16.

interest in leasehold land and buildings held for own use
with an aggregate carrying value of HK$156,873,000 (2018:
HK$152,214,000) were pledged to secure certain bank
borrowings granted to the Group (note 42).

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES

()

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's properties measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED e« AE##MEEERAA
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16.

M BERRE (&)

RZE-—NF+_A=1T—H0 F&H
EEBESOHEREEL W REFNMAE
L HEREE A156,873,000%8 7T
—F— N\ :152,214,00087T)  1EA
BRTASBEBEBBRITERIER (HE
42) °

MERXFEEE

() DFEEZRSE
TREINBEEEBFEARE
BEMEZAFEE LREBY
BHmELRE13% AT EEME
PIREZ A FEE=ZERBETFHE
MERFE - SAFEEFESER
ZERDB2EWM T EETEMA
BEZIBRENEEHRERE

F-ERME: EERE—EAS
AR (R EARREERR
BRE S 2 RIS B E ) Bt
EXATEE-

F_ERAEEEREF_EXRBA
B (AREZEINE-ERZATE
R ABE AXREAEKRTA
BREABB)GEZRAFEE-T
ABRBABBREMSEEZE
ABUE -

FZEREE KAERTAER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

16. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES
(Continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i)

16. MELFEEE (&)
AP EERS(E)

Fair value measurement at
31 December 2019 categorised into
R-B-NE+=A=1—H

31 December

AFEEFEEATIE

2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-B-N§
+ZA=+-B E$-BR $-EBR H=ER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value RENATLEE
measurement of assets: TREE:
Ownership interest in leasehold B A L REFH
land and buildings held FrE R
for own use 422,764 - - 422,764
Fair value measurement at
31 December 2018 categorised into
RZZE-NE+ZA=+—H
ATEEFEENTLE
31 December
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZE—) E
+=ZR= F-Brx F-EBX FZER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3$°000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value BENATLEE
measurement of assets: FTREE:
Ownership interest in leasehold B AT KETH
land and buildings held B s
for own use 412,900 - - 412,900
—ZT—AEEHR e+ Annual Report 2019

217



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR ME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

16. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES
(Continued)

()

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019,
there were no transfers into or out of level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.

All of the Group’s ownership interest in leasehold land
and buildings held for own use were revalued as at 31
December 2019. The valuations were carried out by
independent firm of professional valuers, Cushman &
Wakefield Limited, which is a world-wide commercial
real estate services firm with recent experience in the
location and category of property being valued. The
Group's property manager and the chief financial
officer have discussion with the valuers on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuations
are performed at the annual reporting date.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

Valuation techniques

G ER

Ownership interest in leasehold (a) Direct comparison approach

land and buildings held for

own use BEROBHEE
BRAEETHRIETH
FrEEER (b) Income approach

WA R
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16. MEAFEEFE (&)

(i) DFPEEZEE (&)
RZE-—NFRZZFT—-—NF+=A
=+ —HBHFERAIRBERIE=
BASKREZEIEL -BEHAF
BEAEER 2 EREE g&RR
REBZBE RMEEFEEBER-

EAEEzEREEL ML AR
BFOMEEEERN_F—NF
TZA=+—RETEMR -ZEM
TERBL o EXMBEM-BER
TERRAR (ERENEBEFHBE
RBRRLEBHE R EELSR
FITHIERER) TR - RFERSE
B AKEZYEEERERMB
BEBRFREEG 2BRRTGEE
REH{ERD T o

(i) BE=BRATFEEFEER

Unobservable input

TUBRRBE

Range
g [E
(Discount)/premium on quality -10% to 10%
of building
BFEEN (), 5B -10%%£10%
4% to 8%
4%Z8%

Capitalisation rate

BAx



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

16. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES
(Continued)

(i)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

(Continued)

(a)

The fair value of properties located in Hong Kong
is determined using direct comparison approach
by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square foot basis,
adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to
the quality of the Group's properties compared
to the recent sales. The valuations take into
account the characteristic of the properties which
included the location, size, view, floor level, year
of completion and other factors collectively. Higher
premium for higher quality properties will result in
a higher fair value measurement.

The fair value of properties in the PRC is
determined using income approach by the
capitalisation of the net rental income derived
from the existing leases and/or achievable in
existing market with reversionary income potential
by adopting appropriate capitalisation rates.
Capitalisation is estimated by the valuer based on
the risk profile of the properties being valued. The
higher the rates, the lower the fair value. Prevailing
market rents are estimated based on recent lettings
within the subject properties and other comparable
properties. The lower the rents, the lower the fair
value.

16. ME A FEEFE (&)

(i) £=

(a)

BRXAFEEFEER (&)

NREBEBNNEZI A FEER
RERLBEELIET EF
E2ERALEMEOHREEL
BYHTRREE ABRAEH
MELEFHAB-BELX
EEEMEZEN BREYE
ZuE - mE RECEE R
RED REMRZE  — 40
NEZEE - BHRNEREEMEAZF
BERBHE FIASRHES
ZANFEEFEHE

EFENYEZ A FERAR
ARTEEREBEEERN X
BREMAOER,/ REHTRRE
ROARKBEHONFHEHSKRAE
K- BERCABEMZERE
LN S S R
= A HEEBE - RITHISHE
TRZMELBUNEOE A
Mg EGE - HEEE  2F
EBEBE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR ME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

16. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES 16. MELNFEEE (&)

(Continued)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurement (i) F=ZBXAFEEFTEER (&)
(Continued)
(b) (Continued) (by (#&)
The movements during the year in the balance FEZBRATEBEFENEE
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as RAFERNZEBINT
follows:
2019 2018
ZE-AEF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Ownership interest in leasehold BERAEE T REFH
land and buildings held FRE
for own use:
At 1 January n—HA—H 412,900 417,471
Additions NE 495 8,009
Reclassification E¥ o 9,879 -
Exchange realignment JE K (5,981) (13,214)
Depreciation provided for the year ZANFE T E & E (14,292) (14,559)
Disposals & = (24)
Surplus on revaluation B{h A% 19,763 15,217
At 31 December Rt+tZA=+—H 422,764 412,900

Surplus on revaluation and currency adjustment of
ownership interest in leasehold land and buildings
held for own use is recognised in other comprehensive
income in “property revaluation reserve” and
“translation reserve” respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

17. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 17. HET R T b fE ARE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-NF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FHET
COST 2%

At 1 January, as previously reported B —A—B &RERIHRE 55,431 57,703

Impact on initial application of BIRIRANE S B 15 3R R
HKFRS 16 (note 3) F16R 2T & (H:73) (55,431) -
At 1 January, restated R—A—8 &5&8 - 57,703
Exchange realignment B = (2,272)
At 31 December Rt—A=+—H - 55,431

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION S &

At 1 January, as previously reported B —A— B &RERIHRE 15,160 14,383
Impact in initial application of EVE G EE

HKFRS 16 (note 3) FBlrei oo & (Hit3) (15,160) -
At 1 January, restated N—A—B &y&% - 14,383
Exchange realignment JE W - (573)
Amortisation for the year IR [ 5 - 1,350
At 31 December R+=Z—H=+—H - 15,160
NET BOOK VALUE REFEE
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H - 40,271
At 1 January, restated R—A—B &5&% - 43,320
At 1 January, as previously reported ~ FA— A —H RERIHRE 40,271 43,320
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR ME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

17. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 17.

(Continued)

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s interests in leasehold
land and land use rights represented prepaid operating
lease payments and their net book values were analysed as

HEL R T HMERE(Z)

R-ZE—NFE+_A=+—H K&£H
PHEE L N it AR EZE 58
MEeHeENRTMEREmFE EDF

follows: FONE
2018
= WYY
HK$°000
FET
Outside Hong Kong held on: EBEBUIMERFE:
Medium-term leases FRER A 49 40,271

At 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’s leasehold
land and land use rights with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately HK$3,644,000 were pledged to secure certain
bank borrowings granted to the Group (note 42).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. EFEEE
Land use Plant and Land and
rights  machinery buildings
(note a) (note b) (note ¢) Motor
tHERE BEREE LtHkEF vehicles Total
(Bizta) (H&tb) (Hite) ARE “E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
CoST D%
At 31 December 2018, R-ZZB-N\&
as previously reported +-A=+—-8"
RERBRE - - - - -
Impact on initial application of & RIRMEBE T
HKFRS 16 (note 3) BREEHE16R 2
T8 (Wit3) 55,431 7,949 60,745 - 124,125
At 1 January 2019, restated ~ R=Z—F
—A—R &M 55,431 7,949 60,745 - 124,125
Exchange realignment BN AR (1,398) (174) (1,365) - (2,937)
Additions NE - - 8,424 608 9,032
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NEF
+ZA=+—H 54,033 7,775 67,804 608 130,220
ACCUMULATED RiHE
DEPRECIATION
At 31 December 2018, RZZ-N\&
as previously reported +-A=+-8"
BERRE - - - - -
Impact on initial application of & RIRME BB
HKFRS 16 (note 3) WMEEAE16% 2
T8 (Wit3) 15,160 585 - - 15,745
At 1 January 2019, restated AZE-NEF
—A—R &N 15,160 585 - - 15,745
Exchange realignment ER AR (244) (26) (195) - (465)
Depreciation provided RERERE
for the year 1,187 757 12,962 61 14,967
At 31 December 2019 R-FB-N&
s o =l e 16,103 1,316 12,767 61 30,247
NET BOOK VALUES REFE
At 31 December 2019 R-B-1E
st —A=1+—H 37,930 6,459 55,037 547 99,973
At 1 January 2019, restated AZE-NEF
—A—H EYEH 40,271 7,364 60,745 - 108,380
At 31 December 2018, RZE—-N\F
as previously reported +-A=+—"H
BERRE - - - - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019
using the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, the comparative information is not restated. See
note 3.

Note a:  Prepaid lease payment in respect of the land use rights
held for own use in the PRC were reclassified as right-of-
use assets at the date of initial application of HKFRS 16.
See note 17. The land use rights had a remaining lease
term of between 10 to 50 years. At 31 December 2019,
certain of the Group’s land use rights with an aggregate
carrying value of approximately HK$3,349,000 (2018:
Refer to note 17 for details) were pledged to secure
certain bank borrowings granted to the Group (note 42).

Note b:  The Group reclassified plant and machinery previously
held under finance lease in accordance with HKAS 17
as as right-of-use assets at the date of initial application
of HKFRS 16. See note 15. At 31 December 2019, Lease
liabilities of HK$4,507,000 (2018:HK$7,075,000) are
secured by the lessors’ charges over the leased assets with
carrying value of approximately HK$6,460,000 (2018:
Refer to note 15 for details).

Note c: The Group has leased several land and buildings for
offices and factories. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of terms and
conditions. Tenures of the leases range from 1 to 10
years.
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REREWNE BV R EEAE16
KzB AEBEBEMBEEES
FTERIE17S W BEARAHE
BRENEEMEEEN D EREA
BEE - BT - R _T—NE
+TZA=+—H A5EHESR
& H4,507,00008 T (ZF— N\
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

19. GOODWILL 19. B8
HK$'000
FET
COST R
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 R—ZE—NF—HF—H,
and 31 December 2019 —E-N\F+ZA=Z+—HK
—E-AF+-_A=+—H 53,483
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT 25 RE
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 RZZE-NF—H—8,
and 31 December 2019 —E-N\F+ZA=Z+—HK
—E-hFEt+-_A=+—8H -
CARRYING AMOUNT BREE
At 31 December 2019 RZE—hhF+ZA=+—H 53,483
At 31 December 2018 R_E—NF+=-_A=+—H 53,483
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRMEE ()

ja =]

19.

GOODWILL (Continued)

The amount represents goodwill arising from the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in KFE Hong Kong Co., Limited
("KFE") in 2013. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill has been allocated to an individual cash generating
unit fIECGU"),
processing and trading of printed circuit boards segment.

representing KFE, a subsidiary in the

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and a pre-tax discount rate of
18.4% (2018: 19.5%) per annum. The cash flows beyond
that five-year period have been extrapolated using a steady
3% (2018: 3%) per annum growth rate. This growth rate is
based on the printed circuit boards industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the printed circuit boards industry. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculation relate to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin. Such estimations are based on KFE's past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. The directors believe that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the carrying amount of KFE to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of KFE.

The directors reviewed the carrying value of the goodwill,
taking into account an independent valuation report
prepared by a professional valuer, Cushman & Wakefield
Limited. Based on the assessment and the valuation report,
the directors are of the opinion that no impairment loss is
necessary as at 31 December 2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

19. 8 (&)

hEEAEN _—_T——FRKEHE &
BEEBBR AR ([KFE])H100%&
AEEMEE - REIXEUBEEE
=@l eErfEMN([BeELE
fizl)  BIENRIEBRMIRE 55 508
B 8 X RIKFE ©

ZaRE e RReELBMNMNER
BE EERENEEBIEN T FEI
HIEE FRERE18.4% (ZF— \F:
19.5% )MBATMEIRE - 2R MBFHE
REFERERERAI% (ZE—N\F:
3% )M FRBRAFHHEE ZEREREHE
P ED 4R B& R pn 1T 238 R TE R - T
B 3B E R 4R 2% W h0 T 17 3 /9 F 15 & HA 1%
RE-HMHAEFRANEBEFTZENAR S
WA/ REOBRBEAEPREEEH
EREFENHE - T RERKFEZ
BEREREERBEMSEREMNTEN -
EFHE CANEENAIZEHERT
ERZERZ TS ERKFENREEER
MAKFEZ AT Y 6] 5 % o

EFCENRENEEEER REEE
NAEXEGHEM-BRRTARRAAZ
BIYGERSE - RIEFERGEERS R
“E-NAFFTZA=+T—H EFRR
HERERES



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

20. BB E

Customer
relationship
EFBR®
HK$°000
FHEIT
cosT R
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 RZE-NF—HA—H,
and 31 December 2019 —E-NF+TZA=+—HK
—E-NAFE+=-HA=+—H 13,831
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION S
At 1 January 2018 RZZE-NF—H—H 5,993
Amortisation for the year N 5 1,384
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZFE-NF+ZA=+—HEK
—E-NF—HA—H 7,377
Amortisation for the year AN F T2 B B 1,383
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—H 8,760
CARRYING AMOUNT BREE
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZHA=+—H 5,071
At 31 December 2018 R—E—NF+=—_A=+—H 6,454

Customer relationship is amortised on a straight-line basis

over its useful life of 10 years.

EPBERRAERERI0FERFHS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 L2 =%

21.

—NF+ A=

F— AR

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. BE AR R
2019 2018
—E-hE —N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost IE TR BRARE 7,747 7,747
Share of post-acquisition profits and DU B & 2 % 7 & & 1
reserves, net of dividends received (MBRERKEE) 22,830 21,208
30,577 28,955
Amounts due from associates JFE U Bt 2 N B 5K IR 8,510 8,852
Less: allowance for impairment of B RERBERE
bad and doubtful debts (6,278) (6,668)
2,232 2,184
32,809 31,139

(a)

interest
In the
opinion of the directors, the amounts will not be

Amounts due from associates are unsecured,
free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

repayable within 12 months of the end of the reporting
period and are accordingly classified as non-current.
The individually impaired receivable of approximately
HK$6,278,000 (2018: HK$6,668,000) is mainly a debt
due from an associate which is of age over three years.
The other amounts due from associates do not contain
impaired assets.

Interests in associates at the end of the reporting period
include goodwill of approximately HK$313,000 (2018:
HK$313,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 21. BE AR R (£)
Details of the principal associates of the Group at 31 RZE—NF+ZA=Z+—HEXTEHRE
December 2019 are as follows: NAEFERT:
Proportion of
Place of nominal value of
incorporation/ registered capital
attributable

to the Group

registration

Name of associate and operation Principal activities

3L,/ FEBEEN
A REE =& A
BENTRER R {8 2 Bl TEXH
%
Suzhou Sanguang Science & The PRC 211 Manufacturing of industrial
Technology Co., Ltd. machinery, equipment
and supplies
RN =R RO AR LA & TEBW - =B M
TERmEE
BMmERERSTERZERAT  The PRC 22.5 Manufacturing and trading
of the experimental
analysis instrument
BMNTERERIMESRARAE  HE EROMBHERES
Cosmos i-Tech Solutions Limited Hong Kong 30.0 Providing information

technology consultancy

service
AEGEEHRERAA BE REE AR AR
A EBERRTNEREERREHARE
f%i EQZZ’KEEQE;K/?QFEEER/E

M2 51

The above table lists out the associates of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results
of the Group for the year or form a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group at the end of the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 L2 =%

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
In the opinion of the directors, the associates of the

Group are all individually not material. Aggregate financial

21.

—NE+_A=1—HIFE

B AR ()
EERRAEE 2B ERR 2 A AE R
FERAREBZBERAGEUBE

information in respect of the Group's associates is set out BRI
below:
2019 2018
—E-hF — N\
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Aggregate carrying amount of RirE B BHREFERIEER
individually immaterial associates in Bt A RliRE REE
the consolidated financial statements 30,577 28,955
Aggregate amounts of the Group's REBELBEARGEER
share of those associates
Profit from continuing operations SEIRE 7 BF| 2,991 1,658
Other comprehensive expense HEh 2w (650) (1,031)
Total comprehensive income B3N 2,341 627

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income represent investments in unlisted
equity securities which are not held for trading, and the
Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition in this
category. These are strategic investments and the Group

considers this classification more relevant.

Balance at 31 December 2018 and NZZE
31 December 2019

22.

RFEEFAHCZEAREZE
BMEE
RZZE-NF+_A=1+—HB X&H
AAAHRMEEREZEREERKRLET
EEEs YARELE  URAEER
F)0A FE 77 Ry 53 12 FE AR /S L 3R B 6 1 T 3
[l - 1t T SREE IR E - AR BB AL D
BEBBE-

HK$'000
FET

—N\FE+-—A=+—8K
—hEFE+-_A=+—B%&& -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

23. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

Minimum lease receipts

23. ERmEHEERE

Present value of
Minimum lease receipts

REHEERA REAERAZRE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-nF ZF/\F Z=B-AF TR
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
Amounts receivable under U ERERE
finance leases: TR
Not later than one year —FR 35,699 121,443 31,428 107,037
Later than one year and EFE_ERF
not later than five years 44,109 49,632 41,530 45,378
79,808 171,075 72,958 152,415
Less: Unearned finance income 3l : R B IR B U A (6,850) (18,660) N/A F#EH N/A 7~ 3 F
72,958 152,415 72,958 152,415
Overdue finance lease mEELRERE
receivables FIE 84,657 7,483 84,657 7,483
Present value of minimum REAERAZ
lease receipts RAEEE 157,615 159,898 157,615 159,898
Less: Allowance for impairment & : 532 BR 5 B % &
of bad and doubtful debts (15,008) (6,198) (15,008) (6,198)
142,607 153,700 142,607 153,700
Less: Current finance lease BIARBEEZ
receivables under EUWEEES
current assets A (102,432) (109,249)
Non-current finance lease FERBERBEERE
receivables IR 40,175 44,451

The Group has entered into finance lease arrangements with
their customers. The terms of finance leases entered into for

SEEARHREHELREP BEME
BORTHRAS—FHHF-

periods ranged from one to four years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

23. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The movements on the allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts are as follows:

23. EmERERE(£)

REEAARBELDERNT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —T-N\F

HK$'000 HK$°000

FET FET

Balance at 1 January R—A—B&&% 6,198 17,074
Exchange realignment E W (296) (57)
Unused amount reversed [o] % K B) FH 258 (3,827) (14,164)
Impairment loss recognised R R EEE 13,420 3,345
Uncollectible amounts written off il £8 1 AT Y Bl B X8 (487) -
Balance at 31 December R+-—A=Z+—B#&% 15,008 6,198

At 31 December 2019, the allowance for credit loss
represents lifetime expected credit loss recognised for
finance lease receivables under simplified approach. Details
of impairment assessment of finance lease receivables for
the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 43(b)
(iv).

All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and there were no
unguaranteed residual values in connection with finance
lease arrangements or contingent lease arrangements of the
Group that need to be recorded as at 31 December 2019
(2018: Nil).

Finance lease receivable balances are secured over the plant
and equipment leased. The Group is not permitted to sell
or re-pledge the collateral in the absence of default by the
lessee.

The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the
contract date for the entire lease term. The effective interest
rates are ranging from 3.7% to 27.3% per annum (2018:
from 7.4% to 19.0% per annum).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

24. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

2. EEREBEEE BE
NTAAEBERANTEECHES

The following are the major components of deferred tax

assets/(liabilities) recognised by the Group and movements

thereon during the current and prior years:

E/ (ARIRAFERLEEZE

Intangible  (Accelerated)/
assets arising  decelerated  Revaluation
from business tax  of land and Tax
combination  depreciation building losses Others Total
E3 (&) /
EEZ HE TR
BREE HERRE BFER RBEER it aE
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
T T T T FiEr T
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N$-A-H (1,294) 501 (11,259) 1,350 15,813 511
Exchange realignment ERAE - - 135 (14) (634) (513)
Charged to equity RERNR - - (2,817) - - (2,817)
Credited/(charged) to income RBEERIN/ (%)
statement (Hrit11)
(note 11) 228 57 - 55 (1,550) (1,210)
At 31 December 2018 and RZEZ-N\F+ZA=1-A
1 January 2019 kZZE-n5-A-H (1,066) 558 (13,941) 1,391 13,629 571
Exchange realignment ELRE - - 17 (20) (269) (172)
Charged to equity RER MR - - (3,605) - - (3,605)
Credited/(charged) to income RIEERZIA/ (1K)
statement (note 11) (Hiz#11) 228 (117) - (33) 3,072 3,150
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NF+ZA=1+-H (838) 44 (17,429) 1,338 16,432 (56)

—ZT—AEEHR e+ Annual Report 2019

233



234

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRMEE ()

ja =]

24,

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(Continued)

For the purposes of consolidated statement of financial
position presentation, certain deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
have been offset in accordance with the conditions set out
in HKAS 12. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances shown in the consolidated statement of financial

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

2. EERBEEE &BE (£)

KA BN KR 2R - THRIEEE
BRFERF 12K Z R A RERENR
EHBEE,/ (AB)KEEE TR
B 2FIRER A B ISR R R e IR IE TR
PREB DT -

position:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HKS$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred tax assets RIETRIEE = 29,577 26,419
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIBAEG (29,633) (25,848)
(56) 571

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. At 31
December 2019, the Group has unrecognised tax losses of
approximately HK$565,874,000 (2018: HK$570,184,000
available for offset against future profits. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$179,216,000 (2018: HK$212,660,000) that will expire in
five years and the remaining balance does not expire under
the current tax legislation.

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in
associates are insignificant.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED e« AE##MEEERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R R IRARMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

25. INVENTORIES 25. 78
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial (a) HFEFBRARFNTFERIE:
position comprise:

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Trading inventories and BEHFE MK m
finished goods 179,973 219,038
Work in progress TR 110,949 111,271
Raw materials R K 143,718 161,628
434,640 491,937
At 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of RZE—-—hF+ZRA=+—H T
inventories that were stated at fair value less costs EZEREEAENZERAFEEREEK
to sell is approximately HK$62,471,000 (2018: AFEEH 562,471,000 (= F
HK$14,693,000). —J\4F : 14,693,0007% 7T ) 51| Bk °
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as (b) BRAERIZIVHABENGEESH
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: DT
2019 2018
—E-nE  —T-N%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Carrying amount of inventories sold & H & & & £ Bk E (& 1,975,720 2,232,093
Write-down of inventories FE MR 24,729 30,063
Reversal of write-down of 17 & iR [m) #
inventories (33,066) (16,862)
1,967,383 2,245,294
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE MR (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

26. EE R EHMEWRRIE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade and bills receivables B 5 N EWEIEFRIA 867,976 876,879
Less: allowance for impairment of B RERBERE

bad and doubtful debts (103,553) (106,864)

764,423 770,015

Other receivables H 4th & We 5008 115,053 150,333
Less: allowance for impairment of B RERBERE

bad and doubtful debts (16,486) (22,160)

98,567 128,173

Prepayments SEANE 27,646 35,398

Amounts due from related parties FEU BB E T 2 IR 351 585

890,987 934,171

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade
and other receivables approximate to their fair values. All
trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered or
recognised as expense within one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The Group grants an average credit period of 90 days to
120 days for customers. Further details on the Group's credit
policy and credit risk arising from trade debtors and bills
receivable are set out in note 43(b)(iv). An aging analysis of
the trade and bills receivables at the end of the reporting
period based on the invoice date and net of allowance for
impairment of bad and doubtful debts, is as follows:

26. E5 N H M EWKIE (&)

AEBHETHEEFPZ FHEEHRIOX
ENR0OR-BARKEZEERREBES
LREKREBEREEZEERR HFHAR
ffaE43(b)iv) M EHEE R REER
HZEMBRERBRERENE S LE
WRBFAERE DT

2019 2018

—E-NE —T-N\E

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

0 to 3 months TE=AA 534,352 525,742
4 to 6 months mE N E A 115,156 120,390
7 to 9 months +tZ=NEA 50,413 55,787
Over 9 months s LA A 64,502 68,096
764,423 770,015

The movements on the allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts of the Group are as follows:

RIEBRBEREB2EHEIINT -

Trade receivables

B 5 EWRE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FiET
Balance at 1 January R—A— B4 106,864 114,032
Exchange realignment JE T (2,621) (4,789)
Impairment loss recognised R BERE 11,623 7,267
Unused amounts reversed [o] 8 R &) F 815 (8,811) (6,147)
Uncollectible amounts written off 8 A 7] Y [ /Y 3R0E (3,502) (3,499)
Balance at 31 December R+-—BR=+—8#&% 103,553 106,864
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

26. E5 N H M EWKIE (&)

Other receivables

B FE Uk 5k 1E
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Balance at 1 January R—RA—B#&%#% 22,160 26,921
Exchange realignment E N (508) (1,218)
Impairment loss recognised R ZBEBE 858 6,561
Unused amounts reversed [l R B) A 8RR (1,170) (5,374)
Uncollectible amounts written off il 8 1 AT U Bl B SR IE (4,854) (4,730)
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 16,486 22,160

The above allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful
debts is a provision for individually impaired trade receivables
and impaired other receivables. The individually impaired
trade receivables mainly represent sales made to the PRC
customers which have remained long overdue. The impaired
other receivables relate to debtors that have been long
outstanding without settlement or having any business
relationship with the Group. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

Included in trade and other receivables are the following
amounts denominated in the following currencies:

United States Dollars ETT
Renminbi AR
Japanese Yen Bt

Lt R BRORL(E 1B 2 1 B 2 R R R
TR N 2R 18 E At FE R IR B - 1 B
EREEYFEREFETERHETHE
BEEZBHRFE - BRENEMEK
RRREERHEH N EREE LB EM
EBE AR EYE Ll BKRIER
EETMERgR zERTHE-

B LEMEYRERBEEMT

2019
= i

23,884,000
605,995,000
140,560,000

2018
—E-N\F

28,319,000
598,489,000
88,171,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

27. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

27. HtteMEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-NF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FHET

Measured at fair value through BRATEEFAER

profit or loss

Unlisted equity investment (note a) FELTMEREE (fita) 4,465 -
Unlisted unit trust funds (note b) FEFrmEMETEES (Mith) 222 219
Wealth management products I8 B 7 — 33,711
4,687 33,930

Notes:

(a)

During the year, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement pursuant to which the Group agreed to subscribe
for shares of a limited partnership incorporated in PRC
(the “Investment”), as a limited partner, for an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$4,465,000 in cash. The
Investment principally invests in a private entity engaged
in providing environmental service in PRC. The Group, as a
limited partner in the Investment, does not have the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the Investment. As such, the Group does not have significant
influence over the Investment.

The Investment is accounted for as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9. As
at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the Investment is
approximately HK$4,465,000. No fair value gain or loss was
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 December
2019.

The fair values of the unlisted unit trust funds were based on
net assets value of the investment funds at the end of the
reporting period provided by the financial institutions.

Wit

(a)

MARFER AEBEFLT — D REW
& B AREREFERBEREBA
LA #)4,465,000/ 7T 2 R ERE — H
RHBEFEMRINBERABEE ([KE
FHRD 2B - REFHEITBRENKE
TERERHERERBOLEER K
SEHEAREFTHNERAEA EE
SEEEEHEIUBHREERERTE -
Rt AEEERESHATBRERZE
Ho

BIEEBUBREENESR KREE
BARSEATEEABEZZERE
E-R-_B-NAF+T-_A=+—-80 K
B =1H 2 NV {E(ER4,465,0008 7T 7
BE_Z-NEFT-_A=+—HLFE
N EAFERRESEEREZESD
HER

FLEMEMERESNAFEERER
CTRBBRHEERSAERERREE
THFEEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR ME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

28. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 28. RERMITHEER
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Pledged bank deposits EEAZRITER
(Note (a)) (Note 42) (Bit@) (Kfit42) 2,902 52,159
Cash and cash equivalents (Note (b)) ReMBEEE (Hitb)) 309,731 287,543
312,633 339,702
(a) Pledged bank deposits (a) BEFZBITER
Included in pledged bank deposits in the consolidated RERE BN K P B EIR 2 RIT
statement of financial position are the following FRZRBEEBHET :
amounts denominated in the following currency:
2019 2018
—ZE-hE —ZE-N\F
Renminbi AR 2,600,000 45,702,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

28. RERBITHER (F)
(b) RERASEME

28. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

(b) Cash and cash equivalents

2019 2018

—B-hE —E-N\F

HK$000 HK$°000

FET FET

Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIES 309,731 287,543

RehBeFE a%?’iu%lﬁ{ﬁ%

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the

purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows: EHERERNVAR
2019 2018
“B-NE T )\&
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Bank balances and cash per above $R{T& S NIESE W0 E 309,731 287,543
Less: Bank overdrafts (note 31) W RITESZ (HiE31) - (4,865)
309,731 282,678

Included in bank balances and cash in the consolidated Rira BRI RPIRITAER IR
statement of financial position are the following PZREE®ENT:
amounts denominated in the following currencies:

2019 2018

—E-hE —E-N\F

United States Dollars ETT 11,495,000 6,941,000
Renminbi AR 155,120,000 134,983,000
Japanese Yen Bt 29,710,000 25,145,000
Euro Dollars BT 23,000 51,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES/CONTRACT 2. EFRHEMEMNTIE SHNEE
LIABILITIES
(i) Trade and other payables (i) EZREHMENTKE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Trade and bills payables B 5 REMNEEHIE 553,041 611,433
Accruals and other payables JEﬁ?H‘JL&EﬁﬂFEﬁ A 137,005 171,512
Amounts due to non-controlling 45 /R JE¥E R i 25 2 FRIE
interests 9,600 9,600
699,646 792,545
The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade EEMRREIREMENFIEZ
and other payables approximates to their fair values. All FHEREAVFEEMBAL-MER
trade and other payables are expected to be settled or 5 R EAMENFIBTEBRER —FRN
recognised as income within one year or are repayable AT ER BRI IEE KIS -
on demand.
The aging analysis of the Group's trade and bills RmEEER AEEZEZAH
payables at the end of the reporting period based on WE S KENEERIBZRE DT
the date of invoice is as follows: LU
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
0 to 3 months TE=EA 376,909 449,779
4 to 6 months EEAN DS 108,968 99,822
7 to 9 months tE=NEA 34,792 38,042
Over 9 months 7838 /118 A 32,372 23,790
553,041 611,433
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29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES/CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (Continued)

()

(ii)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

Trade and other payables (Continued)

Included in trade and other payables are the following

(%)

2. B RHMENRE ESHNEE

() ESZRAEMEMNTEE)
BohEMENREBERBE SN

amounts denominated in the following currencies: ™
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-NF
United States Dollars ETT 5,782,000 7,648,000
Renminbi AR 530,240,000 572,040,000
Japanese Yen Ht 124,498,000 172,900,000
Euro Dollars BT 10,000 90,000
Contract liabilities (i) EHERE
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —ZE-NF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Billings in advance of TE W kI8
performance 66,202 66,323

When the Group receives a deposit before the
production activity commences this will give rise to
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the
revenue is recognised. The Group receives deposits
on acceptance of orders on a case by case basis with
customers before work commences.

The balance of contract liabilities at 1 January 2019 was
all recognised as revenue during the year of 2019. The
amount of billings in advance of performance received
is expected to be recognised as income within one year.

EAKEELEESFR LG AWERE]
T ANAEREANRIGRES
EERARBRL - AEEEER
RIEAEEERMBRGT2RRERM
FEHY©

R-ZZE-NF-HA—-BNANAE
BHREZEN_ZE-NFEANER
BN - FBYWHRAEz S EARE—
FREER/UEA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

30. PROVISION FOR RESTRUCTURING 30.

The Group recorded its restructuring costs provision when it
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
restructuring actions.

Restructuring costs provision mainly comprised provision
for employees compensation and relocation expenses,
arising from a series of restructuring actions to reduce costs
and enhance operational efficiency. The restructuring was
completed during the current year.

The following are restructuring provision of the Group and
movements thereon during the current and prior years:

EABE
AEEREMASRMELRTERRLHE
EZEEN BEABRABEAR:

EHERBRIEZRER—RIEES
RUABERARESEELETMELN
BEHERREBRAX T ENEF A
ERAFEHER-

AT RAAEBNEEBENRAEFER
RERRNZEE:

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$°000 HK$000

FET FHET

At 1 January n—H—H 30,238 52,956

Exchange realignment JE W (662) (1,474)

Restructuring costs paid BENEHE R (9,286) (1,632)
Unused provision for BB AR A EHEE

restructuring reversed (20,290) (19,612)

At 31 December R+=-—A=+-—-8 - 30,238
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

31. BANK BORROWINGS

31. RITERK

2019 2018
—E-hE —E—-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current kAR
Bank loans RITER
— secured —BHEH 48,376 4,000
— unsecured — 4 3K 47 5,000 16,111
53,376 20,111
Current RE
Bank loans IRITEK
— secured — B EA 55,558 103,512
— unsecured — A 244,285 248,675
Bank overdrafts (note 28) RITEX (H1:228)
— unsecured — 45 3K 4 - 4,865
299,843 357,052
Total borrowings HBIER 353,219 377,163

The aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s bank loans
as at 31 December 2019 (that are repayable more than one
year after the end of the reporting period but contain a
repayment on demand clause) that have been reclassified
as current liabilities is approximately HK$2,223,000 (2018:
HK$17,223,000).

These loans are callable by the lenders, but the management
does not expect the lenders to exercise their rights to
demand repayment in normal circumstances.

RZZE—NFF+_A=1+—8 T£EE
BRI 1E 492,223,000/ 7T ( ZZF— )\ F
17,223,000 70 ) < SRITER (AR HEH
HEBEN—FHRESZE BHEREX
BERBERERIERDEEIERRY
BE-

BMAAAZEREEER BERER

HIRAE—RBER ST EITRARE

MEREEERK-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE MR (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

31. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The maturity of the bank borrowings based on the scheduled
repayment date set out in the loan agreements ignoring the

effect of any repayment on demand clause are as follows:

31.

RITER (&)
1R B AR 2 AR IR B R R
2 REFGHEERZEEESENT

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

HK$°000 HK$000

FET FET

Within 1 year —F R 297,620 339,829
Between 1 and 2 years —2= 30,434 32,334
Between 2 and 5 years —FRHF 25,165 5,000
353,219 377,163

The non-current bank borrowings are stated at amortised

cost.

The effective interest rate as at 31 December 2019 for bank
borrowings and overdrafts is 4.65% per annum (2018:

4.42% per annum).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

31. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of borrowings are denominated in the
following currencies:

31.

BITER(F)
EREREEARSEIERT -

2019 2018
=E-NF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Hong Kong Dollars BT 241,069 279,633
Renminbi AR 112,150 97,530
353,219 377,163

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities: EEARPHZEEEENT:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Floating rate N

— expiring within one year —R—F NI 339,098 348,186

The facilities expiring within one year are annual facilities
subject to review at various dates during 2019.

Bank borrowings are secured by certain ownership interest in
leasehold land and buildings held for own use and land use
rights of the Group (notes 15 and 18).

—FAINYREREDNFERE AR
“E-NFHATEBEETR -

RITEFRAREERBOERBE LR

18T P A R HE 25 N (5 A (R4
(PMzE155%18) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRMEE ()

ja =]

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

32.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED

LEASE LIABILITIES/OBLIGATIONS UNDER
FINANCE LEASES

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group's lease liabilities at the end of the
current and previous reporting periods and at the date of
transition to HKFRS 16:

31 December 2019

32. HERE HEHSE

i Ep
B TA

U TERFAAEEEE AT RS
HIRAMBEZEBPBREEAF 16
HZAMNHEERBENRBRE OB TEEH
HiRR -

1 January 2019 (Note) ~ 31 December 2018 (Note)

“E-NE ZB-nF ZE-N\E
+ZA=+-H —-B—RB (M) +ZR=+-8(Hi#)
Present Present Present
value of the value of the value of the
minimum  Minimum  minimum  Minimum  minimum  Minimum
lease lease lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments payments payments
EEHE HEEE SEEE SEEE SEEE SEHE
Ttz RE Xt XHZBRE Yt XHZHRE Xt
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FAT FET FET FAT FET
Within 1 year —ER 14,052 18,455 10,852 15,771 2,547 2,880
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREZFR 12,943 16,389 10,998 15,153 2,699 2,887
After 2 years but within 5 years “EBRRRER 26,639 32,451 26,986 34,923 1,829 1,873
After 5 years TERk 9,668 10,108 18,984 20,668 - -
49,250 58,948 56,968 70,744 4,528 4,760
63,302 77,403 67,820 86,515 7,075 7,640
Less: total future interest expenses B ARRF S AT (14,101) (18,695) (565)
Present value of lease liabilities HEARRE 63,302 67,820 7,075
Note: Hiat -

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1
January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which
were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. These
liabilities have been aggregated with the brought forward balances
relating to leases previously classified as obligations under finance
leases. Comparative information as at 31 December 2018 has not
been restated and relates solely to leases previously classified as
obligations under finance leases. Further details on the impact of the
transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in note 3.

AERBEEBRA R

REBECREBEETOEIEERIRAE B
R EENEIeH WR_FE—NLF—A
— BB URRELHBREESS
SEREI7R R EACENENRNESH
MEERE - ELEECEUNEREARE
HEERNBELE - BE_T—/\F+=A
=T ARG B AR E R E AT
BHEAREHEERNTAERE - BEEES
MERELERSBI6HMTENE—SHBEH
NI



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

32. LEASE LIABILITIES/OBLIGATIONS UNDER 32. HEAE WMEHEER (£)
FINANCE LEASES (Continued)
The Group leases office properties, factories and plant and REBHEBAMAYE - TR KREE
machinery. Leases are negotiated mostly for terms ranging M - AV F BT AN E10F AT R 7Y
from 1 to 10 years and rentals are almost fixed for the said i e@mERNELOFEPEE -
term.
At 31 December 2019, lease liabilities of HK$4,931,000 RZE-—NF+-_A=+—8 XEEZ
(2018: HK$7,075,000) are secured by the lessors’ charges HEBEFRH4L931,00087T (—F— )\
over the leased assets. 17,075,000 7T) = A THE & E K F

FHBEA-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR ME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. k&
2019 2018
—EZ-hF —E-N\F

Number of Number of

ordinary ordinary
shares Amount shares Amount
EBERRE aE  TERRE e
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET

Ordinary shares, issued and BETRBREER:
fully paid:

At 1 January ®R—A—AH 861,930,692 609,027 716,930,692 532,903
Shares issued upon subscription  FR8& 1M %17 2 B 17 - - 145,000,000 76,124
At 31 December R+ZRA=+—H 861,930,692 609,027 861,930,692 609,027

All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company's residual assets.
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34. OTHER RESERVES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

34. Hftbf# 1

Property
revaluation Translation
reserve reserve Others Total
NEERRE ERfE 2ty am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZE-NE—F—B&# 61,608 91,081 679 153,368
Share of reserves of associates ERBE DR RE - (1,031) - (1,031)
Surplus on revaluation of properties BRNEERE RS
held for own use 13,200 - - 13,200
Deferred taxation adjustment EEHIEHE (2,650) - - (2,650)
Exchange differences arising from  BEBIEBHBRRBELE L
translation of financial statements ~ EXZ%
of foreign operations - (49,314) - (49,314)
Release of translation reserve upon  HE&E—fEH B A a6
disposal of a subsidiary B R - 547 - 547
Release of translation reserve upon L35 — M B A AR
deregistration of a subsidiary HEZFERT - (1,904) - (1,904)
Release of revaluation reserve upon & — M B A%
disposal of a subsidiary REMERFEED (9,028) - - (9,028)
Balance at 31 December 2018 R-EB-NE+=ZA=+-H
and 1 January 2019 R-B-hnE-A-HEH 63,130 39,379 679 103,188
Share of reserves of associates [EIhE & LN R E - (650) - (650)
Surplus on revaluation of properties BN ESEEH
held for own use 18,044 - - 18,044
Deferred taxation adjustment ERTERE (3,344) - - (3,344)
Exchange differences arising from  BEFHNEBHBRREEL L
translation of financial statements ~ EXZ%E
of foreign operations - (21,804) - (21,804)
Release of translation reserve upon 3 i — M B A%
deregistration of a subsidiary RERFERD - (2,662) - (2,662)
Balance at 31 December 2019 RZE-h&E+-A=1+-H
2 77,830 14,263 679 92,772
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 35. KA DT M MR R K

COMPANY
(a) Company-level statement of financial position () XATBBERREK
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Non-current Assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- WE K& E 210 776
Interests in subsidiaries i EPNGIE Eo 1,253,970 1,243,399
1,254,180 1,244,175
Current Assets REBEE
Other receivables H b e Uk 5008 2,619 1,263
Amount due from an associate JE W — R B & R B 3RIB 785 983
Cash and bank balances Be MIRITES 25,873 76,956
29,277 79,202
Current Liabilities REBEE
Other payables b jE A IR 1,073 12,425
Amounts due to subsidiaries =R B A B A 94,334 180,262
Bank borrowings RITER 55,000 13,000
150,407 205,687
Net Current Liabilities ERBEE (121,130) (126,485)
Total Assets less Current Liabilities BEERTBDEE 1,133,050 1,117,690
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank borrowings RITER 33,213 -
Net Assets FEE 1,099,837 1,117,690
Capital and Reserves (note 35(b) BARRf#E (H:7#350b))
Share capital fi% < 609,027 609,027
Proposed final dividend EaAHRE - 17,239
Retained profits R & F 490,810 491,424
Total Equity EnEE 1,099,837 1,117,690
The statement of financial position of the Company KRBIMBRARNR - E_FTF =
was approved and authorised for issue by the Board of A=tHEEEgi A RET
Directors on 30 March 2020 and is signed on its behalf BUWAHTINEERERES:
by:
TANG TO TANG YU, FREEMAN
n=E =)
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
E- EBZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Movement in components of equity of the

35. RARPBMRREK (E)

(b) AT EZZEH

Company
Proposed
final
Share capital dividend Retained profits Total
kx  EBERERE REEH EH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TET
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZZ-N\5-A—-H
& 532,903 - 524,193 1,057,096
Loss for the year TEERR - - (15,530) (15,530)
Issue of ordinary shares BTERR 76,124 - - 76,124
Proposed final dividend (note 74) BERERE (Wi#14) - 17,239 (17,239) -
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\F
and 1 January 2019 TZAZ+-HR
~E-nE-A-H
w5 609,027 17,239 491,424 1,117,690
Loss for the year TEEBR - - (614) (614)
Dividends approved in respect of BEFECHERS
the previous year (note 14) (Hi7#14) - (17,239) - (17,239)
Balance at 31 December 2019 R=Z-n%
tZR=t-R&& 609,027 - 490,810 1,099,837
Distributability of reserves () RFEBEDIK

At 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company, as calculated under
the provisions of Part 6 of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, was approximately HK$490,810,000
(2018:HK$508,663,000). After the end of the reporting
period, the Board did not recommend the payment of
a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019
(2018: HK$0.02 per share amounting to approximately
HK$17,239,000).

WZZE—HhFE+_A=+—8 1
B CRBHEBI) SBINE8 D B XX ET
B ARAAHESIETREREA
K 15 49 5490,810,0008 7T (==&
— J\4F : 508,663,000/ L) - A &
AR ETeTERARBHE=
E-NE+-_A=+—BEEXRH
B (ZE—NF:FR2BLEE
#517,239,000 7T ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE MR (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 36. REMIEZEIMNEERIEHEE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 7Y ¥ AR
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TERHAVNEENBERREBRE TGN
from financing activities, including both cash and noncash HEAEENES PEREIIERSH
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are B REMETHNEBELIERLES
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will MEXRKNRESTETREBNEE
be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash RERERTHEIELERERE TSN
flows as cash flows from financing activities. RERE -
Amounts
Lease due to
liabilities/ Amount non-
Bank finance  duetoan controlling
loans lease associate interests Total
nEsk/ Hx-8 Y
BERE BELT FERER
RITER &% HE ZHE Ehl
HKS$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FAET FET FET
(Note)
(Hi)
At 1 January 2018 “Z-N\F-F-H 422,555 2,696 865 10,345 436,461
Changes from financing cash flow RERBEZBRERZ
28
New bank loans raised FIEBTER 245,338 - - - 245,338
Repayment of bank loans VLfEﬁ BR (290,256) - - - (290,256)
Bank loans interest paid ERFIERFIE (21,650) - - - (21,650)
Dividend paid to the non-controlling ﬁ#?hh?hg
shareholders - - - (2,967) (2,967)
Capital element on obligation BENREHEERTS
under finance lease paid - (3,559) - - (3,559)
Finance charges on obligations ENRERERRNE
under finance leases paid - (206) - - (206)
Advance to an associate AN—-HEE AR
A - - (161) - (161)
Repayment to the non-controlling BRERFERREE
shareholders B - - - (745) (745)
Total changes from financing cash flows RERBEFHRRTZ
g£8ag (66,568) (3,765) (161) (3,712) (74,206)
Exchange adjustments ERLAR (5,339) (66) - - (5,405)
Other changes Hih %8
Inception of finance leases FERERERER - 8,004 - - 8,004
Interest expenses (note 7) FEBR (Hi7) 21,650 206 - - 21,856
Dividend to the non-controlling shareholders R IR IR R R S - - - 2,967 2,967
Total other changes Ht B HaE 21,650 8,210 - 2,967 32,827
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\E+-A=+-H 372,298 7,075 704 9,600 389,677
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 36. RERMETHNEBRIEBEE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued) ¥ ER (£)
Amounts
Lease due to
liabilities/ Amount non-
Bank finance  duetoan controlling
loans lease associate interests Total
Agal,/ EX-8 &R
MEHE BEAT FERER
BITER &% HE ZHE &%

HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TET TET FET TET TET

(Note)
(hst)
At 31 December 2018 R=-E-NE+=-f=+-H 372,298 7,075 704 9,600 389,677
Impact on initial application of BRENBEARBRE
HKFRS 16 (Note) BHE 16Kz HE
(Hist) - 60,745 - - 60,745
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-hn%—-A—H 372,298 67,820 704 9,600 450,422
Changes from financing cash flow RERMETHREMZ
#E
New bank loans raised HEETER 321,299 - - - 321,299
Repayment of bank loans BBRITER (338,540) - - - (338,540)
Bank loans interest paid BRBITENRE (19,844) - - - (19,844)
Dividend paid to the non-controlling BREERBEERE
shareholders - - - (10,433) (10,433)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BREERENALT S - (12,308) - - (12,308)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BERAERENFSH A - (5,114) - - (5,114)
Advance 1o an associate BY—ABREDRZHE - - (553) - (553)
Total changes from financing cash flows REREZDREDR
2Emm (37,085) (17,422) (553) (10,433) (65,493)
Exchange adjustments E AR (1,838) (1,242) ) - (3,082)
Other changes Hit 28
Increase in lease liabilities from entering AEERFTUMEE
into new leases during the year mENHHEsE - 9,032 - - 9,032
Interest expenses (note 7) FEER (H7#7) 19,844 5,114 - - 24.958
Dividend to the non-controlling shareholders BIERRERE - - - 10,433 10,433
Total other changes Ht R HaE 19,844 14,146 - 10,433 44,423
At 31 December 2019 RZB-hE+ZA=1+-H 353,219 63,302 149 9,600 426,270
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 L2 =%

36.

37.

38.

T =

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)
Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1
January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which
were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. These
liabilities have been aggregated with the brought forward balances
relating to leases previously classified as obligations under finance
leases. Comparative information as at 31 December 2018 has not
been restated and relates solely to leases previously classified as
obligations under finance leases. Further details on the impact of the
transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in note 3.

PROVISION FOR INDEMNITY

The provision represented indemnity for potential liabilities
in relation to the disposal of MS Plasticorp (“Disposed
Subsidiary”) to the purchaser of the Disposed Subsidiary
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the provision
for indemnity was reversed upon the expiration of
indemnification.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At 31 December 2018, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

36.

37.

38.

F— AR

REMEZHNEBEREBEE
MR (&)
Bat:

AEED EBEETHEREERRNES
MismEEREISH YN —F—-NF—A
—BRBPOSRE  URERELHREEES
SRS ERARKEHENEERE
MEERE - ELBECEUNKERERRE
HEERRNBREES BE-ZT—/\F+ A
=t -AMEBREEMAREL RERLHE

BRBENEEBNEHERE - BEEFEY
BHREERFEIRNTENE - FHBRIRN
PR3 -

AR E;ﬁﬁ
BEEBAN_ZE—N\F+A=1+—

BEFETRAEBEERNEXARA
A (THEMBRR ) AL EHRBARN
BETRHEENRERERRE

RBE-B-AFT-A=+—1L%

B HERBEAHNETREMNREL
1 B e o

ReRERE

ZFEE%EQHA

—E-N\FFTZA=t—H XKHE
réﬂﬁTTTvIMﬁZZ‘“%TH LR R R & DR
MHESMOT:

2018

—E-N\F

HK$'000

FET

Not later than one year —FR 17,833
Later than one year and FERF

not later than five years 45,940

Later than five years BEAE 20,668

84,441
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

38. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of office
properties, factories and plant and machinery held under
leases which were previously classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17. The Group has initially applied HKFRS
16 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, the Group adjusted the opening balances at 1
January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to these
leases (see note 3). From 1 January 2019 onwards, future
lease payments are recognised as lease liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position in accordance
with the policies set out in note 2(24), and the details
regarding the Group's future lease payments are disclosed in
note 32.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases:

8. REMERIE (&)

FEEBEBA (F)
AEBERBLERBRBEE B G ERNE
TR EAKREHENHERANZ A
BFEME BB REENATEA - AE
BRNERRETENERBELAMB
HELERE165E - NEEIZRZ A
BER-ZZF-NF— A HNFNBHIA
RAEEZSHAENEERE (RME
3) BZF-NF-A—HBE RXHE
AR M FE224) PR B BRI AR & BF
BRRAKRAERAEEAE MAEBX
£ BRI S KA 518 RUE R sE327P
WEE -

AEEHHBAA
RBEEEER AEERE TR MEZ
HEARTHRKZLHEERANT :

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-NF

HK$000 HK$000

FET FET

Not later than one year —F R 165 310
Later than one year and EEZRF

not later than five years 445 176

After five years hF & 348 -

958 486
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRMEE ()

f=]

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

39.

40.

41.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 39. EAREKIE
2019 2018
—ZE-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET

Capital expenditure: BRI :

Contracted but not provided for EENERELEE 4,755 5,307

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 40. FREE

The Group does not have any litigations or claims of material
importance and, so far as the directors are aware, no
litigation or claims of material importance are pending or
threatened by or against any companies of the Group.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
scheme which is registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustees. Employees who were members of the
ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme
were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or
switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees
joining the Group on or after 1 December 2000 are required
to join the MPF Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes
5.0% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, which
contribution is matched by the employee.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from
both employees and the Group at rates ranging from 5.0%
to 7.5% of the employee’s basic salary, depending on the
length of service with the Group.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED e« AE##MEEERAA

41.

AREBIW ES REFFRLERHRR-
MBEEMA TEGFERXHEEAR
AR ENRRIERHR -

1R ¢ 48 A 5T 8

752 [ [F] B 22 BELAR U3 B 3R AR KA 81 1R B
TEEAT RO E B KET &) (B SERIREHE)
KR _ZZZTFE+ZARERHIIERE
B &t B GR G A L A 98 5 1 RET 8 (58
BEEE) - Lt MIER BB ERAEE
ZEENH FAGRKAETE -RNBES
IR Z AT B R AGTEIKE 28
8 Al TIREBERE NBRR NG 8
BHRESHE -ER _ZETTFE+
A—B& 2B MAREENRE  ©A
AR IEE )

BROHBZAE ARENABLE
RAMEH 2 BRG B BANE
Rl — b 3 3

BERAKFENEAHREREE %
BENEARATERRLOIBBEDZRHE
tHO BRREFEME



41.

42.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (Continued)
Employees who are employed by subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed pension scheme operated
by the PRC government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute 16% — 20% of payroll costs to the pension
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the pension scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income statement
of approximately HK$38,564,000 (2018: HK$40,365,000)
represents contributions payable to these schemes by the
Group in respect of the current accounting period. As at 31
December 2019, contributions of approximately HK$331,000
(2018: HK$184,000) due in respect of the reporting period
had not been paid over to the schemes.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At the end of the reporting period, assets with the following
carrying amounts were pledged by the Group to secure
general banking facilities:

41.

42.

RIKEREE (2)
AEEEFEZMBARNEE STE
BREEZBEREYRESHEZE
B-HENBARAAEIEXNANE
DZTREZTRRABEAB MR- AR
SEZME—AEDRE AT BIRM
PR

BEIEIREERETRAZBHIY
£38,564,0008 L (=& — )\ & :
40,365,000/ 70) - RESEBER A H
MERELFTENHER - RZE—NF
+=—A=+—8 4331,0008 L (=%
— V£ : 184,000/ 7T, ) & fit 5 A 2 5t 27
ME R BN ARMELFTEIR

BEEEM

REEFEER AREEETIIURE
Bt EOEEFER  ABEBHE TAE
B —RIRITEER:

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$°000
FHET FET

Ownership interest in leasehold BRREE L REFTH

land and buildings held for PR RS

own use 156,873 152,214
Land use rights T HbfE A4 3,349 3,644
Plant and machinery 5 5 Re e 23 6,460 7,364
Motor vehicles aE 547 -
Bank deposits RITFE R 2,902 52,159
170,131 215,381
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE MR (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

3. PHEEAREEREMIAZLQF

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EE
(a) Financial instruments by categories (a) BRERE Dz T A
Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, the accounting policies RN B S B 3R | 55955
for financial instruments have been applied to the line PRIAGTBEEEAR T
items below: EH:
Financial
assets
Financial at fair value
assets at through
amortised cost profit or loss Total
DY EE
RERHERATE FARE
WeRmEE HemEE am
HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FE7 FET FET
Assets as per consolidated REEHEREKS
financial statements ZEBE
31 December 2019 “E-NF
+-A=1-H
Other financial assets HitemEE - 4,687 4,687
Amounts due from associates G A=NSIEN 2,232 - 2,232
Finance lease receivables B ARENE 142,607 = 142,607
Trade and other receivables BHRAMEKTIE 863,341 - 863,341
Pledged bank deposits BERABITER 2,902 - 2,902
Cash and cash equivalents RehRe%E 309,731 - 309,731
1,320,813 4,687 1,325,500
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(@) Financial instruments by categories (Continued)

43. B 7§
BE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

EEEEREMTREZAY
(#&)

(a) BERBD2EMITA (&)

Financial
assets
Financial at fair value
assets at through
amortised cost profit or loss Total
NATER
REEKAHE STABR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET FAT
Assets as per consolidated REEHERERS
financial statements ZEE
31 December 2018 —E-N\E
+-A=1-H
Other financial assets HitepmEE - 33,930 33,930
Amounts due from associates i NSIER 2,184 - 2,184
Finance lease receivables [EWEEFREA 153,700 - 153,700
Trade and other receivables BHREAMREKIE 898,773 - 898,773
Pledged bank deposits BHEARTER 52,159 - 52,159
Cash and cash equivalents BehReEE 287,543 - 287,543
1,394,359 33,930 1,428,289
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 43. BBEREEREMIAZAT
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)
(Continued)
(a) Financial instruments by categories (Continued) (a) RERESPz2EBMIE (&)
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R R AR
FTEzeRmas
HK$000
FET
Liabilities as per consolidated REGEMEBERRPZAE
financial statements
31 December 2019 —E-AE+=ZA=+—H
Trade and other payables B 5 R E A ERRIE 698,213
Amount due to an associate R — AR N B R 149
Bank borrowings |ITE N 353,219
Lease liabilities (note) HEaE (HiE) 63,302
1,114,883
31 December 2018 —E-N\F+-HA=1—H
Trade and other payables B 5 R H M ENFRIE 783,417
Amount due to an associate R — B N A R 704
Bank borrowings RITHERK 377,163
Obligations under finance leases EEREER 7,075
1,168,359
Note: Bt it
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified AEBDEAEEITNEREERK
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances MEBEAVBRELERE 165 R T
at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to —NF—R—BRAEBRVIARTE UER
leases which were previously classified as operating leases BERIBIEE B ERIF 17 E B
under HKAS 17. These liabilities have been aggregated with HAKEHENHEEANEERE
the brought forward balances relating to leases previously ELABRHEUIEFEARMERER
classified as obligations under finance leases. Comparative ROBREEE BHE_T—\F+=A
information as at 31 December 2018 has not been restated ST —HMNERELSMARENRREHSE
and relates solely to leases previously classified as obligations AEEARMATHEEBNHEEGR A
under finance leases. Further details on the impact of the EEBBMBERELAE 16T EN
transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in note 3. E—FHBHNMES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk arising in the normal course of its business and
financial instruments. The Group’s risk management
objectives and policies mainly focus on minimising
the potential adverse effects of these risks on the
Group by closely monitoring the individual exposure as
summarised below.

(i) Foreign currency risk
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Renminbi (“RMB"), Hong Kong
dollars (“"HK$"), United States Dollars (“US$") and
Japanese Yen (“YEN"). Such exposures arise from
sales or purchases by subsidiaries other than the
subsidiaries’ functional currencies. This currency
exposure is managed primarily through sourcing
raw materials denominated in the same currency.
In addition, certain recognised assets and liabilities
are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the entities to which they
relate. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy.

Certain assets and liabilities of the Group are
principally denominated in US$. HK$ is pegged
to US$, and thus foreign exchange exposure is
considered as minimal.

At 31 December 2019, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against the RMB, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,331,000
lower or higher (2018: post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$3,097,000 lower or higher).
There will be no impact on other components of
equity.

3. PHEEAREEREMIAZLQF
BE (&)

(b) MBEAREZER

AEENEBARSEY KRR :
migAR (BREINERE  FIXER
kERERR) - EERR R —RER
BENERTAEHZRPE DM
o NEEMEREEBFERER
TEFBTYERMNTERNRRE -
HEIRERERIAKEZMBHRR
PIZmBEEmTE-

(i) SMEmE
AEBAZIINER SRR T
EARANRE(ARYE) B
(Br) ETL(ET)KATT
(A7) - ZERRTIESME
REAM B AR 2 BE B B A
Shz EWETEEMES It
SRR 2B BREUNE
RE¥iEZRMHER -5
S MERRBZEERER
BRELIEAEBERGEER
RETEEM -AKEB ML E
VB SR R o

AEEZETEERABEER
NETTRTEEM - BTEX
TUENER - [ It S [ B AT AR 1
H e

RZEBE—NF+_A=+—
B WA THAREEXE
58, B 3510% » T Fr A £ 1t
B REE2HRBE
BRI S B RBEOR, &
1,331,000 L (=& — \F:
Bk %t 1% % A 1K 53,097,000
BIL) o iR 8 B IR

S/ 480
=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

3. PHEEAREEREMIAZQF
BE (&)

(b) MBEBREZE (&)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2019, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against the YEN, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the
year would have been approximately HK$264,000
higher or lower (2018: post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$641,000 higher or lower).
There will be no impact on other components of
equity.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to each of the Group
entities’ exposure to currency risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that all
other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant.

The stated changes represent management'’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the
next annual reporting date. In this respect, it is
assumed that the pegged rate between the HK$
and the US$ would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the US$
against other currencies. Results of the analysis as
presented in above represent an aggregation of
the effects on each of the Group entities’ profit
after tax and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into HK$ at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting
period for presentation purposes. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 13 iR EEREMI A2 AT

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued) (b) BEREBREZE (£Z)

(i) FIEmEE

(ii) Interest rate risk

Except for pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents (note 28),
the Group has no other significant interest-bearing
assets. The Group's income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates. Management does not
anticipate significant impact on interest-bearing
assets resulted from the changes in interest rates
because the interest rates of bank deposits are not
expected to change significantly.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Prime or HIBOR
arising from the Group's borrowings denominated
in HK$ and RMB.

Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings at
fixed rates and finance lease receivables expose
the Group to fair value interest-rate risk. Details
of the Group’s borrowings and finance lease
receivables have been disclosed in notes 31 and 23
respectively.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. In order to
manage the cash flow interest rate risk, the Group
will repay the corresponding borrowings when it
has surplus funds.

PR E S R HSRIT IR N
Re kR2EE (HFE28) 5N
AEEWBEFMBEANEE
E-ASENRARKEEHE
MEBERETZMGMNERES
PR & - BREL T REA =
BESUITEEEELEAY
2 RNBEMBTHERNEES
AR

AEEEENHRSRENER
REREREAKEETREA
REERNZEENEEEE
RITRAERKEZ K-

FEEREASBEmERE SR
EFERAR - TEBRRER
MEREREFEAEEEDERQ
FTEEMNERBR EENER
ERRERREREREZ
BB RIRM 31 k231

= o

7R B 3 M AT ST AE ] A R 4= 2
DA o BT ACHE 2 M R BB » /5
ZHRERENERR KK
BHEEABKETNIBRNME
EIREER

—ZT—AEEHR e+ Annual Report 2019

265



266

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 43. IR MEERESM T A AFE
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(b) MBEBREZE (&)
(i) FIFEmE (&)

The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates
for the variable-rate bank borrowings at the end
of the reporting period. For variable-rate bank
borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole
year.

At 31 December 2019, if interest rates on
HK$-denominated borrowings had been 50 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been approximately HK$1,340,000 lower/higher
(2018: post-tax profit for the year would have been
HK$1,343,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result
of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate
borrowings.

At 31 December 2019, if interest rates on
RMB-denominated borrowings had been 50 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been approximately HK$370,000 lower/higher
(2018: post-tax profit for the year would have
been HK$462,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result
of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate
borrowings.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and
had been applied to the exposure to interest rate
risk for financial instruments in existence at that
date. The above changes in interest rates represent
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until
the next annual reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

43, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iii) Price risk

(iv)

The Group is exposed to equity securities at fair
value through other comprehensive income price
risk in its financial assets. As the Group's policy is
only to invest on such investments by its surplus
funds, the exposure may not have significant
impact on the Group’s financial position. The
Group is not exposed to commodity price risk.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation
to its trade and other receivables, finance lease
receivable and cash and bank balances. The
carrying amounts of trade and other receivables,
finance lease receivable and cash and bank
balances represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

The Group expects that there is no significant
credit risk associated with cash and bank balances
since they are substantially deposited at state-
owned banks and other medium or large-sized
listed banks. Management does not expect that
there will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

The Group has large number of customers and
there was no concentration of credit risk. The
Group has monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverability
of these receivables at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts.

3. PHEEAREEREMIAZLQF
BE (&)

(b) MBEBREZE (&)

(iii) EEER

(iv)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 43. IR MEERESM T A AFE
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

(b) MBEBREZE (&)
(iv) EEmE (&)

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting
period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

. internal credit rating;

e  external credit rating;

e actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
change to the customer’s ability to meet its
obligations;

e actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the debtor/ customer;

e  significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the customer, including
changes in the payment status of customer in
the Group and changes in the operating results
of the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 43. IBEBEEREMIAZAF
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued) (b) BEREBREZE (£Z)
(iv) Credit risk (Continued) (iv) EBEE (&)
(@) Trade receivables (a) EHmEWzkia
The Group applies the simplified approach to REBE R T ER
provide for expected credit losses prescribed BB B RS ER ER
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the HENTBHEEBIBIR
lifetime expected loss provision for all trade B ZERI AR
receivables. EE S REWFIEFEDN
TEHAE B R
The loss allowance for trade receivables was Z 5 REYGRIBN B EEE
determined as follows. The expected credit EEMT - TXHEHE
losses below also incorporated forward EEETESAENLE
looking information. e
2019
ZE-h
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
b il kS REAE FERE
% HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
0 t0 3 months 2E=(AA 0.8% 538,286 (3.934)
4 to 6 months mERMEA 1.0% 116,311 (1,155)
7 t0 9 months tENAEA 1.5% 51,152 (739)
10 to 12 months +=2+=-1A 3.4% 20,604 (699)
110 2 years —EZF 10.8% 41,004 (4,426)
2 to 3 years “E-E 68.7% 18,693 (12,841)
Over 3 years BR=F 97.4% 81,926 (79,759)
867,976 (103,553)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE MR (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk (Continued)
(a) Trade receivables (Continued)

3. PHEEAREEREMIAZQF

BfE (&)

(b) MBEBREZE (&)
(iv) EEmE (&)
(a) BEHEWHIEA (&)

2018

—E-)\F
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BHEREX REZH g tas
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
0 to 3 months ZZ={A 0.7% 529,539 (3,797)
4 to 6 months mEREA 0.7% 121,155 (765)
7 to 9 months TENEA 2.4% 57,159 (1,372)
10 to 12 months +E+-fEA 2.8% 28,015 (781)
110 2 years —E_-F 9.7% 40,949 (3,953)
2 to 3 years —E=E 74.0% 4,864 (3,597)
Over 3 years BBE=F 97.3% 95,198 (92,599)
876,879 (106,864)

(b) Finance lease receivables
The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected loss provision for all finance
lease receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

43, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

(b) Finance lease receivables (Continued)
The loss allowance for finance lease

3. PHEEAREEREMIA QYT
BE (&)

(b) BIBRABREE (&)
(iv) EEmE (&)

(b) MM EERERE (&)
FE Y B & E R IR R B

receivables was determined as follows. The BREETWOT - TXHE
expected credit losses below also incorporated HEEEETESRENT
forward looking information. Bk o
Overdue
B
Within Over
Not overdue one year 1 year Total
AAH -FR BA-F aF
2019 “Z-NE
Expected loss rate BHEREX 3.3% 14.6% 63.5%
Gross carrying amount REAR
(HK$ 000) (F&7) 72,908 84,193 514 157,615
Loss allowance (HK$'000)  EEEE (FET) (2,379 (12,303) (326) (15,008)
Overdue
Within Over
Not overdue one year 1 year Total
ENali —FR BE—F ch
2018 —E-N\F
Expected loss rate BHEREX 2.4% 28.2% 100%
Gross carrying amount REAR
(HK$ 000) (F#71) 152,415 6,838 645 159,898
Loss allowance (HK$'000)  EEEE (FET) (3,628) (1,925) (645) (6,198)

(v) Liquidity risk

() ZTBHELEE

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by
the parent company’s board when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority.
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE VIR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2019 L2 =%

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(v) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The tables below categorised the Group's financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period from the end of the
reporting period to the contractual maturity
date. The tabulated amounts are the contractual
undiscounted cash flow payments of the Group.

—NE+_A=1—HIFE

3. PHEEAREEREMIA QYT
BE (&)

(b)

MEEBER (&)

(v) nBEZmEE (&)
TERBREREGEEREEHE
HAZHRTHE BAEEZ
R A EIRAARE D BA R
DB IKRTFNEEIIARH
ZERFERRBRBRERE-

Less than Between Between After
1year 1and2years 2and5 years 5 years Total
SME 122% 2255 SE& Azt
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FHET FHET FET FHET
At 31 December 2019 R=B-N%
t=A=t-H
Trade and other payables ~ B 5 R EMENFIE 698,213 - - - 698,213
Amount due to an associate #/x — & 1\ 7]
FE 149 - - - 149
Lease liabilities (note) HERE (W) 18,455 16,389 32,451 10,108 77,403
Bank borrowings BRITIER 306,834 30,010 25,846 - 362,690
1,023,651 46,399 58,297 10,108 1,138,455
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\E
+-A=1+-A
Trade and other payables 25 RE BT FE 783,417 - - 783,417
Amount due to an associate £ /K —EEE & 1 A
IR 704 - - 704
Obligations under finance ~ BEEMAEME R
leases 2,880 2,887 1,873 7,640
Bank horrowings BITIER 362,979 15,670 5,121 383,770
1,149,980 18,557 6,994 1,175,531
Note: Bt 7z

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. These
liabilities have been aggregated with the brought
forward balances relating to leases previously classified
as obligations under finance leases. Comparative
information as at 31 December 2018 has not been
restated and relates solely to leases previously classified
as obligations under finance leases. Further details on the
impact of the transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in note
3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the carrying value
of the Group's financial instruments measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

3. PHEEAREEREMIAZLQF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE MR (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

43, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement (Continued)
(i) Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

3. PHEEAREEREMIA QYT
BE (&)

(0 AFEESE(E)
(i) AFEEFABEZZEMEE
(%)
RNTEBERE (F)

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2019 categorised into
R=B-N¥+=A=+-H
AVYEEHEEUTLE

Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AYEE E-ER EZEBR EZBR
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET FET
Other financial assets EthemEE

— Unlisted equity investment —FLEmERRE 4,465 - 4,465 -

- Unlisted unit trust funds —JFEWEN
RS pyy) - 22 =

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2018 categorised into
RZB-\F+-A=1+—H
AYEEHEENTHE
Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AYEE EF—ER E_ER EZER
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET
Other financial assets Hit e BEE

- Unlisted unit trust funds —JEEmEM
FREE 219 - 219 -
- Wealth management products  — B8 Em 33,711 - 33,711 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ =%

43, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair values of unlisted unit trust funds,
principal guaranteed and non-guaranteed
investment funds in level 2 are based on net
assets value of the investment funds at the end
of the reporting period provided by the financial
institution.

The fair value of unlisted equity investment in
level 2 is based on fair value of initial subscription
cost adjusted by market movements for the
corresponding period from the date of subscription
up to the end of the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and
2019, there were no transfers between Level 1
and Level 2, or transfer into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at
31 December 2018 and 2019.

e B HmRME (&)

—NFFZA=F—HILFE

3. PHEEAREEREMIAZLQF
BE (&)

APREHE (£)

(i)

(ii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR ME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

3. PHEEAREEREMIAZQF
BE (&)

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(d) Capital risk management

(d) E<EKRERE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the total
debts ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings
divided by total capital. Total borrowings include
current liabilities and non-current liabilities. Total capital
includes total borrowings and total equity as shown in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 43. EEBEERSMIAZAYF
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)
(Continued)
(d) Capital risk management (Continued) d) EcEBEE (&)
The total debts ratios at 31 December 2019 and 2018 RZTE—AF+_A=+—B k=
are as follows: Z-NFF+ZA=+—RHZ#BEE
tbEA:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FETT FAET
Current liabilities mEARE 1,085,189 1,280,921
Non-current liabilities EEN=R 132,259 50,487
Total borrowings BN 1,217,448 1,331,408
Total equity B 1,386,441 1,400,285
Total capital BREEE 2,603,889 2,731,693
Total debts ratio BwEELE 47% 49%
Certain entities of the Group are subject to loan EEXLEBHEIENRESRATE &
covenants. There is no material non-compliance with HERERXEREEERBENE
those loan covenants. e
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January Wit AEBERZZE—NF—A—H
2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under FERERTEBMEGNERNE
this approach, the comparative information is not BRI E AR B 1655 < R L
restated. See note 3. FE HBRERTFES - B
i3 e

—ZT—AEEHR e+ Annual Report 2019 2efof-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

44. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH

RELATED PARTIES

During the year, the Group had significant transactions with

the following related parties, together with balances with

them as at the end of the reporting period, details of which

are as follows:

Company controlled by certain
directors’ relatives:
Management fee paid (note i)

Non-controlling interests:

Balances due from the Group
(note ii)

Rental income

Service fee income

Consultancy fee paid

Sales

Associates:
Balances due from the Group
(note ii)

Balances due to the Group
(note ii)

EDP charges paid

Purchases

Purchase of fixed assets

Remuneration of key management
personnel of the Group (note iii):

Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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44, HEEBE R ETZR I RER

AFER AEERETIIEETETZ

EARG BRNXH®EEE R ZERE
[FEUNNE

2019 2018

—E-hF —F-N\F

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

it TET THET

996 996

29 9,600 9,600

3,382 2,198

86 -

978 1,016

6,112 196

149 704

21 2,232 2,184

4,120 4,356

120 87

354 164

15,729 29,117



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

44. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH
RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive's

emoluments are included in note 10 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Notes:

(iv)

The prices of the transactions were determined by the directors
with reference to prices for similar transactions with unrelated
third parties.

The balances are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

Key management personnel whose profiles are included in
Directors and Senior Management’s Biographies section of this
report.

Save as disclosed above, no other transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to which the Company was a party,
and in which a director of the company had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other significant

transactions with related parties during the year or

significant balances with them at the end of the reporting

period.

44. BREREIT 2R B RER

(&)
EERTRRAMS0E—SHBIE
& B RS R M EE0 -

wt -

(i) ZEXZINERKEZSEZAIFMES
ZHETRURSNEREREE -

(i) ZEEHBREER REREREEER
(i) EETIEERABCE2IEARELE
ENEBREEABRERD -

(V) B BB BN R R R AR
B AARMEEAARNEEEAEA
BRZ2 5 BHRTIZABEAS
4o

B mES AFEERES Y EHR

MEARS HEREEEHEREFL
BEMERER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR ME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45. T EM B AR FE
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 RZE-—NF+_A=+—BFEWE
December 2019 are as follows: NEIFBOT:

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share
capital/registered capital

BRAREER
Issued and BRAEEZMBRALE
Place of fully paid  held by the attributable
incorporation/ Place of ordinary ~ Company*/ to the
Name of subsidiary registration operation share capital  subsidiaries Group  Principal activities
RN
R,/ BRTREAR B AR
WEARER Eaich) BEwH EBRRA ¥E AREES FEEH
% %
Cosmos Machinery Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
ARABBERAE ) EE 10,000,0003% 7T BRERR
Cosmos Machinery International Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$32,000,000 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
AABBERERAT ) EE 32,000,0007% 7 BRERR
Cosmos Machinery (Dongguan) The PRC The PRC HK$5,000,000 100.00 100.00  Trading of machinery
Trading Co., Ltd.® F H 5,000,000/ 7T BHE S
RREH (RR)HEBRRA
Cosmos Machinery (Wuxi) The PRC The PRC HK$5,000,000 100.00 100.00  Trading of machinery
Trading Co., Ltd.? H H 5,000,000/ T BHE S
KRR (EH)HEBRRR
Dekuma Rubber and Plastic Technology ~ The PRC The PRC HK$24,000,000 100.00 100.00  Manufacturing and
(Dongguan) Limited® B H 24,000,0007 7T trading
ERERBRE (RR)BRAA of machinery
BREERES
Dong Hua Machinery Ltd.*® The PRC The PRC RMB146,199,955 75.56 75.56  Manufacturing and
RERMERATY FE FE 146,199,955 AR trading of machinery
HRAEERE S
Gainbase Industrial Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100.00 52.00  Trading of printed
BEBEERAA EE B 10,0005 7T circuit boards
R REIRE 5
Grand Technology Products Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$9,500,000 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
BEMRERERAT &k EE 9,500,0007% 7T BRERR
Jackson Equities Incorporated British Virgin Islands Hong Kong us$2 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
Jackson Equities Incorporated ERERREE BE Ve REER
Karmay Industrial Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$55,000,000 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
EEEXERALA ) 0 55,000,000/ 7T and trading
REERRES
Karmay Plastic Products (Zhuhai) The PRC The PRC HK$16,800,000 100.00 100.00  Manufacturing of
Co., Ltd.*@ H H 16,800,000/ T plastic products
EXRERHER (KE)BRRRY EEEHER
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45,

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEARAE

Melco Industrial Supplies
Company Limited
ERIXEMERRA

XRIESEY (LE)ARRA

Guangzhou Melco Industrial
Supplies Co., Ltd.@

BMTERTESRMERRAE

Shenzhen Gainbase Printed
Circuit Board Co., Ltd.*@
Y BEZERBR AR

Welltec Machinery Limited
FARBERAR

KFE Hong Kong Co., Limited

BR-EMEERERAA

Wuxi Grand Tech Machinery
Group Ltd.®

EHRHERERERAF

Wuxi Grand Plastic Machine
Manufacture Co., Ltd.@

EHREEREEERARY

Cosmos Grand Plastics Co., Ltd.?

AERREHEXERAF

Dongguan Hua Qi Plastic
Works Co., Ltd?

RREFEBHRERAFY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE BRI MEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

Place of
incorporation/
registration

B,/
FMie s

Hong Kong
Ei

The PRC
HE

The PRC
FE

The PRC
HE

Hong Kong
o
Hong Kong

B

The PRC
FE

The PRC
HE

The PRC
HE

The PRC
FE

Place of
operation

genyn

Hong Kong
Eik

The PRC
HE

The PRC
FE

The PRC
HE

Hong Kong
Bk
Hong Kong

Ei

The PRC
FE

The PRC
HE

The PRC
hE

The PRC
FE

45. TEMB A TFHE (&)

Issued and
fully paid
ordinary
share capital

ERTREAR
EERRAE

HK$1,500,000
1,500,000/ 7T

US$600,000
600,000% 7T

US$400,000
400,0003% 7T

HK$140,000,000
140,000,000/ 7T

HK$10,000,000
10,000,0007% 7T
US$7,800,000

7,800,000 7T

US$9,586,000
9,586,000% 7T

US$2,850,000
2,850,000% 7T

HK$56,000,000
56,000,000/% 7T

US$1,000,000
1,000,000 7T

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share
capital/registered capital

BRAREER
BRAEEZMRALE
held by the attributable
Company*/ to the
subsidiaries Group

BARAFY

HEQR
BE AEEEHR
% %
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 52.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 52.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 51.00

—E-hAEER

Principal activities

FREH

Trading of industrial
consumables

IXHERES

Trading of industrial
consumables

TEHRERES

Trading of industrial
consumables

IXHERES

Processing of
printed circuit boards

ENfRl 4% 38 AR o T

Trading of machinery

HWE S

Trading of printed
circuit board
IR IR E 5

Manufacturing and
trading of machinery
EREERES

Manufacturing and
trading of machinery

HHEERE S

Manufacturing of
plastic products

EEEHER

Manufacturing of
plastic products

EEENER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —F—NF+=-H=+—HIFFZF

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45 T EMB QA RS (&)
(Continued)

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share
capital/registered capital

BRAREER
Issued and BRAEEZMRALE
Place of fully paid  held by the attributable
incorporation/ Place of ordinary  Company*/ to the
Name of subsidiary registration operation share capital  subsidiaries Group  Principal activities
HARAF*
R,/ ERAREHR B R AR
WELRER B3l b e T EERKRA BE AEEEL FEER
% %
Cosmos Machinery Technology The PRC The PRC US$25,000,000 100.00 100.00  Manufacturing and
(Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. B HE 25,000,000 7T trading of machinery
REEERE (I%)BRAR BRHEERES
REARZHERERARA The PRC The PRC RMB10,000,000 90.00 90.00  Manufacturing of
FE H 10,000,000 A K& plastic products
FEERESR
*  For identification propose only o EHEER
Notes: Bt &t -
(a) The companies are registered in the form of wholly-owned (@) AREREMKZAINEBECE-
foreign investment enterprises.
(b) The companies are registered in the form of sino-foreign (b)y RRIEBTZAMERIA/PINGERE-
cooperative enterprises.
The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Group which, NEMBARNERESTRAEE AT
in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results EXBEEEENREINFREAEE
of the Group for the year or form a substantial portion of BEFEZERBH MK AT E Aty
the net assets of the Group at the end of the year. To give MEBARHEESIHREITR
details of other subsidiaries would, result in particulars of
excessive length.
None of the subsidiaries had any debt capital in issue at the RERIAFEAMBEERN SWHERQ
end of the year or at any time during the year. A BT A ERAR A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F—NF+-H=+—HIFFZ

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

The following table lists out the information relating to all
subsidiaries of Major Success Company Limited, which has
material non-controlling interest (NCI). The summarised
financial information presented below represents the

amounts before any inter-company elimination.

NCI percentage
Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Equity

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income
Profit allocated to NCI

Cash generated from operating
activities

Cash used in investing activities

Cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019

45. TEMB A RFHE (&)

TRINMTEBBEERARMETA
AR ABEANEFERE R E R < A
R BRI 5B RG H AR A

NERAR G 2o
2019 2018
—ZE-hE —ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
R ERB D 48% 48%
MBEE 387,688 405,090
EMENEE 192,946 155,665
mEBE (218,096) (223,013)
E N EN=R (49,452) (13,522)
W 313,086 324,220
IR R ARE A 150,411 155,626
PN 764,158 858,826
REF L R A 10,509 24,262
FER SRR 8,617 16,209
pal VEE i g el 5,044 11,646
KEETHEEZHRE
49,170 2,988
KREGESFERzZR® (15,093) (8,861)
MEE (F/H) EEZRE
(32,642) 661

using the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, the comparative information is not restated.

Wizt

AEBBR-E—AF—A—BEA
13T M0IE R BRI E B B T
RS 16% - R I 77K - LB A
BT T E5) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 L2 =%

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
and a new standards, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2019 and which have not been early adopted in these
consolidated financial statements. These development
include the following which may be relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of material

BEAGHERE IR RESH 2B EAIEE
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a business
BN BRELEREIR 2 BT EBEER

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED e« AE##MEEERAA
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RZEFRAMBHRERAL R ERRM 2 E
ANERT R —RF AT B (B AW B RS
R F175 RBREK - ZFREARE
BEMZERBENATSE:.

Effective for
accounting

periods beginning
on or after

NI RHRESR
Mmzet HBER
1 January 2020
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1 January 2020
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEHHERE

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEWE R
For the year ended 31 December,
BZE+-A=1+-ALEE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
ZT-hE TR ZE—tF ZT-N\F ZEBE-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET FET
Revenue WA 2,395,166 2,192,287 2,446,848 2,682,452 2,344,923
Profit/(loss) before tax BRI (ER) (26,662) (279,260) 49,926 108,219 39,075
Taxation I (12,156) (54,625) (6,076) (19,467) (14,191)
Profit/(loss) for the year KERF,/ (H8) (38,818)  (333,885) 43,850 88,752 24,884
Non-controlling interests FERER 10,783 (30,725) 16,566 14,700 9,129

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity AN 2 BB HER A A JE(S
shareholders of the Company wFl/ (EE) (49,601) (303,160) 27,284 74,052 15,755

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RETBAARRR

At 31 December,

R+=A=+-H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
ZE-1F ZE—RF ZT—+tF ZT-)\F ZEBE-hE
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET FET
Total assets BEE 2,946,221 2,419,803 2,770,659 2,731,693 2,603,889
Total liabilities BEE (1,378,401)  (1,262,891)  (1,478,520)  (1,331,408)  (1,217,448)
Total equity BB 1,567,820 1,156,912 1,292,139 1,400,285 1,386,441
Non-controlling interests FERER 232,507 190,318 211,645 216,716 214,772
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GLOSSARY
s

In this report, unless the context otherwise stated, the following terms shall have the following meanings set out

below:

RABER - BRAEZHAN THAZEBATESE:

“Articles”
[EZFE24E) ]

"Board”

[Exg]

"CG Code”
[ KEEERSFAD |

“Codo”

“Cosmos Holdings”

PGS

“Companies Ordinance”

[ KR AHEED |

"CMEL Code”

NGRS N

"Director(s)”

[E%]

the articles of association of the Company
RARZABERAA

the board of Directors of the Company

ZN/NETE-= -

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

AR ST mArE 2 (REERTHD

Codo Development Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability, a substantial Shareholder (as defined under the SFO)
SEERBRAG —HREAFMANIL2ERAF —REERE (RIE (F
HREBEERG) E&)

Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and the Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 118)

ARRAEMEEBRRAR —EAREBTMEALZER DA RO B PFE
R ET (AR HRSE:118)

Cosmos Machinery (Holdings) Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability, a controlling Shareholder (as defined under the Listing
Rules)

REEWH (ZER)BRIR] REBTMKLZERAF —BEREKRER (B
FHRAER)

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BB EBIFE622F (A AHEHD

Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and Relevant Employees of
Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited, revised from time to time thereafter

RARMEXBERAREZTRBBESLETESR S TRl (BRAKER)

the director(s) of the Company
KRNRIES
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GLOSSARY (CONTINUED)
AR (&)

"ESG Guide” the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules
[ (RE- -G RERESD ] FHRRIME -+ EME (GRE - e RERIREES)

“Group” the Company and its subsidiaries

[REHE ] ZANYNCTDS @Y= NE]

"HKD/HK$" Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

(%] B BEREEES

“Hong Kong” the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

(&% ] R BB R R TT R [®

“Hung Cheong” Hung Cheong Realty Limited, a company incorporated in British Virgin Islands
with limited liability, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cosmos Holdings

[Hung Cheong | Hung Cheong Realty Limited —[REBEZXHSTMA L2 BER AR KE
ZR 2 EWE R A

“Listing Rules” the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

[ =R Al B A2 P 38 25 £ AR Al

“Mainland China” or “PRC” the People’s Republic of China, excluding Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

[ Bt sk [ A B REARAME (TREFS RFIKEE

“Model Code” Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

R4 <F A FHRAIME T EHTARERETESFRFHHIRESA

“Saniwell” Saniwell Holding Inc., a company incorporated in Cook Islands with limited
liability

[Saniwell | Saniwell Holding Inc.* —fRER A SEMKLZBR A F

"SFO" Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

[ (BHFRHBEEN) | BEBEDIESTNEE 5 KB RA

“Share(s)” ordinary share(s) of the Company

[ 17 ] RAFZEBR
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GLOSSARY (CONTINUED)
AR ()

"Shareholder(s)”
BEy

“Stock Exchange”
Bt 32 FFr

“Tai Shing”

[Tai Shing |

"US" or “United States”

“USD/US$”
E

"o
[% |

the holder(s) of the Share(s) of the Company
ZAN/NESI i SGES TSN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBMERIAERRAA

Tai Shing Agencies Limited, a company incorporated in British Virgin Islands
with limited liability, a substantial Shareholder (as defined under the SFO)

Tai Shing Agencies Limited - —fAIR R ERZH ST MK L 2GR ARG —&F
ERE (RE (FBEHFLRAEERY) €&)

the United States of America
EFEREREH

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America

X XBZEERR

per cent
ERisd
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